PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY PUBLIC AGENDA
Thursday, October 15, 2020 Time: 8:30 a.m.

Large Classroom at PDA Offices Non-Public Session: 8:30 am. to 9:30 a.m.

II.

I11.

Iv.

V.

VI

VII.

VIIL

IX.

Public Meeting to commence at 9:30 a.m.
AGENDA
Call to Order:
Non-public Session: (Anderson)
Vote of Confidentiality: (Lamson)
Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: September 17,2020 * (Levesque)
Public Comment:

Old Business:
A. Approval:

1. Land Use Control Amendments — Final Approval * (Loughlin)
Finance:
A. Independent FY2020 External Audit (Berry Dunn via video conference)
1. Auditor Communications Presentation *
2. Required Communication Letter *
B. Approval:
1. Certified Annual Financial Statements and the Uniform Guidance Audit of Federal Awards
Update * (Loughlin)
2. Additional Signatory for Pease Development Authority Banking Institutions * (Fournier)
C. Executive Summary *
D. Reports:

1. FY 2021 Financial Report for the Two Month Period Ending August 31, 2020 *
2. Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to June 30, 2021 *

Licenses/ROEs/Easements/Rights of Way:

A. Approval:
1. Lonza Biologics — Parking License for 55 International Drive * (Allard)
Leases:
A. Reports:
1. Sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership and Shaughnessy Seagull, Inc.

d/b/a Allegra Marketing Print Mail *

B. Approval:
1. Next Level Now, Inc. — Lease Amendment No. 1 * (Levesque)

1






X. Contracts/Agreements:

A. Approval:
1. SHI — Purchase of Plotter/Printer for Engineering * (Anderson)
2 Horsley Witten — Work associated with Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination (IDDE)

* (Fournier)
XI.  Executive Director:

A. Reports:
. Golf Course Operations
2. Airport Operations

a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)
b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW)
c) Noise Line Report

(1) September 2020*

B. Approval:
1. Bills for Legal Services * (Fournier)

XII.  Division of Ports and Harbors:

A. Reports:
1. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Miller to Kastejna *
2. Heidi and Elisabeth Fisheries LLC — Exercise of Option at the Portsmouth Fish Pier to
December 31,2021 *
3. Purchase of Fuel Dispenser for Portsmouth Fish Pier *
B. Approval:
1. Snow Plow Bid/Contract — James Jones d/b/a Jones Snow Plowing Services * (Allard)

XIII. New Business:

XIV. Upcoming Meetings:

Golf Committee November 16, 2020 @ 8:30 a.m.
Finance Committee November 16, 2020 @ 9:00 a.m.
Board of Directors November 19, 2020 @ 8:30 a.m.

All Meetings begin at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise posted.
XV. Directors’ Comments:
XVI. Adjournment:

XVII. Press Questions:
* Related Materials Attached

o Related Materials Previously Sent
R Related Materials will be provided under separate cover
+ Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting

Confidential Materials
PABOARDMTG\AGENDAS - Current\Agenda October 15, 2020.docx






»
AS

ATION
OPME
ORIT

_'U

NTE

ol It

D

<z
_.il'l'l

RN
EVEL
AUTH
RIGHT TO KNOW UPDATE: Effective January 1, 2018, RSA 91-A, the Right to Know Law was modified to include that “If a
member of the public body believes that any discussion in a meeting of the body, including in a nonpublic session, violates
this chapter, the member may object to the discussion. If the public body continues the discussion despite the objection,
the objecting member may request that his or her objection be recorded in the minutes and may then continue to participate
in the discussion without being subject to the penalties of RSA 92-A'8, IV or V. Upon such request, the public body shall
record the member's objection in its minutes of the meeting. If the objection is to a discussion in nonpublic session, the
objection shall also be recorded in the public minutes, but the notation in the public minutes shall incfude only the members
name, a statement that he or she objected to the discussion in nonpublic session, and a reference to the provision of RSA
91-A:3, 1, that was the basis for the discussion.”

MOTION - II.

Director Anderson:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors will enter non-
public session pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3 for the purpose of discussing the
Lease or Sale of Property [RSA 91-A:3, Il (d)].

Note: Roll Call vote required.

N:\RESOLVES\2020\Non-Pubtlic (Legal Advise, Lease & Confid Comm Fin Info) 10-15-2020.docx

TAKING YOU THERE






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION - IIl.

Director Lamson:

Resolved, pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3, Paragraph I, the Pease
Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors hereby determines that
the divulgence of information discussed and decisions reached in the non-
public session of its October 15, 2020 meeting related to the Lease or Sale
of Property would, if disclosed publically render the proposed actions
ineffective and further agrees that the minutes of said meeting be held
confidential until, in the opinion of a majority of the Board of Directors, the
aforesaid circumstances no longer apply.

Note: Roll Call vote required; this motion requires 5
Affirmative Votes

NARESOLVES\2020\Confidentiality 10-15-2020.docx

TAKING YOU THERE






I P4
Ll =
<
|-

MOTION - IV.

Director Levesque:

| make a motion to approve the minutes of the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors Meeting dated Thursday, September 17, 2020.

Note: Roll Call vote required.

NARESOLVES\20201Approval of Minutes 09-17-2020.docx

7 TAKING YOU THERE






PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Thursday, September 17, 2020
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING

MINUTES

Presiding: Kevin H. Smith, Chairman

Present: Peter J. Loughlin, Vice Chairman; Robert A. Allard, Treasurer; Erik Anderson:

Margaret F. Lamson; and Steve Fournier

Telephonically:  Neil Levesque and Lynn Marie Hinchee, General Counsel

Attending: Paul E. Brean, Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Executive Director; Anthony
I. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel; PDA staff members; members of the public.

AGENDA

1. Call to Order:

Chairman Smith (“Smith”) called the meeting to order at 8:41 a.m. in the Large Classroom at
PDA Offices. Seating was socially distanced and masks were required except when speaking.

Director Levesque (“Levesque™) asked if PDA could look into holding video Zoom meetings as
opposed to telephonic Zoom as telephonic is detached. Levesque indicated that each Board member
could have a laptop and everyone could see each other which would facilitate for better conversations.
Smith indicated that he would ask PDA to explore the request.

IL Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: August 20, 2020

Director Allard moved the motion and Director Anderson seconded a motion to approve the
minutes of the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors Meeting dated Thursday, August
20, 2020.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by roll call (7-0) vote for; motion carried.
III.  Public Comment:
There were no public comments.

1V. Committee:
A. Report:
1. Golf Committee

Director Anderson (“Anderson”), Chairman of the Golf Committee, provided a summary of the
discussions at the Golf Committee meeting held Monday, September 14, 2020. Anderson stated that
Scott DeVito (“DeVito”), General Manager of the Golf Course, provided answers to questions posed
and the discussions brought to light the success of the Golf Course during the pandemic. Anderson
indicated that DeVito also provided the Golf Committee with a projection of budgetary considerations
for next year. Brean indicated the items discussed would be required to be brought back to the PDA
Board for approval.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17, 2020



V. Finance:

Finance Director Irv Canner (Canner) indicated that the summary outlines the two reports
contained in the agenda and stated that he is not asking for any approvals.

A. Executive Summary

Canner indicated that the month of July is the first operating month of the new fiscal year and
while there are variances, they are too immaterial to indicate anything that may challenge the FY21
budget. Lamson spoke to the Eldorado bus purchase; Canner indicated that was a significant purchase
utilized for parking at the airport that had been previously approved by the Board.

B. Reports:
1. FY 2021 Financial Report for the Period Ending July 31, 2020

PDA took in $1.9 million in revenue and had $1.1 million in operating expenses, and indicated
due to the audit it is necessary to keep the books extended out through the middle to end of August in
order to capture outstanding invoices related to FY20. The audit is running its course and field work
has been completed, it was done virtually. The physical report for audit is under review by the senior
partners at Berry Dunn and an Audit Committee meeting is scheduled for October 13, 2020. Canner
indicated that at the end of July, PDA employed 144 individuals and there has been no change to
staffing of fulltime benefited positions which is 64. A change in the cash balance resulted in the need
to go into the Revolving Line of Credit (RLOC) in July and August (the draw down occurred in

August and September) in the amount of $4.5 million leaving an available balance of $10.5 million.

Canner indicated that during the month of July enplanements were down to 26,000 versus
60,000 from last year (related to COVID); at the end of August enplanements were just under 29,000.

Canner spoke to the consistency of Skyhaven operations and grant money being received,
revenues were up due to increase in fuel sales (2,400 gallons in 2020 versus 1,900 gallons in 2019).

Canner stated that the start of the new season for Golf was good and that public play is greater
than the private membership play. Canner further stated that Grill 28 sales are down by approximately
4% (anticipate due to COVID) and approximately 30,000 rounds of golf played in 2020 versus 31,000
last year.

Division of Ports and Harbors (DPH) unrestricted funds show no change and remain positive.

Director Allard (“Allard”) asked Canner if he had the August numbers for Grill 28; Canner
indicated he did not have specific numbers but thought it was just under $200,000. Canner further
indicated that Grill 28 provides information weekly regarding sales and from that PDA applies its
commission and an invoice is prepared.

Anderson asked Canner to explain why PDA went into its RLOC; Canner stated due to the
extensive construction projects at the terminal and runway (PDA funding is not sufficient to fund the
entire project). Canner explained that the next nine (9) months, the outlay for projects will be $24

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17, 2020



million; grant funding will pay for $19 million, leaving a difference of $5 million. Canner indicated
the need to start borrowing against the RLOC for funding of the projects commencing in July and
August. Canner indicated that PDA operating income is not sufficient to maintain the current capital
projects which resulted in the need to borrow from the RLOC.

/8 Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to May 31, 2021

Canner indicated that the grant related projects are associated with a timing difference. Canner
went on to state that when spending federal monies, it typically takes approximately forty-five (45)
days for reimbursement; as the federal monies are reimbursed those funds pay down the RLOC
obligation.

Director Lamson (“Lamson”) inquired whether or not any reimbursement has been received;
Canner affirmed and further stated that CARES Act funds were allocated to PDA (PSM and DAW).
That funds for DAW were received, the PSM funds have not yet been received. Canner indicated that
the money submitted under the CARES Act were for operating expenses (labor, utilities etc.) that
support the airport operations. Canner indicated that if the CARES Act money for PSM is not received
in September, there may be an additional need to draw from the RLOC.

Canner went on to say over the next nine months, both grant related and non-grant related
projects (such as the terminal, which is not all federally funded) PDA anticipates on spending $6.4
million of PDA money for various projects. Canner indicated that anticipates going into the RLOC by
the end of October in the amount of $5 million, but in November there will be a payback to the RLOC
upon to receipt from grant awards. Fournier asked if this was due to the beginning of the federal fiscal
year; Canner indicated that it was more a timing issue of the reimbursements. Brean explained the
work needs to be completed and a recap done by Maria Stowell (“Stowell”) Engineering Manager
prior to government releasing the funds.

Canner indicated that interest rates are currently low making it a favorable time to borrow
against the RLOC.

VI.  Licenses/ROEs/Easements/Rights of Way:

[n accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of
License Agreements,” PDA entered into the following licenses:

A. Reports:
1. Advanced Excavation & Paving, Inc. — Right-of-Entry

Brean indicated this was for a laydown area at the Tradeport in order to expedite the paving on
International Drive and Corporate Drive in collaboration with the City of Portsmouth.

2. Prescott Park Arts Festival (PPAF) — Right of Entry

Brean stated the Right-of-Entry for PPAF is to host drive-in style entertainment (music etc.)
afterhours at the former warehouse parcel on New Hampshire Avenue.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17, 2020



3. CHI Aerospace — Right-of-Entry

Brean indicated that this is a Portsmouth based flight school and they are utilizing the runway
at Skyhaven while Portsmouth is closed to keep operations going.

Lamson spoke again of the potholes on Arboretum which is a highly utilized area at the
Tradeport as it goes down to the Refuge. Lamson offered to take Anderson to the location so he could
see what she was referring to as it is a safety issue.

B. Approvals:
1. Portsmouth Transportation Center — 185 Grafton Drive — Department of

Transportation Subdivision

Director Loughlin moved the motion and Director Allard seconded that in aceordance with
Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Land Use Controls Section 503.01(c) the PDA Board of
Directors approves the subdivision of 14.04 acres (the Pease Park and Ride) for the New
Hampshire Department of Transportation (“NHDOT”), as set forth in the Memorandum of
Maria J. Stowell, PE, Engineering Manager, dated September 3, 2020.

Discussion: Stowell indicated that back in June the Board asked staff to take the necessary steps
for a lease with Department of Transportation (DOT); the subdivision would be an exhibit to the lease.
Stowell further indicated where DOT is a state agency it is exempt from PDA rules but thought the lease
would be cleaner having the subdivision on file. Stowell indicated that this has been approved by the
Portsmouth Planning Board.

Disposition: Resolved by roll call (7-0) vote for; motion carried.
VII. Leases:

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-Sublease
Agreements” PDA approved the following lease:

A. Report:
1. Brookhaven Hospice of New Hampshire, LLC

Brean indicated that Brookhaven Hospice of New Hampshire, LLC has entered into a lease with
One New Hampshire Avenue, LLC to occupy 1,859 square feet of Office and Related Use space at 1
New Hampshire Avenue for five (5) years commencing October 1, 2020 and that Director Lamson was
consulted and granted her consent to this sublease.

B. Approvals:
1. Port City Air - Fuel Farm Concept Plan & Lease Amendment

Director Anderson moved the motion and Director Fournier seconded that The Pease
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to approve

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17, 2020



n

the concept plan for the North Fuel Farm at 14 Aviation Avenue, as submitted by Port City Air
(“PCA”), and as shown on plans attached hereto and incorporated herein, and to proceed with
and complete negotiations with PCA on any lease agreement amendments necessitated by the
improvements to the North Fuel Farm as shown on the concept plan; all in accordance with the
memoranda of Maria Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager, dated September 9, 2020, and Paul E.
Brean, Executive Director, dated September 10, 2020.

Discussion: None.  Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7-0) for; motion carried.
2. T-Aviation, LLC - Skyhaven Airport Hangar 5

Director Fournier moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive
Director to complete negotiations and to execute a lease with T-Aviation, LLC for the premises
known as Hangar 5, including certain surrounding apron area, located at Skyhaven Airport
(DAW); substantially in accordance with the memorandum from Andrew Pomeroy, Manager,
Aviation Planning and Regulatory Compliance, dated September 10, 2020.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7-0) for; motion carried.
VIII. Contracts/Agreements:

In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, Executive Director Brean reported the
following:

A. Reports:
1. Dan Fortnam — Exercise Option - Secure and Develop Scheduled Air
Passenger Service through March 31, 2021

2. Eckhardt & Johnson — Exercise Option - HVAC services through June 30,
2021
IX.  Signs:
A. Approval:
1. 2-Way Communications Service, Inc. — 19 Durham Street

Director Anderson moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of the proposed sign for 2-Way
Communications Service, Inc. at its facility located at 19 Durham Street; all in accordance with
the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engincering Manager, dated September 9, 2020.

Discussion: Director Allard recused himself from the vote due to his relationship with the
company. Brean indicated that he was provided a tour of the property at 19 Durham Street and indicated
that 2-Way Communications has made an incredible investment in the building. Brean is impressed with
the quality of design and build out of the premises and the sign will put the finishing touches on that
area.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17, 2020



Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (6-0) for, with one recusal (Allard); motion carried.

X. Executive Director:
A. Reports:
1. Golf Course Opcrations

Smith lefi the meeting at approximately 9:11 a.m. and returned to the meeting at approximately
9:14 a.m.

DeVito indicated that the golf course has stayed busy with just under 13,000 rounds played for
the month of August and to date have more rounds played this season than last. DeVito also spoke to
the annual Pay Now Play Now to draw season pass holders; approximately a dozen (12) have already
signed up. DeVito spoke to updating membership applications and sending them out next month; also
information concerning the twenty (20) day credit due to COVID would be relayed to those who had
paid prior to March 31, 2020 as the credit can be utilized towards a 2021 membership.

DeVito indicated that this is the only month that there has been events; Friday (9/18/2020) the
course will be holding its largest event this year - NH Auto Dealers Association at 166 (all tee times).

Anderson commended DeVito for his ability to field a lot of questions at the Golf Committee
meeting and making it a very informative and productive meeting.

2. Airport Operations
a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)

Brean indicated that for the month of August there were just under 2,000 scheduled passengers
on Allegiant and there were only 276 charter passengers, which was due to the runway reconstruction
project and that the large Atlas Air that operate the troop flights could not operate with the reduced
runway availability. Brean indicated that the enplanements of 2,200 brought PDA to just under 30,000
for the year (which is roughly where PSM was in 2015). Brean indicated that PSM is holding its own
due to COVID and the runway project. Brean further stated that PSM surpassed the requirement of
10,000 enplanements in order to remain in the FAA/AIP program.

Brean stated that there were 288 Allegiant passengers who utilized revenue parking (less than
previous Augusts).

Brean stated that approximately 400,000 gallons of fuel for the month of August were pumped
and anticipated and increase with the return of the runway back to full capacity. Brean thanked the
Board and its support of Port City Air’s North Fuel Farm Rehab; its increased capacity is anticipated to
attract the larger military squadrons.

Brean indicated that an FAA mandated exercise would be held on Saturday (9/19) for all
airfield stakeholders. This is a practice event of an airfield emergency conducted with the ANG and

various fire / police departments.

Brean stated that the runway reopening is scheduled for September 23" and he is confident that

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17,2020



will hit that date or a little early. Brean commended aviation, engineering and the aviation
stakeholders for the communication over the last two years regarding this project. During this time the

various stakeholders took advantage of the scheduled runway closure to work on some maintenance
work.

Brean informed the Board that the terminal expansion is weather tight (siding and roofing
completed) and interior and heavy work is on scheduled and that he is optimistic to having an
occupancy permit prior to the end of the year.

Brean also indicated receipt of the Allegiant schedule through April and PSM held capacity
well into Punta Gorda Florida and Sanford Orlando.

Brean followed-up on the Eldorado bus referenced in the Finance report by stating it was
purchased last year and is an ADA compliant bus for airport/parking use. Brean further stated as a
result of COVID, the company that builds the buses was closed for a little while resulting in the delay.

b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW)

Brean spoke to trying new operating models to reduce expenses and working on a maintenance
model to see reduction in expenses. Brean also informed the Board that fuel demand at Skyhaven has
increased due to two (2) entities flying banners around the Seacoast weekly. Brean spoke to closing
out negotiations with an aviation maintenance repair company to operate out of Hangar 5 at Skyhaven
to perform maintenance/repairs on aircrafts there.

c) Noise Line Report
(i) August 2020

Brean indicated that there were no aircraft complaints during the month of August at
Portsmouth or Skyhaven.

Levesque indicated that at the start of the pandemic there were expenditures (i.e.; lawnmower)
which were pushed off and wondered if they would be brought forward in the Spring. Brean indicated
that DeVito is willing to wait to take this expenditure up in late winter / Spring.

B. Approvals:
1. Bills for Legal Services:

Director Fournier moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease
Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive
Director to expend funds in the amount of $16,704.00 for legal services rendered to the Pease
Development Authority in support of MS4 and CLF settlement implementation to Shechan
Phinney Bass & Green and to reimburse Sheehan Phinney Bass & Green in the amount of
$31,676.11 for third party environmental services rendered to the Pease Development Authority
associated with the MS4 permit implementation.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17, 2020



Discussion: Allard pointed out a scribner’s error in the total of the Sheehan Phinney bill which
was a transposition of numbers.

Director Levesque (“Levesque”) asked for a review of the monthly legal fees (2 in-house
attorneys and 3 attorneys from Sheehan Phinney). Director Founier (*Fournier”) indicated that from his
perspective (being the Town Manager for Newmarket) that [in-house] legal counsel provides the daily
advice; these bills do not seem out of the ordinary as the billing received from Sheehan Phinney is for
environmental issues. Fournier also indicated that attorneys, like doctors, specialize in specific areas of
law. Smith affirmed Fournier’s comments, being the Town Manager for Londonderry, he sees similar
monthly billing for his Town. Anderson indicated that since December 2019, PDA has spent $157,000
on legal fees and that he too would like to know what has been done up to now, where PDA is going and
how much more may be projected to complete the process. Smith spoke of a Zoom meeting potentially
being scheduled in October and that after the Zoom meeting, PDA’s in-house attorneys can provide the
Board (in public or non-public) for a more in-depth discussion on where things stand and why the
monthly legal fees are where they are. Blenkinsop affirmed Anderson’s inquiry at the last meeting and
that Anderson had also reached out prior to today’s meeting. Blenkinsop further stated that at the
October meeting there could be discussions regarding legal fees, but that it also had been contemplated
to hold a meeting with outside counsel, potentially in November, for a presentation / overview to update
to the Board of the various matters they are working on. Blenkinsop indicated as the former City
Attorney in Dover, it is necessary to have qualified environmental attorneys when working on
environmental matters. Lamson spoke to her time as a Selectperson for the Town of Newington and the
need for representation with an expertise in environmental matters.

Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7-0) for; motion carried.
2. Land Use Controls:

Director Lamson moved the motion and Director Anderson seconded that in accordance with
the procedures adopted by Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) on May 20, 1991 for the
adoption of Land Use Controls or amendments thercto, the PDA Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes the PDA to take all requisite steps towards adopting the proposed
amendments to PDA's Land Use Controls (as set forth below and with the full text of each
amendment attached hercto) and to schedule a public hearing to receive public comment on the
proposed amendments and to accept written comments from the public or other state or local
agencies prior to and until the close of the public hearing; all in accordance with PDA's
procedures for the adoption of Land Use Controls or amendments thereto as referenced above
and in the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager, dated September 8,

2020.

Attachment I

Part 304-A.10(a) — Storm Water Management
Part 305.05(a)(14) — Storm Drainage

Part 407.02 — Site Review Agreement

Part 403.01 — General Provisions

Part 403.04 — Site Plan Submission Requirements

HEOR>

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17,2020



Attachment I1
F. Part 302 - Definitions
G. Part 313-A — Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination (IDDE)

Discussion: Stowell was available for questions, there were no questions from the Board.

Smith indicated that it was recommended that the public hearing could be held over Zoom either
the week before the October 15" Board meeting or the week after. Smith asked Stowell if she had a
preference; Stowell indicated she did not and further stated that the changes have been out there and
discussed with both the City and the Town and there has been no response. Lamson indicated she wanted
the Town’s Planning Director to review the changes; Stowell indicated that the Town has had an
opportunity to review the changes but she can follow-up. Anderson indicated that he hoped the City
would have an opportunity to review the same materials as well. Blenkinsop indicated that both the City
and the Town were forwarded the changes some time ago and the Town replied it did not have any
comments. PDA did sit down with the City and discussed its questions and comments. Blenkinsop
indicated that both the City and Town would be informed of the date of the public hearing.

The Board scheduled the Public Hearing on this matter for Thursday, October 8, 2020 at 9:00
a.m. over Zoom (phone or video).

Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7-0) for; motion carried.
XI.  Division of Ports and Harbors:

A. Report:
1. Port Advisory Council — June 10, 2020 Minutes

Division of Ports and Harbors (DPH) Director, Geno Marconi (*Marconi”), reported that the
Port Advisory held its meeting on October 2™ in the warehouse and everyone was socially distanced.
At the meeting there was a discussion by the Council regarding the Route 1B Bridge by the Wentworth
Hotel which ultimately resulted in a letter being drafted and sent to the US Coast Guard - Bridge
Division in support of a bascule bridge. Anderson stated that he is a member of the Council and is in
support of the bascule bridge and asked the Board to support the request of the Port Advisory Council.

Marconi spoke to the following:

1. DPH being the supply / staging area for the Cianbro project at Portsmouth Naval
Shipyard for the super flood basin.
2. Salt Tenants — In the next couple of weeks will begin trucking out salt. Marconi

stated due to COVID, a lot of sheds had not filled with salt at the end of the
season and that activity will be ramping up at DPH; a traffic pattern has been
implemented as the yard is very busy.

3. Portsmouth Fish Pier is progressing, demolition is being performed to the ice
tower and the locations of the take out jibs are being fine-tuned. DOT needed
some clarifications so have been working with Appledore Engineering to answer
the questions. Marconi anticipates a meeting with DOT to clarify things.

4. Permission has been provided from the State to spend the funds that were left

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17, 2020



10

over from the BUILD grant for design and engineering to spend those funds that
had been placed on hold due to COVID. There have been geotechnical borings
done along the shoreline so that things can get up and running.

5. Rye Harbor project is moving ahead and DPH has worked with Prock Marine
previously; the permit has been received. Indicated that there are about 100
moorings in the harbor that need to be removed. Due to the dredging project
and the timing of the tides, the floating docks need to be removed early. Granite
State Whale Watch (GSWW) has been advised of the removal of the docks as
they typically run until just after Columbus Day. GSWW will back in on the
commercial side of the docks to pick up and discharge passengers. Marconi
indicated that DPH has coordinated with Independent Boat Haulers regarding
the activities at the harbor. Anderson asked Marconi if there were
accommodations being made; Marconi indicated that a letter was sent out over a
month ago advising users of the necessary activities and the need to make
accommodations.

Levesque, with reference to Marconi’s written material in the Board packet, indicated that he
was surprised that the shoaling had already started in Hampton Harbor; Marconi indicated that it is due
to the dynamics of the harbor and the transportation of sand with the tidal currents. Marconi indicated
that shoaling commenced the day the contractor left; he also indicated that a couple of years ago he
forwarded a letter to the Army Corps requesting initiation of a Section 107 Feasibility Study to look at
a long term remedy for Hampton Harbor. Marconi was informed that two things would govern the
Study: 1.) the completion of the dredging project; and 2.) the availability of funding. Marconi
indicated that the request has been made and it is in the hands of the Army Corps at this time.

Anderson departed from the meeting at 9:49 a.m. and returned at 9:50 a.m.

B. Approvals:
1. Amendment to Right-of-Entry - Granite State Whale Watch

Director Loughlin moved the motion and Director Allard seconded that the Pease
Development Authority Board of Directors approves of, and authorizes the Executive Director to
exccute any necessary documents to effectuate, the subletting of the Granite State Whale Watch
ticket office at the Rye Harbor Marine Facility to Prock Marine Company from October 1,2020
to April 1,2021; all in accordance with the memorandum of Geno Marconi Director of Ports and
Harbor, dated September 2, 2020.

Discussion: None.  Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (6-0) (Director Anderson was not
present for the roll call vote) for; motion carried.

2. Portsmouth Fish Pier Seawall Replacement — Delegation to Division
Director

Director Allard moved the motion and Director Fournier seconded that WHEREAS, RSA ch.
12-G provides that the Board shall appoint an Executive Director, who shall be the chief executive
and administrative officer of the Pease Development Authority (“Authority”) and who shall have

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17,2020



11

general and active supervision and direction over the day-to-day business and affairs of the
Authority, subject to the direction and control of the Board, and shall perform all such duties as
from time to time may be assigned to him by the Board; and

WHEREAS, RSA ch. 12-G further establishes within the Authority a Division of Ports and
Harbors (“Division”) and vests the oversight and control of the Division in the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, RSA ch. 12-G further provides that the Board shall appoint a Division
Director who shall be the administrative officer of the Division and shall have general and active
supervision and direction over the day-to-day business and affairs of the Division and its
employees, subject, however, to the direction and control of the Board and the Executive Director;
and

WHEREAS, the Authority has duly enacted By-Laws in accordance with the provisions of
NH RSA 12-G:8, XIX; and

WHEREAS, the By-Laws provide that the Executive Director shall have all the authority
of the Chairman with respect to the signing of contracts, leases, releases, bonds, notes and other
instruments and documents approved by the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Division is undertaking the repair/replacement of the Portsmouth Fish
Pier Seawall in Portsmouth, New Hampshire, a project of vital importance to the commercial
fishing industry and the New Hampshire seacoast region;

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary for the timely management and regulation
of the Portsmouth Fish Pier Seawall Replacement Project to delegate to the Division Director,
subject to the prior approval of the Executive Director and the PDA Treasurer, the authority to
consent to and approve of certain documents in connection with contract change orders pertaining
to the project, conditioned upon the prior appropriation of State funds to cover any increase in
project costs.

NOW, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority does hereby delegate to the Director of the
Division of Ports and Harbors the authority to consent to, approve, and execute certain required
documentation in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Limited Delegation to the
Director of Ports and Harbors: Consent, Approval, and Execution of Contract Change Order
Documents for the Portsmouth Fish Pier Seawall Replacement Project, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference.

Discussion: None.  Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7-0) for; motion carried.

3. Rye Harbor Mooring Removal / Replacement - Pepperrell Cove Marine
Services, Ine.

Director Levesque moved the motion and Director Allard seconded that the Pease
Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive
Director to enter into an Agreement with Pepperrell Cove Marine Services, Inc. to perform
mooring removal and re-installation work in Rye Harbor for the purpose of facilitating the
dredging work in connection with the Rye Harbor dredge project, all in accordance with the

memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division of Ports and Harbors Director, dated September 9,
2020.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17, 2020



12

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7-0) for; motion carried.

XII. New Business:
No new business.

XIII. Upcoming Meetings:

Audit Committee October 13,2020 @ 8:30 a.m.
Board of Directors October 15, 2020 @ 8:30 a.m.

All Meetings begin at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise posted.

Smith indicated that there is a Public Hearing scheduled for October §, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. over
Zoom.

XIV. Directors’ Comments:

Director Loughlin (Loughlin) reiterated Levesque’s comments earlier if it is technically
possible and fiscally prudent to hold meetings via Zoom in order to see those Board members who are
unable to attend the meeting. Loughlin also mentioned discussions had by former Director Bohenko of
entering the 21% century and having packets uploaded to an electronic tablet rather than having hard
paper copies of the monthly Board packets. Smith indicated that this is something worth exploring and
it could potentially be covered under COVID funding. Brean indicated that these items are something
that PDA will look into and report back to the Board. Lamson expressed some apprehension of not
having a physical packet.

XV. Press Questions:

Paul Briand (“Briand”) of the Portsmouth Herald inquired as to the status of the runway project
and asked when it may be reopened; Brean indicated that it is projected to reopened by September 23",
but that there is a possibility it may open sooner than that.

Briand also inquired about the reference to the Schiller Plant tour on the agenda; Smith
indicated that representatives from Schiller had reached out to the Board and wanted to provide a tour
of its current operations and its anticipated operations for the future. Smith indicated that the tour is
estimated to last approximately an hour and the public is welcome to attend the tour.

At 10:02 a.m. the meeting recessed so those attending the tour could load the bus for
transportation to the Schiller facility.

XVI. Schiller Plant Tour: (recess for transportation)

Meeting reconvened at 10:30 a.m. at the Schiller Station in Portsmouth, NH.

Present were all board members with the exception of Director Neil Levesque; also in
attendance were Brean, Blenkinsop, Marconi and the City of Portsmouth liaison John Tabor

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17, 2020



Present from Granite Shore Power (“GSP”) were Lynn Tillotson (“Tillotson™), Pete Leavitt,
Alan Palmer, Johnathan Misner.

Tillotson spoke to the group about the next life of the Schiller Station as it shut down
operations on June 1, 2020. Previously it had burned coal and more recently biomass. Any remaining
coal will likely be transported to the Merrimack Station in Bow, NH. There is no more wood located
on site. Market demands have changed the need for the operations at the station. GSP is looking into
what can come next at the 85 acre waterfront industrial parcel. Looking at offshore wind energy, but
that is a long-term project. What can be done in the short-term? Recognize the excellent
redevelopment work that has been done at Pease and wanted to engage the PDA Board. GSO is open
to discussing with anyone who may have ideas for redevelopment and/or alternate uses.

Tillotson then led the group on a brief walking tour of the facility - the waterfront dock area

over to the roof top of building #5. General discussion ensued about the history of the plant and the
uses of various buildings on site.

XVII. Adjournment:

Director Fournier moved the motion and Director Anderson seconded to adjourn the Board
meeting. Meeting adjourned at 11:35 a.m.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
Respectfully submitted,

Paul E. Brean
Executive Director

PABOARD MINUTES\2020\Bd Minutes of September 17, 2020 docx

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 17, 2020






-0

TE

AS

IO N

i

>

o

E
A

vl
—Af|~

M

A
o E
ORIT

T |z

R
VE
uT

<z

MOTION - VIA.

Director Loughlin:

WHEREAS, the Pease Development Authority (PDA) has duly enacted
a Zoning Regulation in accordance with the requirements of RSA ch. 12-G
and rules adopted by the Authority for the adoption or amendment of land
use controls; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Regulation may be amended at any time by the
Board in accordance with its rules for the adoption and amendment of land
use controls;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Authority does hereby resolve to amend its
Zoning Regulations in effect at the Pease International Tradeport, on
October 15, 2020, by adopting the language as written in Attachment | and
Attachment ll, which by reference are incorporated into this motion: all in
accordance with the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, dated October 8,
2020, attached hereto.

Note: Roll Call vote required - 5 Affirmative Votes Required.

N:ARESOLVES\2020\Land Use Control.Amds.10-15-20.docx

. TAKING YOU THERE






m

INTERNATIONAL 5 i = BH 03801
DEVELOPMENT

MEMORANDUM

To: Paul E. Brean, Executive Director _@ 8 -

From: Maria J. Stowell, PE, Engineering Manager |

Date: October 8, 2020 N

Subject: Adoption of Proposed Revisions to the Land Use Controls

Having satisfied the requirements to effect an amendment to the PDA Land Use Controls, the Board may now
hold its final vote on the proposed language. The steps that have been completed include:

* Board directing staff to draft the amendments;

e Board review of the draft language;

e Staff discussions with municipalities;

* Board accepting draft language and scheduling a Public Hearing;
¢ Public Hearing notice published and posted;

* Invitation to submit written comments issued in notice; and,

¢ Public Hearing held on October 8, 2020;

As no written comments were received, and no oral comments were presented at the public hearing, staff
recommends that the Board adopt the language as noticed.

At next week’s meeting, please seek Board approval to amend PDA’s Land Use Controls by adopting language
as proposed, noticed, and attached to this memo.

N:AENGINEER\Board Memos\2020\Final LUC Adoption.docx

TAKING YOU THERE






Attachment |

DRAFT PROPOSED LANGUAGE ~ Construction and Post Construction Amendments

The following changes should be made to Part 304-A.10(a):

All construction activities and uses of buildings, structures and land within wetlands and wetland
buffers, including without limitation all temporary and permanent erosion and sediment controls, shall
be carried out so as to minimize the volume and rate of storm water runoff, the amount of erosion, and
the export of sediment from the site. All such activities shall be conducted in accordance with Best
Management Practices for storm water, including, but not limited to, the following:

(1) New Hampshire Stormwater Manual Volume 2: Post-Construction Best Management
Practices Selection and Design, NHDES, 2008 or as amended; and

(2) New Hampshire Stormwater Manual Volume 3: Erosion and Sediment Controls During
Construction, NHDES, 2008 or as amended.

Part 305.05{a}(14) should be revised to read as follows:

(14) STORM DRAINAGE. Any grading, paving, or other construction activity, including without limitation,
all temporary or permanent erosion and sediment controls, or the construction or operation of storm
drainage systems shall not result in erosion or sedimentation of streams, or damage to adjoining
properties and roads, and shall conform to, unless an alternative method or technology is specifically
authorized by NHDES or PDA, the following:

a) New Hampshire Stormwater Manual Volume 2: Post-Construction Best Management Practices
Selection and Design, NHDES, 2008 or as amended; and

b) New Hampshire Stormwater Manual Volume 3: Erosion and Sediment Controls During
Construction, NHDES, 2008 or as amended.

The following text should be added to Chapter 407.02 Site Review Agreement by replacing (b) with the
following:

Site review agreements shall include the following conditions:

(1) - All construction undertaken pursuant to this site plan approval shall be in compliance with
federal and state laws.



(2) Applicants/Developers shall provide PDA with a digital copy of any annual reports submitted
to a federal, state or local governmental authority pursuant to any federal or state law, including
without limitation, the NH Alteration of Terrain Permit program, related to construction undertaken

pursuant to this Site Review Agreement.

The following text should be included in Part 403.01 General Provisions by replacing paragraph {e):

(e) All Applicants/Developers shall obtain all permits and approvals required under applicable federal,
state and local laws for construction and post-construction stormwater management.

The following text should be included in Part 403.04 Site Plan Submission Requirements as Section

403.04{(7)h

(h) ... and a sheet showing proposed stormwater management and erosion control features.



Attachment I

DRAFT PROPOSED LANGUAGE - lllicit Discharge Detection and Elimination

IDDE Ordinance Language

Add the following definitions to Part 302. DEFINITIONS:

302.XX. “Environmental Protection Agency” means the Federal agency
responsible for implementing the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, (3 U.S.C. §
1251 et seq.) also known as the “Clean Water Act”.

302.XX “lllicit connection” means an illicit, unauthorized or illegal connection that
drains into or is connected to the Pease Development Authority Separate Storm
Sewer System, and could include any of the following:

1. Any pipe, drain, open channel or other conveyances that have the
potential to allow an illicit discharge to enter the Separate Storm Sewer
System. Including, but not limited to any conveyances which allow any
non-storm water discharge including sewage, process wastewater, and
wash water to enter the storm drain system. This includes any
connections to the Separate Storm Sewer System from indoor drains and
sinks regardless of whether said drain or connection had been previously
allowed, permitted, or approved by an authorized enforcement agency.

Or

2. Any pipe, drain, open channel or conveyance connected from a
residential, commercial or industrial land use, to the storm drain system
which has not been documented in plans, maps, or equivalent records and
approved by an authorized federal, state or local enforcement agency.

302 XX “lllicit discharge” means any direct or indirect non-storm water discharge
to the Pease Development Authority Separate Storm Sewer System, excepting
discharges as identified in Section 3XX.03.

302.XX “Infiltration” means the act of conveying the surface water into the
ground, to permit the groundwater to be recharged resulting in the reduction of
stormwater runoff from a project site.

302.XX “Pease Development Authority Separate Storm Sewer System (System)”
means owned and operated facilities by which storm water is collected including
but not limited to roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins,
curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels or storm drains, piped storm drains,
pumping facility retention or detention basins, reservoir or other drainage
structure that discharges to the waters of the United States. It does not include



any facility owned by another party, including facilities owned by the United
States Government or the City of Portsmouth.

302.XX “National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) program”
means the water quality program established as part of the Clean Water Act,
implemented by the EPA, to authorize the discharge of pollutants into surface
waters of the United States.

302.XX “Non-stormwater discharge” means a surface discharge to the PDA
separate storm sewer system not composed entirely of stormwater.

302.XX “Pollutant” means dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, filter
backwash, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes,
biological materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar
dirt, and industrial, municipal and agricultural waste discharged into water.

Add the following Part to the existing Regulations:

PART 313-A ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION AND ELIMINATION (IDDE)

313-A.01 Purpose and Intent

The intent is to protect public health, safety and general welfare of the PDA Tenants
and the environment by prohibiting illicit connections and discharges to PDA's separate
storm sewer system.

313-A.02 Prohibition of Hlicit Discharges

(a) No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the PDA System any

materials, including but not limited to pollutants or waters containing any
pollutants that cause or contribute to a violation of applicable water quality
standards, other than stormwater

(b) The following items are not considered as lllicit Discharges:

(1) Stormwater

(2) Discharges allowed by NPDES permit NHO090000 or any subsequent
NPDES permit issued to PDA for the Tradeport

) Firefighting activities, including training

) Water line flushing

) Ground water infiltration

) Discharges from potable water sources including landscape irrigation and
lawn watering

(7) Foundation & footing drains including crawl space pumps

(8) Air conditioning condensation

(9) Diverted/pumped stream flows, springs & riparian habitats and wetlands

and rising groundwater

(10) Dechlorinated swimming pool discharges

(11) Discharge from street sweeping

(12) Dye testing if PDA is made aware prior to the test



313-A.03 Prohibition of Illicit Connections

(a) The construction, use, maintenance, or continued existence of illicit connections
to the storm drain system is prohibited.

(b) This prohibition expressly includes, without limitation, illicit connections made in
the past, regardless of whether the connection was permissible under law or
practices applicable or prevailing at the time of connection.

(c) A person is considered to be in violation of this ordinance if the person connects
a line conveying sewage to the PDA System or allows such a connection to

continue.

313-A.04 IDDE Responsibility for Administration

(a) Enforcement

(1) Within Airport Zone and Airport Industrial Zone
For sites and locations within the airport zone or the airport industrial zone, and
in addition to any right or other power PDA may have pursuant to written
agreements with lessees, developers or others, PDA may undertake such
enforcement against lessees, developers and others as is authorized under and
consistent with the provisions of RSA 12-G:13, VI.

(2) Outside Airport Zone and Airport Industrial Zone

a)

Outside of the airport zone and airport industrial zone, and subject to the
provisions of RSA 12-G:13, V(c), any deviation or noncompliance with
these land use controls shall be subject to the enforcement provisions
and process of the municipality having jurisdiction over the site or location
pursuant to RSA 12-G:13, V(b).

For the area of the Tradeport outside of the airport zone and airport
industrial zone within the geographical limits of the City of Portsmouth,
and subject to the provisions of RSA 12-G:13, V(c) and solely for the
purposes of enforcing these Land Use Controls, the PDA adopts by
reference the city’s enforcement provisions and penalties applicable to
the enforcement of city ordinances.

For the area of the Tradeport outside of the airport zone and airport
industrial zone within the geographical limits of the Town of Newington,
and subject to the provisions of RSA 12-G:13, V(c) and solely for the
purposes of enforcing these Land Use Controls, the PDA adopts by
reference the town’s enforcement provisions and penalties applicable to
the enforcement of town ordinances






FNCILE MY T LN

m_ m < m n_

=Y

JL&..«&;.

g

A11ag q1

020¢ ‘Sl 4990300
suoiedIuNWWo Jojipny




mEn_n_:to:e.
3JONVAIND IWHOLINN #M

mt._w_.__._w__._ m
ININILVLS IVIONVNIA

ANV Mo0od MOT13A
lianvy SNOILVOINNININOD p
ININILVLS TVIONVYNId . Jyolanv aayinoay -

. W . | 3NITLNO NOISSNSIa




SUOIBIaPISUDD

6L-AINOD — 2¢ 2loN
sapuabuuos

puUE SJUSWLILIOD

JO BINSOPRSI] — LZ S1ON
sainsojosip sued
sjijouaq JuswAojdwa-1sod
1BYO - 0Z PUE §| SejoN
$2.1NSOJOSIP

ueld uoisusd - g| 910N

._d JO uony
Iqel] 9340 18U 8y} jo
ay} ul pasn saje
A

JO UOleINdied ay) Ul pasn S]asse
|eydeo jo sanyl |njesn pajewusy
3|q1198]j02

Ajiny a1e pun4 Buiysi4 ueo
BuiAjonay 8y} Ul S8|geAIeda)N

polied 1081109
3y} Ui pepiooal siem
suoljoesuel) juesyiubis (v

aouepinb anejoyne
pa)oe| suoljoesuel} oN

pabueys

Jou sem 8819)j0d Buisixe

Jo uoyjeoldde pue pajydope
seioljod Buunoooe mau oN

S3LVINILST
AGNV SIN3WOanr

S3¥NS010SIa
ANIWILVLS
TVIONVNI4 SAILISNIS SANIWIOVNVIN

. . . . SNOILVOINNINNOD HOLIANY a3dIND3y




ls)je] sy} 0} psyoepe usaq oAy paynuspl sjuswisnlpe |eusjewlw| ‘payiuspl sjuswisnipe jpne Juesyiubis oN  »

SINIWLSNray LIaNv 3L03HAHOINN ANV dFLO3IHU0D

uoljua}al INo JO UOIIPUOD B JOU pue $SauIsSng Jo 8sinod Aleuipio
8U] Ul 81om SUOISSNISIP 8S0Y | "Sisjew Jo AJolieA e uo Jeah sy} Jnoybnoly) jJuswabeuew YlMm S)edIUnwiLLod Spf

"SJUBJUNODJE. ISYJ0 YHM Suoe)NSu0d Buiney juswabeuew Jo aieme JON  »

SHHLIVIN 3HLO ONY SNOLLYLTNSNOD
suoljejussaidal ulepeo o) bunssye Juswabeuew wWolj Jaye| psubis B Ulejqo [[IM SpA o

SNOILVINISIH4IN S INIWIADYNYIN
Jipne ay) Buiwioped ul sainoyIp Jo Juswabeuew Yum sjuswoaibesip oN .

SALINIAJIA ANV SINIWIFHOVYSIA

& i _
__ 3

' - . SNOILYDINAWINOD HOLIANY a3dINDIN



aoue)dwoo uo
uoiuido ue ssaidxe
JOu op am ‘alojaiay)
‘aouel|dwoo

JO lipne ue

uuopuad jou pip apA

pauodal

9q 0} palinbai

8le jey] siapew sayjo
Jo @ouejdwosuou

40 saouejsul

Aue ajou jou pip apn

sjuswajels |eioueuly
2y} o} |elajew

pue joalip 8qg pjnom
jey} aoueljdwosuou
|enuajod uo snoo

sjuawaalbe pue
S]OBJJU0D ‘suoie|nbal
‘Sme| Jo suoisiacid
ulepao yum
2oue||dwoD Jo sisa)
uienso pswJiopad app

SININIIHOV INVHO

pajjjusp! usesq
jou 2Aey Jey) Isixe
Aew sessauyeam
jeuajew ‘YIsnamonH

Sassauyeam |eusjew
aq 0] Japisuod
pinom am ey}

sisyew jonuoo Aue

Ajyuspi jou pip opn

S|04JU0D |BUISIUI 3}
JO uoiuido ue ssaidxe
Jou Op am ‘ai0j8i8Y)
‘Bunuodal [ejoueuly
JSA0 ${0.U09 |BUIBIU
3y} JO Jipne ue
wiojiad jou pip apA

sa/npasoud

ipne ino Buubisep
UM uoljoauu0d

ul Buiiodsi jeoueuUy
IS0 S|0AUOD |eLIS]Iul
8y} paiapisuoo apn

ONILHO4d3

IVIONYNIZ
d3A0 STOULNOO
TYNYSLNI

3FONVITdINOD
40 ONILS31
40 S11NsS3y

ANV SL1OVHINOD
SNOLLYTIND3IY ‘SMVYT
HLIM FONYITdINOD

SY3ILIVIN TOHLNOD
TYNHSLNI

.... SNOLLVOIINNININOD ¥OoLIany a3dind3y




sjusWwalels [BIDUBUY 8U} UO NOINIAO @3IdIGONNN  +

uonejuasald
JUSWale]s [elouBUl [|BJIOAO PUB S8JBWIISS JO Ssausjqeuoseal ‘saoljod Buijunoooe sjenjeAy .

siseq }s8) B UO pauloed

aouelInsse s)njosge Jou ‘sjgeuoseal ulejqo o) paubiseq .

2ouepINS Wiojiun 8y} pue spiepue)s
Bunipny juswiuisrog) ‘spiepuels Bunipne pajdasoe Ajjelsusb 'S M YIM S0UBpPI0dO. Ul POWIOLSd




61L-AINOD 0} anp Auoyiny ayj je suondnusip Aue 0} anp s|oJjuoo [eusaiul 0} sebueyo Aue uo pasnood .
wooz ybnouyy Ajojowss pswiopad os|e a1em SUOIIBAISSJO AIOJUSAU|

SUO[}oBISIUI 90B)-0}-208.) 10} [|ED Yoes 1o} WOo07Z Paziiln
3ouUeUl{ YUM S|ED Ul oayo Ajilep pleH

Ajs1owal suop a1em sainpagsold pus-iesk pue wuLul Ylog ‘6L-AIAOD 61 9ng -

11NV LNJNFLVLS TVIONVYNIA




V2N Y} uo soueinsse spinocid Jo uojuido ue ssaldxe Jou op SpA .

spJepue)s Bunipne paydesoe Ajjessuab g M yim
Sdoueplodoe ul uojewlojul Arejuswsiddns paiinbel siy) 0} sainpasoid pejiw ulenso peljdde aney M o

pleog splepuels Buiunosoy
|ejusWLISA0S) 8y} Aq palinbal se sjuswiele)s [eloueUly OIseq 8y} 0} Juswe|ddns e se pajusseld

SISATYNY ® NOISSNOSIA S.LNIWIDYNYIN

—

- = ._ SLHOITHOIH LNINILVLS TVIONYNIL



uoljjiw |"$ 0} ‘puesnoy) Zee$ paseaoul suolelado woly SMoj ysed .

6102 Ul puesnoy)
9% JO asealoul ue 'SA 9Z0z Ul uol|jiw 9'$ JO asealoul ue sem uoinisod jau ul sbueyn .

uoljjiw g'G$ Agq pasealoul uoljisod jau psjousalun .
uol|iw $°'G$ pesesaloul salljiqel] |ejo] .

uol|iw Z'9l$ pasealoul s}jasse [e]o] .

SINIINTLIVLS TVIONVNIL 2ISvd

. . . . SLHOITHOIH ANJINILVLS TTVIONVNIL



0l
suolelspisuo) 61L-AQINOD —ZZ SION -

selousbuljuo) pue SJUSWILIWOD — | Z OJON  »
9}e)S 8y} — syjsusg juswAhojdwz-}sod J8Yi0 — 0Z SJION -
SYHN — slieuag juswhojdwz-jsod JoylO — 61 SION  »
UBld Uoisuad Jysuag pauyyed — gL SJON -
soljl|ioed Jo [ejuey — | BJON -
senjiqer] wus)-buo ur ebueyny — Z| SjoN  «
sjossy |eyden — g SjoN .
SILONLOOH INIWILVLS TVIONVYNIA

L
o
<
5
S
‘
©

\ L)
L)

‘1\

N

U N . SLHOIMHOIH LNIWILYLS TVIONVNIA



L
‘soul|peap 8)e)S 19swW 0} Japlio ul
pleog ayi Aq panoidde aouo sjuswalels [eloueuly duoje-pue)s ay) anssi o} ajqe aq [JIM

laquisnopN Ajies 10 1940)oQ 9)e| 8l1ojaq panssi 8¢ 0} pajoadxs Jou S| aoueping

souepInb yons sanssi },A05) ay) [i3un paje|dwos ag jouued lipne
soueljdwod Bunss) palinbal o) psjejas aouepinb Aue panssi Jou sAey spa4 ‘9)ep o]

(e2ueping wuojiun) ipne ssueldwos
[elepal ay) 0} 198lgns S| pue uoljel)siulWPY UOIIBIAY [elepa 4 8yl Wolj peaAledal
Buipuny 1oV S3YVO [B49PS 4 Ul OZAH Ul N9’ LS [BUORIPPE UE papuadxs Ajuoyiny

31vadn Lianv 3ONVITdINOD Tvy3a3d




cl

"sojpied payyroads asay) uey} 1oy1o suoAue Aq pasn ‘aq Jou pinoys pue ‘oq o} papusiul Jou si pue AJLIoyIny JusWIdooA( 9SBIY UIYNM
$J9y30 pue Juswabeuew ‘si0}aa41( JO pipog ‘@d)WWI0D JPNY Y} JO SN PUR UORULIOLU] 3y} 10§ A[8]0S PapUdIUI SI UOBIIUNUILIOD SIY [

._mm,m:ms_ Jediosulig
Ydo ‘sexnjeg auLieyyey ¥dO ‘QOHSIE IINTY

— o
f
.m_.




!! Berry

Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

We have audited the financial statements of Pease Development Authority (PDA) for the year ended
June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated REPORT DATE. An audit does not relieve
management, or those charged with governance, of their responsibilities.

As stated in our engagement letter dated April 15, 2020, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management
with your oversight are fairly presented in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your
responsibilities.

Our responsibility for the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, as
described by professional standards, is to evaluate the presentation of the supplementary information in
relation to the financial statements as a whole and to report on whether the supplementary information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Professional standards require that we communicate to you our responsibilities under U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit..
We have communicated such information in our communication dated April 23, 2020. Professional
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

PART | - REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by PDA are described in Note 2 to the financial statements.

During the year ended June 30, 2020, no new accounting policies were adopted and the application of
existing policies was not changed. We noted no transactions entered into by PDA during the year for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected.

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

e Management's conclusion that an allowance for doubtful accounts is not necessary for the
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund receivables as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, which is based on the
historical collection rates of these loans.

* The calculation of depreciation expense, which is based on the perceived life of the related capital
assets.

Derrvdunn.com



Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
Page 2

e The estimates used in the calculation of the net pension liability, deferred inflows of resources
and deferred outflows of resources related to the pension plan, which are based on actuarial
information provided by the New Hampshire Retirement System and audited by KPMG.

e The estimates used in the calculation of the net (OPEB) liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and deferred outflows of resources related to the OPEB plans. The net OPEB liability and related
deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources related to the OPEB plan
administered by the State of New Hampshire (the State) are based on information provided by
Segal Consulting, the actuary engaged by the State. The net OPEB liabilities and related deferred
inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources related to the OPEB plan administered
by the New Hampshire Retirement System are based on actuarial information provided by the
NHRS and audited by KPMG.

e The calculation of accounts receivable for CARES Act Funding through the Federal Aviation
Administration are based on salaries and benefits of employees at the Tradeport and the Airport.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accounting estimates in determining
that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:

e The disclosures of the cost-sharing muliiple-employer defined benefit plan required by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68 in Note 18.

o The disclosures of the cost-sharing muitiple-employer other postemployment benefits plans
required by GASB Statement No. 75 in Notes 19 and 20.

¢ The disclosure of commitments and contingencies in Note 21.

o The disclosure of the COVID-19 considerations in Note 22.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
We did not detect any significant audit adjustments as a result of our audit procedures.

The attached schedule summarizes the uncorrected misstatements to the financial statements.
Management has determined that their effects are immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’'s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.



Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
Page 3

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated REPORT DATE.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the Company’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Company’s auditor. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

INTERNAL CONTROL MATTERS

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the business-type activities of PDA as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, in accordance with U. S. generally accepted auditing standards ,
we considered PDA's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of PDA’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of PDA’s internal control.

A deficiency in intemnal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified.

*odk ok ke k ok ok kok ok Kk ok

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee, Board of
Directors, management and others within PDA and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Bangor, Maine
REPORT DATE



Pease Development Authority

142

Year End: June 30, 2020 Preparer Reviewer PIC
Passed Adjusting Journal Entries RER 9 /2373650 R GIESI2020 RE 9/29/2020
Date: 7/1/2019 To 6/30/2020 2nd Partner Reviewed by
Proposed
Number  Date Name Account No Reference Debit Credit Amount Chg
Net Income (Loss) 760,571.14
PAJE1 6/30/2020 Retained Earnings 00-000-3200 196 115,740.20
PAJE1 6/30/2020 Contributed Capital 00-110-3140 196 115,740.20
To adjust for a duplicate
recording of the retainage related to an
FY18 fixed asset addition.
115,740.20 115,740.20 0.00
PAJE2 6/30/2020 Retained Earnings 00-000-3200 CLF.1 100,020.00
PAJE2 6/30/2020 Legal Services 00-010-7710 CLF.1 100,020.00
To record an estimate of the cost
to remove 5 acres of impervious surface as
agreed in the CLF settlement.
100,020.00 100,020.00 100,020.00
215,760.20 215,760.20 100,020.00
10/6/2020
4:45 PM Page 1



z"J

o~
=<

Zir
A~

]

MOTION - ViII. B.

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Authority (PDA) Board of Directors accepts
receipt of the Certified Annual Financial Statements for the years ending
June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2020: all as otherwise prepared and submitted
by PDA’s independent auditor Berry, Dunn, McNeill and Parker, LLC.

Whereas, the Board of Directors further authorizes the Executive
Director to forward the Certified Financial Statements to the State of New

Hampshire when final for inclusion in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report.

Note: Roll Call vote required.

NARESOLVES\ 20203 Audit ~ Certified Financial Statements 10-15.docx

TAKING YOU THERE






Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
DRAFT OCTOBER 6, 2020

Financial Statements,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
and Supplementary Information

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
With Independent Auditor’s Report

_ -

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page(s)
Board of Directors 1
Financial Highlights 2
Independent Auditor’s Report 3-4
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations 5-15
Audited Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position 16
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 17
Statements of Cash Flows 18-19
Notes to the Financial Statements 20-47
48-54

Required Supplementary Information

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters

Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 55-56



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Kevin H. Smith, Chairman
Appointed by the New Hampshire State Governor and Executive Council

Peter J. Loughlin, Vice Chairman
Appointed by the City of Portsmouth and Town of Newington

Robert A. Allard, Treasurer
Appointed by the New Hampshlre Speaker ofm House

Erik Anderson _
Appointed by the City of Portsmouth

Margaret F. La
Appointed by the Town Newmg,nfh
r'-'.-—_ ,."-*'
Neil Levesque L
Appointed by the New Hampshlre We President

Appointed by Straffordfﬁounty__ ive Delegation
Paul san
‘B(ecliﬂve Director and Secretary
Hired by the Pease DEVeIopmenﬁ:Authorlty Board of Directors




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (UNAUDITED)
($ in Thousands)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 |
Consolidated
Revenues
Tradeport $ 8028 $ 8,264 $ 8,361 $ 8,723 $ 9,319
Ports and Harbors 2,474 2,495 2,702 2,869 3,360
Golf Course 2,420 2,472 2,693 2,672 2,492
Aviation 1,237 1,237 1,267 2,006 1,838
Total $14,159 $14,468 $.15,023 $16,270 $.17,009
UNRESTRICTED CASH AND » Debt outstanding has been
CASH EQUIVALENTS significantly reduced, reflecting

lower non-grant related capital
expenditure requirements
across all business units:

$9,000 +°
57,000 4 June 30 | Amount
v 2016 $ 465
$5,000 l t 2017 349
: - 2018 233
$3,000 2019 116
1 -
$1,000 + — e -~ :
2017 2018 2019 2020 » Capital assets excluding
accumulated depreciation, primarily
OPERATING EXPENSES due to third party grant funding and
(EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION) renovations to the Portsmouth
» International Airport, Portsmouth
$15,000 - o Tradeport and Skyhaven Airport
ot have continued to increase during
$12,000 the past several fiscal years:
$9,000 June 30 | Amount
2016 $ 161,023
$6,000 -+ 2017 164,071
2018 170,623
$3,000 ' ’ v ? 2019 173,770
2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 189,692
» Net cash provided by operating
ERITTRISULENCARITAT activities has stabilized during
the past several fiscal years.
$11,000 ¢ June 30 | Amount
2016 $ 4,221
$8,500 2017 3,382
2018 3,189
$6,000 2019 3,182
2020 4,113
$3,500
$1,000 - .

2017 2018 2019 2020



u Berry

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors of
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Pease
Development Authority (PDA), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire, as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related notes te the financial statements, which
collectively comprise PDA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant ke the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from matérial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to finangial audits eontained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the business-type activities of PDA as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the

changes in its net position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

3



Board of Directors of
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that Management'’s Discussion and Analysis on
pages 5 to 15 and the required supplementary information on pages 48 to 56 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements.
The financial highlights section on page 2 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The financial highlights section has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated REPORT
DATE on our consideration of PDA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of PDA’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering PDA’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Bangor, Maine
REPORT DATE

N I



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

This report identifies the Pease Development Authority’s (*PDA”) financial position and describes
PDA’s financial activities over the past three fiscal years. This section of PDA’s annual financial report
is known as “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
("MD&A") and presents our discussion and analysis of PDA’s consolidated financial performance
during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018.

The MD&A is an analysis of the financial condition and operating results of PDA and is intended to
introduce the basic financial statements and notes to those statements. For governmental entities,
an MD&A must be presented in every financial report that includes basic financial statements
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
It is intended to provide an objective and easily readable analysis of PDA’s financial activities based
on currently known facts, decisions, or conditions. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with
PDA’s financial statements and accompanying notes.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: a) Management’s discussion and analysis; b) the basic
audited financial statements which include notes explaining seme of the information in the financial
statements and provide detailed data; and c) required supplementary information.

PDA is a self-supporting entity and follows enterprise fund reporting; accordingly, the financial
statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. The component unit financial
statements offer short and long-term financial infermation about the activities and operations of PDA.
These statements are presented i@ manner similar to a private business.

The statements of net position show the financial pesition of PDA at the end of each fiscal year and
include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, labilities, and deferred inflows of resources. The
total net position is the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
and deferred inflows of reseurces. Over time, an increase in net position is one indicator of an
institution’s financial health.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position report total operating revenues,
operating expenses, nonoperating income (expense), contributed capital and the change in net
position for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,

The statements of cash flows summarize transactions involving cash and cash equivalents during

each fiscal year. The statements provide an additional tool to assess the financial health of the
institution and its ability to generate future cash flows to meet its obligations.

5| uze



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Current Assets

Current assets are those assets that are expected to be used (sold or consumed) within a year, unilike
non-current assets. Current assets are reflected on the statement of net position and are listed in
order of decreasing liquidity. The current asset position of a company is important, both for assessing
its financial strength and for gauging its operational efficiency.

Comparison of 2020 to 2019
Changes in Current Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2020 2019 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,238 $ 7,549 § (2,311) (30.6)
Accounts Receivable - Net 8,942 1,184 7,758 655.2
Other Current Assets 503 586 (84) (14.3)
Total Current Assets $ 14,683 $ 9319 ¢ 5,363 57.5

PDA’s current assets increased by $5.4 million, or 57.5%, primarily due to the increase in 1) accounts
receivable associated with grant related construction activities at Portsmouth International Airport
(PSM) including the terminal expansion and runway renevations and 2) relief funding under the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act. Offsetting this increase in accounts receivable
was a $2.3 million decrease in cash which went to support capital construction projects at both PSM
and non-grant related projects. Accounts receivable included an allowance for doubtful accounts of
approximately 0.1% and 0.5% of total accounts receivable at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Comparison of 2019 to 2018
Changes in Current Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7,549 $ 6,134 $ 1,415 23.1
Accounts Receivable - Net 1,184 2,058 (874) (42.5)
Other Current Assets 586 500 86 17.2
Total Current Assets $ 9.319 $ 8,692 $ 627 7.2

PDA’s current assets increased by $627 thousand, or 7.2%, primarily due to the increases in cash
and cash equivalents, which were offset by a decrease in accounts receivable associated with grant
related capital projects. The primary reason for the increase in cash and cash equivalents was
associated with reduced non-grant related construction activities as well as an increase in accounts
payable and accrued expenses at year-end. Receivables for grant related capital projects were
reflective of fiscal year end construction activities primarily in support of the planned terminal
expansion at Portsmouth International Airport (PSM). Accounts receivable included an allowance for
doubtful accounts of approximately 0.5% and 0.2% of total accounts receivable at June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively.

6 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent amounts that are subject to externally imposed restrictions on their use
by creditors, grantors, laws, regulations, or through constitutional restrictions or enabling legislation.

Comparison of 2020 to 2019
Changes in Restricted Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase 9% Increase

2020 2019 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 447 % 579 $ (132) (22.8)
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund Receivable 1,011 1,012 (1) (0.1)
Accounts Receivable Other - Net 4 5 (1) (20.0)
Total Restricted Assets $ 1,462 $ 1,506 % (134) (8.4)

Total restricted assets decreased by approximately $134 thousand or 8.4%, primarily due to use of
authorized funding from the Capital Budget Overview Committee from the Harbor Dredging and Pier
Maintenance Fund to support various repairs @and renovations associated with the Division of Ports
and Harbors (DPH) operations at the Hampten Harber, Rye Harbor and the Portsmouth Fish Pier.
Total assets associated with the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund had a composite valuation of

approximately $1.2 million at June 30, 2020 and 2019. There were 22 individual loans outstanding
at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Comparison of 2019 to 2018
Changes in Restricted Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase 9% Increase

2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 579 $ 489 $% 90 18.4
Revolving Lean Fishery Fund Receivable 1,012 1,151 (139) (12.1)
Accounts Receivable Other - Net 5 2 3 150.0
Total Restricted Assets 5 1,596 $ 1,642 $ (46) (2.8)

Total restricted assets decreased by approximately $46 thousand, or 2.8%, primarily due to the
decrease in loans receivable balances associated with the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund. Total assets
associated with the Revelving Loan Fishery Fund had a composite valuation of approximately $1.2
million at June 30, 2019 and 2018. There were 22 individual loans outstanding at June 30, 2019 and
26 individual loans outstanding at June 30, 2018. Offsetting this decrease was the authorized funding
provided by the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund to support various repairs and
renovations associated with the Division of Ports and Harbors (DPH) operations at the Hampton
Harbor, Rye Harbor and the Portsmouth Fish Pier.

AR



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

PDA independently develops and maintains the Tradeport. Through the DPH, PDA maintains and
develops New Hampshire's ports, harbors, and navigable tidal rivers. Capital expenditures typically
extend the useful life of an asset and can be financed through internal funds, grant related funding
or access to the capital markets.

Comparison of 2020 to 2019
Changes in Capital Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2020 2019 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Land $ 7,521 % 7,521 % - -
Facilities Improvements 151,254 147,438 3,816 2.7
Equipment 15,450 15,491 (41) (0.3)
Construction in Process 15,467 3,320 12,147 365.9
Gross Capital Assets 189,692 173,770 15,922 9.2
Accumulated Depreciation (114,160) (109.203) 4,957 4.5
Total Capital Assets $ 75,552 $ 64,567 $__10,965 17.0

PDA’s capital acquisitions totaled approximately $16.1 million in 2020 primarily in support of either
federal or state funded projects. The more significant capital projects included runway reconstruction
and terminal expansion activities at PSM. Additional funds were expended in support of equipment
needs and various infrastructure improvements at the DPH, including the functional replacement of
the Barge Dock. Approximately $10.0 million of the total capital expenditures were either grant
funded or supported by the State for purposes of PDA-DPH.

PDA had commitments under construction contracts associated with federal grants totaling
approximately $23.6 million and $32.8 million at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The more
significant commitments under construction contracts at June 30, 2020 included $16.9 million for
the PSM Runway Reconstruction preject, $2.1 million for the PSM Terminal Expansion and $3.7
million for the DPH Functional Replacement of the Barge Dock.

Comparison of 2019 to 2018
Changes in Capital Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Land $ 7,521 % 7,521 % - -
Facilities Improvements 147,438 146,365 1,073 0.7
Equipment 15,491 14,710 781 5.3
Construction in Process 3,320 2,027 1,293 63.8
Gross Capital Assets 173,770 170,623 3,147 1.8
Accumulated Depreciation (109,203) (103,567} (5,636) (5.4)
Total Capital Assets $ 64,567 $ 67.056 $ (2,489) (3.7)

8 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets (concluded)

PDA's capital acquisitions totaled approximately $3.1 million in 2019 primarily in support of either
federal or state funded projects. The more significant capital projects included runway reconstruction
and terminal expansion activities at PSM. Additional funds were expended in support of equipment
needs and various infrastructure improvements at the DPH including the functional replacement of
the Barge Dock. Approximately $1.6 million of the total capital expenditures were either grant funded
or supported by the State for purposes of PDA-DPH.

PDA had commitments under construction contracts associated with federal grants totaling
approximately $32.8 million and $2.4 million at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The more
significant commitments under construction contracts at June 30, 2019 included $24.3 million for
the PSM Runway Reconstruction project, $4.1 million for the PSM Terminal Expansion and $3.9
million for the DPH Functional Replacement of the Barge Dock.

Long-Term Liabilities

Comparison of 2020 to 2019

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

A

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2020 2019 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Other Postemployment Benefits $ 5630 $ 7,292 (1,662) (22.8)
Net Pension Liability 4,198 4,384 (186) (4.2)
Retiree Health Benefit Program 182 273 (91) (33.3)
State of New Hampshire Account Payable 252 252 - -
Compensated Absences — Net 100 95 5 5.3
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 10,362 $ __12,296 $ _ (1,934) 15.7

The PDA decreased its total nencurrent liabilities outstanding during the fiscal year by approximately
$1.9 million, or 15.7%. The maore significant decreases were associated with the changes in the Net
Other Postemployment Benefits and Net Pension Liability. The retirement system realized a 5.7%
return on investments in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The three-year, five-year and 10-year
investment returns for the periods ended June 30, 2019 were 9.3%, 6.4% and 9.9%, respectively.
The retirement system’s assumed rate of investment return is 7.25%.

9|*



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Liabilities (concluded)
Comparison of 2019 to 2018

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Other Postemployment Benefits $ 7,292 § 8,239 § (947) (11.5)

Net Pension Liability 4,384 4,986 (602) (12.1)

Retiree Health Benefit Program 273 364 (91) (25.0)

State of New Hampshire Account Payable 252 252 - -

Compensated Absences — Net 95 96 (1) (1.0)
City of Portsmouth - Waste Water Treatment

Facility - 116 (116) (100.0)

Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 12,296 $ 14,053 $ __(1,757) (12.5)

The PDA decreased its total noncurrent liabilities outstanding during the fiscal year by approximately
$1.8 million, or 12.5%. The more significant decreases were associated with the changes in the Net
Pension Liability and Other Postemployment Benefits which was reflective of the overall 8.9%
investment performance return on plan assets which was greater than the targeted performance
benchmark of 7.25%. During the fiscal year, a total of $116 thousand of total long-term debt was
retired as associated with the PDA’s outstanding obligation to the City of Portsmouth. At the end of
the 2019 fiscal year, PDA’s overall cost of capital was 4.5%.

Net Position
Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of

debt and adding back any unspent proceeds.

Comparison of 2020 to 2019
Statements of Net Position

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2020 2019 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Current Assets $ 14,683 $ 9,319 % 5,364 57.6
Restricted Assets 1,462 1,596 (134) (8.4)
Capital Assets 75,532 64,567 10,965 17.0
Total Assets 91,677 75,482 16,195 21.5
Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,250 1,564 (314) (20.1)
Current Liabilities 10,612 3,309 7,305 220.7
Noncurrent Liabilities 10,362 12,296 (1,934) (15.7)
Total Liabilities 20,974 15,605 5,369 34.4
Deferred Inflows of Resources ) 4,089 3,221 868 26.9
Net Investment in Capital Assets 67,847 63,931 3,916 6.1
Restricted Net Position 1,225 1,342 (136) (10.1)
Unrestricted Net Position (1,208) (7.054) 5,864 83.1
Total Net Position $ 67,864 $ 58,219 $ 9,645 16.6

10 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Net Position (concluded)

PDA's total assets increased $16.2 million, or 21.5%, primarily due to the increase in capital assets
which reflects depreciation expense being less than additions to construction in process. Restricted
assets are primarily represented by the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund, which had an approximate
value of $1.2 million at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

The $5.4 million, or 34.4%, increase in total liabilities was primarily due to increases in payables
associated with capital construction activities. Offsetting this increase were decreases in the Net
Pension Liability and Other Postemployment Benefits. During the fisgal year, the Net Pension Liability
was reduced by $186 thousand while Other Postemployment Bengfits were reduced by $1.7 million,
with both reductions associated with the investment returns of plan assets belng in excess of targeted
benchmarks and changes to assumptions.

Comparison of 2019 to 2018
Statements of Net Position

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Current Assets $ 9,319 % 8,692 % 627 7.2
Restricted Assets 1,596 1,642 (46) (2.8)
Capital Assets 64,567 67,056 (2,489) (3.7)
Total Assets 75.482 77.390 (1.908) (2.5)
Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,564 1,753 (189) (10.8)
Current Liabilities 3,309 4,904 (1,595) (32.5)
Noncurrent Liabilities 12,296 14,053 (1,757) (12.5)
Total Liabilities 15,605 18,957 (3.352) (17.7)
Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,221 2,612 609 23.3
Net Investment in Capital Assets 63,931 64,400 (469) (0.7)
Restricted Net Position 1,342 1,388 (46) (3.3)
Unrestricted Net Position (7.054) (8,213) 1,159 14.1
Total Net Pasition $ 58,219 ¢ 57,575 $ 644 1.1

PDA’s total assets decreased $1.9 million, or 2.5%, primarily due to the decrease in capital assets
which reflects depreciation expense being greater than additions to construction in process.
Restricted assets are primarlly represented by the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund, which had an
approximate value of $1.2 million at June 30, 2019 and 2018.

The $3.4 million, or 17.7%, decrease in total liabilities was primarily due to decreases in the Net
Pension Liability, Other Postemployment Benefits and Accounts Payable for Capital Assets. During
the fiscal year, the Net Pension Liability was reduced by $602 thousand while Other Postemployment
Benefits were reduced by $0.9 million, with both reductions associated with the investment returns
of plan assets being in excess of targeted benchmarks and changes to assumptions.

1]



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position
PDA charges various types of fees for the rental or usage of its land and facilities.
Comparison of 2020 to 2019

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2020 2019 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Operating Revenue
Rental of Facilities $ 10,535 $ 9,792 $ 743 7.6
Fee Revenues 4,299 4,261 38 0.9
Fuel Sales 423 879 (456) (51.9)
Concession and Other Miscellaneous 1,752 1,338 414 30.9
Total Operating Revenues 17,009 16,270 739 4.5
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services and Benefits 7,083 6,243 840 13.5
Depreciation 5,112 5,636 (524) (9.3)
Building and Facilities Maintenance 2,738 1,660 1,078 65.0
Professional Services 600 1,658 (1,058) (63.8)
Other 2,375 2,669 (294) (11.0)
Total Operating Expenses 17,908 17,866 42 0.2
Operating Loss (899) (1,596) 697 43.7
Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic 1,515 - 1,515 100.0
Security Act
Gain on Disposition of Assets 79 - 79 100.0
Interest Expense (3) (8) 5 62.5
Interest Income 69 57 12 21.1
Net Nonoperating Income 1,660 49 1,611 3,287.8
Gain(Loss) Before Contributed Capital 761 (1,547) 2,308 149.2
Contributed Capital 8,884 2,191 6,693 305.5
Change in Net Position 9,645 644 9,001 1,397.7
Net Position at Beginning of Year 58,219 57.575 644 1.1
Net Position at End of Year $ 67.864 $ 58,219 $ 9,645 16.6

12 ¢ %5



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position (continued)
Comparison of 2020 to 2019 (concluded)

Total operating revenues increased by $739 thousand, or 4.5%. Although facilities rentals increased
by 7.6%, those gains were offset due to lost fuel sales as a result of the construction repairs at
Portsmouth Harbor. In addition, the impact of Coronavirus (COVID-19) reduced PSM fuel flowage
fees and pay for parking revenues. To a lesser extent additional increases were associated with
registrations and wharfage and dockage activities at DPH.

Total operating expenses increased by approximately $42 thousand, or 0.2%. The net change in
operating expenses was primarily comprised of two components. Building and facilities maintenance
costs increased, primarily due to harbor dredging activities, which were offset by decreases in
professional services associated with a litigation settlement with the Conservation Law Foundation
that occurred in the prior fiscal year.

Net non-operating income increased by approximately $1.6 million primarily due relief funding under
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act. During the year, PDA did not have to secure
any external borrowings to offset capital expenditures or the need for increased working capital
levels. The ongoing reduction in interest expense.is reflective of PDA’s current ability to internally
fund capital project related activities.

The increase in contributed capital of $6.7 million, or 305.5%, reflects increased grant related
construction projects at PSM and the BAW during the current fiscal year. During the year ended June
30, 2020, a total of $16.1 million was spent on the purchase of capital assets of which approximately
$10.0 million were either grant funded or supported by the State for purposes of PDA-DPH.

Economic Outlook

Due to the COVID-19 global pandemic, certain fiscal year 2020 operating revenues and expenses
associated with the PDA operations were negatively impacted. Lower revenue examples, particularly
due to reduced airline traffic, include fuel flowage fees and pay for parking revenues. Expenses were
impacted for the purchase of materials and supplies including cleaning disinfection, hand sanitizers,
gloves, masks, disposal wipes and related PPG equipment. In total the overall financial impact to the
PDA this fiscal year was relatively immaterial. However at present there is unprecedented uncertainty
surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications to our operations and
or any additional gevernmental actions to mitigate them.

13] 7: e



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position (continued)
Comparison of 2019 to 2018

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Operating Revenue
Rental of Facilities $ 9,792 % 9,468 ¢ 324 3.4
Fee Revenues 4,261 3,327 934 28.1
Fuel Sales 879 838 41 4.9
Concession and Other Miscellaneous 1,338 1,390 (52) (3.7)
Total Operating Revenues 16,270 15,023 1,247 8.3
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services and Benefits 6,243 7,502 (1,259) (16.8)
Depreciation 5,636 5,836 (200) (3.4)
Building and Facilities Maintenance 1,660 1,623 37 2.3
Professional Services 1,658 834 824 99.0
Other 2,669 2,617 52 1.9
Total Operating Expenses 17,866 18,412 (546) (3.0)
Operating Loss (1,596) (3,389) 1,793 52.9
Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Loss on Disposition of Assets - (29) 29 100.0
Interest Expense (8) (13) 5 (38.5)
Interest Income 57 23 34 147.8
Net Non-operating Income (Expense) 49 (19) 68 357.9
Loss Before Contributed Capital (1,547) (3,408) 1,861 54.6
Contributed Capital 2,191 5,244 (3,053) (58.2)
Change in Net Position 644 1,836 (1,192) (64.9)
Net Position at Beginning of Year, as
Previously stated 57,575 65,600 (8,025) (12.2)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting
Principle = (9,861) 9,861 100.0
Net Position at the Beginning of the Year, as
Restated 57,575 55,739 1,836 3.3
Net Position at End of Year $ 58,219 $__572575 % 644 1.1

14]



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONCLUDED)

Change in Net Position (concluded)
Comparison of 2019 to 2018 (concluded)

Total operating revenues increased by $1.2 million, or 8.3%, primarily due to the adoption of pay
for parking and fuel flowage fees at PSM. Additional increases were associated with registrations and
wharfage and dockage activities at DPH as well has facility rentals at the International Tradeport.

Total operating expenses decreased by approximately $0.5 million, or 3.0%. The net change in
operating expenses was primarily comprised of $1.3 million in reduced personnel services and
benefits due to lower pension and postemployment costs, which were offset by $0.8 million in a
litigation settlement with the Conservation Law Foundation.

Net non-operating expense decreased by approximately $68 thousand due te interest income
increases associated with increases in cash and cash eguivalents. In addition, the PDA did not have
to secure any external borrowings to offset capital expenditures @r the need for increased working
capital levels. The ongoing reduction in interest expenses is reflective of PDA’s ability to internally
fund capital project related activities.

The decrease in contributed capital of $3.1 million, or 58.2%, reflects decreased grant related
construction projects at PSM and the DAW during the fiscal year 2019. During the year ended June
30, 2019, a total of $3.1 million was spent on the purchase of capital assets of which approximately
$1.6 million were either grant funded or supported by the State for purposes of PDA-DPH.

Contacting the PDA’'s Leadership Team

This financial report is designed to provide a general averview of PDA’s finances and to demonstrate
PDA’s accountability for the grants that it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional financial informatien, please contact Paul E. Brean, Executive Director, at 55 International
Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 via email at p.brean@peasedev.org or by telephone at 603.433.6088.
Visit the PDA website at: www.pe  edev.ora.

Other members of the PDA’s Leadership Team, effective July 1, 2020, include:

Lynn Hinchee Captain Geno Marconi
General Counsel Director- Division of Ports and Harbors
Anthony Blenkinsop Greg Siegenthaler
Deputy General Counsel Director of Information Technology
Irv Canner, C.P.A. Maria Stowell, P.E.
Director of Finance Engineering Manager
Tanya Coppeta Scott DeVito
Employee Relations Manager Golf Course General Manager
%k ok koK ok

15| Ao



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,237,836 7,548,974
Accounts and Grants Receivable - Net 8,942,292 1,183,811
Other Current Assets 502,452 586,287
Total Current Assets 14,682,580 9,319,072
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 446,969 579,004
Loans and Accounts Receivable - Net 1,015,030 1,016,689
Total Restricted Assets 1,461,999 1,595,693
Capital Assets 75,532,293 64,567,106
Total Assets 91,676,872 75,481,871
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other Postemployment Benefits 558,601 677,926
Pension 691,375 885,913
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,249,976 1,563,839
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 2,214,175 2,099,945
Accounts Payabie for Capital Assets 7,684,817 519,725
Unearned Revenues 713,480 573,312
Current Portion of Noncurrent Liabilities - 116,290
Total Current Liabilities 10,612,472 3,309,272
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Other Postemployment Benefits 5,630,108 7,291,881
Net Pension Liability 4,197,804 4,384,392
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 533,610 619,865
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 10,361,522 12,296,138
Total Liabilities 20,973,994 15,605,410
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other Postemployment Benefits 3,484,546 2,593,514
Pension 604,714 627,495
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,089,260 3,221,009
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 67,847,476 63,931,091
Restricted For:
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund 1,217,830 1,203,959
Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance - 133,695
Foreign Trade Zone 6,768 4,307
Unrestricted (1,208,480) (7,053,761)
Total Net Position $ 67,863,594 58,219,291

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

16' CE e



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Operating Revenues
Rental of Facilities
Fee Revenues:
Golf Course Operations
Mooring, Dockage, Pier Usage and Boat Registrations
All Other
Total Fee Revenues
Fuel Sales
Concession and Other Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personnel Services and Benefits
Depreciation
Building and Facilities Maintenance
General and Administrative
Utilities
Professional Services
All Other

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act
Interest Income
Interest Expense
Gain on Disposition of Capital Assets
Net Nonoperating Income
Gain / (Loss) Before Contributed Capital
Contributed Capital
Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Year

Net Position at End of Year

2020 2019
10,534,983 9,792,325
1,968,036 2,056,393
1,651,599 1,396,540
679,004 807,666
4,298,639 4,260,599
423,284 878,918
1,752,318 1,338,341
17,009,224 16,270,183
7,083,369 6,243,243
5,112,337 5,635,999
2,737,729 1,660,233
895,526 785,076
773,362 738,461
600,044 1,657,838
706,054 1,145,335
17,908,421 17,866,185
(899,197) (1,596,002)
1,514,684 -
68,654 57,587
(2,830) (8,021)
79,260 2
1,659,768 49,566
760,571 (1,546,436)
8,883,732 2,190,991
9,644,303 644,555
58,219,291 57,574,736
67,863,594 58,219,291

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

171



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Cash Received from Customers $
Cash Payments to Personnel for Services and Benefits

Cash Payments to Suppliers of Goods and Services

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Contributed Capital Received

Acquisition of Capital Assets

Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets

Interest Paid on Capital Debt

Repayment of Long-Term Liabilities

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Interest Income Received

(Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $

2020 2019
17,463,980 ¢ 17,117,760
(7,749,616) (6,807,861)
(5,600,905) (7,128,379)

4,113,459 3,181,520
2,327,006 3,440,678
(8,938,064) (5,050,399)

104,892 -
(2,830) (8,021)
(116,290) (116,290)
(6,625,286) (1,734,032)
68,654 57,587
(2,443,173) 1,505,075
8,127,978 6,622,903
5,684,805 $ 8,127,978

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

18 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONCLUDED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation
Compensated Absences - Net

Changes in Operating Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Accounts Receivable
Other Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Unearned Revenues
Retiree Health Benefit Program
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
Net Pension Liability
Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Reconciliation of Noncash Activity:
Contributed Capital Income

Less: Grants Receivable as of End of Year
Add: Grants Receivable as of Prior Year End

Add: Accounts Receivable as of Prior Year End

Acquisition of Capital Assets

Less: Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
as of End of Year

Add: Payments on Short-Term Trade Accounts to Finance
Acquisitions of Capital Assets

Payments for the Acquisition of Capital Assets

2020 2019
(899,197) $ (1,596,002)
5,112,337 5,635,999
4,669 (830)
314,588 (238,848)
83,835 (86,355)
119,325 (80,612)
194,538 269,832
114,230 507,478
140,168 (107,679)
(90,924) (181,847)
(1,661,773) (946,836)
(186,588) (602,008)
891,032 279,054
(22,781) 330,174
4,113,459 $ 3,181,520
8,883,732 $ 2,190,991
(6,810,455) (253,729)
253,729 1,503,416
2,327,006 % 3,440,678
16,103,156  § 3,146,877
(7,684,817) (519,725)
519,725 2,423,247
8,938,064 % 5,050,399

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

19|



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020 and 2019

1.

Reporting Entity

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA"), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire
(the “State”), is the successor entity to the Pease Redevelopment Commission ("PRC”). The PRC
was created on March 21, 1989 by an act of the General Court of the State. The mandate of the
PRC was to prepare a comprehensive plan for the conversion and redevelopment of Pease Air
Force Base. The guiding principles of the plan were job creation, fiscal viability, economic
development, and environmental quality.

Effective June 1, 1990, the PRC was dissolved and PDA was established as its successor with the
goals of converting and redeveloping the Pease International Tradeport ("Tradeport”). PDA is a
component unit of the State and is discretely presented in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report of the State.

PDA is a body corporate and politic with a governing body of seven members. The Governor and
State legislative leadership appoint four members and the City of Portsmouth ("COP") and the
Town of Newington appoint three members.

Pursuant to Chapter 290, Laws of 2001, the New Hampshire State Port Authority (“"Port”), a
former agency of the primary State government, was transferred to PDA effective July 1, 2001.
In doing so, the State authorized the transfer of functions, pewers and duties of the Port to PDA,
acting through the Division of Ports and Harbors ("PDA-DPH"). The PDA-DPH is charged with the
responsibility to: 1) plan for the maintenance and development of the ports, harbors and
navigable tidal rivers of the State; 2) foster and stimulate commerce and the shipment of freight;
3) aid in the development of salt water fisheries and associated industries; 4) cooperate with
any federal agencies or departments in planning the maintenance, development, and use of the
State ports, harbors, and navigable tidal rivers; and 5) plan, develop, maintain, use and operate
land transportation facilities within a 15 mile radius of the PDA-DPH headquarters in Portsmouth,
New Hampshire.

As a result of the transfer of the Port to PDA, the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund
was transferred to PDA. This fund was set up for the purposes of initiating and implementing
harbor dredging projects and maintaining public piers. On July 1, 2001, also as a result of the
transfer of the Port to the PDA, the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund was transferred to the PDA.
The Revelving Loan Fishery Fund was established in July 1994 by the Port through a Federal
Economic Development Administration grant in the amount of $810,000. The grant funds and
related interest earned thereon provide a revolving loan fund to offer direct assistance to the
fishing industry and to aid in the creation of economic opportunities within the industry.

Pursuant to Chapter 356, Laws of 2008, House Bill 65 was enacted by the State Legislature on
July 11, 2008. The bill: 1) provides that service of non-classified employees of PDA shall be
credited as continuous State service for all purposes; 2) makes PDA fund a non-lapsing fund for
the benefit of PDA-DPH; 3) requires a biennial report of the PDA-DPH; and 4) repeals provisions
relative to coordination with the Department of Resources and Economic Development, reports
on economic development programs and the Harbor Management Fund.

20 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Reporting Entity (concluded)

On May 12, 2008, the State, through House Bill 1168-FN-LOCAL, passed legislation that required
the New Hampshire Department of Transportation ("NHDOT") to negotiate a lease, which
became effective November 1, 2008, with PDA for the operation of Skyhaven Airport ("DAW")
located in Rochester, New Hampshire. With the passage of Chapter 113, Laws of 2009, enacted
onJune 22, 2009, the NHDOT was directed to convey ownership of DAW to PDA. The law required
that PDA accept ownership of, manage and operate DAW, and act asthe official Airport owner,
operator, and sponsor. PDA accepted this transfer of ownership, from and after July 1, 2009
with no liability relative to any regulatory matters or causes of action arising prior to November
1, 2008.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements of PDA were prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (“U.S. GAAP”) and as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB”), which is the primary standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. PDA uses enterprise fund reporting,
which uses the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Cash and Cash Eauivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, include cash which is
either held in demand deposit or short-term money market accounts, and highly liquid savings
deposits and investments with original maturities less than three months from the date acquired.

PDA maintains its cash In bank depesit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. PDA has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes it is not
exposed to any significant risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Loans and Accounts Receivable

Loans and accounts receivable are carried at cost, less an allowance for doubtful accounts.
Receivable balances also include outstanding loans from the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund,
including” principal plus aecrued interest. Management provides an allowance for doubtful
accounts based on an analysis of accounts that are delinquent based on payment terms.
Accounts are written off when deemed uncollectible.

Capital Assets

Land, equipment, and buildings and facilities improvements are stated at cost. Depreciation is
computed using a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is
principally five to thirty-five years. Capital asset acquisitions that equal or exceed $5,000 are
capitalized. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged against income as incurred, while
significant renewals and betterments are capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Capital Asset | Years
Buildings 35
Facilities Improvements 20
Equipment 5

21 5w o



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement,
termination, or death, certain employees are compensated for unused sick and vacation leave
(subject to certain limitations) at their then current rates of pay. The liability for vacation leave
is based on the amount earned but not used; for sick leave, it is an estimated amount based on
the amount accumulated at the balance sheet date that would be paid upon retirement. The
liability for sick leave is reflected within noncurrent liabilities while vacation leave is included in
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The calculation is based on the salary rates in effect as
of the date of the statements of net position.

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues include advance greens fees for the golf course, which are based upon a
percentage allocation of the total days the course expects to operate. In addition, unearned
revenues are recorded for mooring permits for the harbors and tidal waters and are based on
the expiration date of the permit. Rental income received in advance is also classified as
unearned revenues.

Net Pension Liability

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the New Hampshire Retirement System ("NHRS”) and additions to/deductions
from the NHRS's fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis as it is reported
by the NHRS.

Other Postemployment Benefits

For the purposes of measuring the net liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits (*OPEB”), and OPEB expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the NHRS OPEB Plan and the State of New
Hampshire OPEB Plan (“the State OPEB Plan”) has been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by NHRS and the State OPEB Plan.

Net Position
Net paosition is presented in the following categories;

o Net investment in capital assets represents capital assets, net of long-and
short-term debt that relates to the purchase of those assets.

e Restricted for specific purpose represents amounts that are expendable but
whose use is subject to an externally imposed restriction.

e Unrestricted represents the remaining balance of net position after the above
net position categories have been determined.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position
are available, management applies unrestricted net position first, unless a determination is made
to use restricted net position. PDA's policy concerning which to apply first varies with the
intended use and legal requirements. Management typically makes this decision on a
transactional basis at the incurrence of the expenditure.

22| " ¥ ol



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (concluded)

Revenue Recoanition

Income from rental of facilities is recognized over the term of the lease net of provisions for
uncollectible accounts. Various other revenues are recorded when earned which is generally
when the related services are performed.

Operating and Nonoperating Income and Expenses

PDA distinguishes between operating revenues and expenses from nenoperating items in the
preparation of its financial statements. PDA’s principal operating revenues resuit from charges
to tenants for the lease or license of property, providing services, and delivering goods.

Operating expenses for PDA include the cost of sales @nd services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses neot meeting these definitions are
reported as nonoperating income.

Contributed Capital and Grants

Federal grants, received on a reimbursement basis, are recerded as contributed capital when
the related expenditures are capital related, Non-capital related grants consist of funds from the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act and are recognized as on the statements of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position as other nonoperating income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affeet the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial eredit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, PDA’s deposits may not be
returned to it. Revised Statue Annotated (RSA) 12-G: 8 (XIII) empowers PDA to invest and
reinvest its funds and take and hold property as security for the payment of funds so invested.
PDA's investment pelicy is more restrictive than applicable New Hampshire law in that it restricts
investments to the following: New Hampshire public deposit investment pool, federal agency
securities, repurchase agreements, commercial paper, money market funds, and certificates of
deposit. PDA’s policy does not explicitly address custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, substantially all of PDA’s cash and equivalents were insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Depositors Insurance Fund.

23] 7 ov s



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

4. Current Accounts and Grants Receivable - Net

Current accounts and grants receivable - net was represented by the following at June 30:

2020 2019
Intergovernmental $ 8,325,139 $ 253,729
Tenants and Other 623,653 936,582
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (6,500) (6,500)
$ 8,942,292 $ 1,183,811

5. Other Current Assets

Other current assets was represented by the following at June 30:

2020 2019
Inventories $ 307,232 $ 410,260
Prepaid Insurance 148,133 143,930
All Other 47,087 32,097

$ 502,452 $ 586,287

6. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents was represented by the following at June 30:

2020 2019
Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance $ 233,443 $ 379,084
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund 206,758 195,613
Foreign Trade Zone 6,768 4,307

$ 446,969 $ 579,004

7. Restricted Loans and Accounts Receivable

Restricted loans and accounts receivable was represented by the following at June 30:

2020 2019
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund
Due Within One Year $ 81,576 $ 155,736
Due in More Than One Year 929,755 856,648
Tenants 3,699 4,305

$ 1,015,030 $ 1,016,689

24| =z e



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

8. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2019 Additions Disposals Transfers 2020
Land $ 7,520,786 $ - $ - % - 3 7,520,786
Buildings and
Facilities
Improvements 147,437,778 - - 3,932,114 151,254,152
Equipment 15,491,506 - (296,799) 140,107 15,450,555
Construction in
Process 3,320,353 16,218,897 - (4,072,221) 15,467,029
173,770,423 16,218,897 (296,799) - 189,692,521
Less Accumulated
Depreciation (109,203,317) (5,112,337) 155,426 - (114,160,228)
$ 64,567,106 $11,106,560 $ (141,373) $ - $ 75,532,293
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2018 Additions Disposals Transfers 2019
Land $ 7,520,786 % - $ - % - % 7,520,786
Buildings and
Facilities
Improvements 146,365,495 - - 1,072,283 147,437,778
Equipment 14,710,627 - - 780,879 15,491,506
Construction in
Process 2,026,638 3,146,877 - (1,853,162) 3,320,353
170,623,546 3,146,877 - - 173,770,423
Less Accumulated
Depreciation (103,567,318) (5,635,999) - - (109,203,317)
$ 67,056,228 $(2,489,122) % - $ - $ 64,567,106

25 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

10.

11.

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues (which are recognized when cash, receivables or other assets are recorded
prior to their being earned) consisted of the following at June 30:

2020 2019
Mooring Permits $ 309,205 $ 257,935
Golf Course Membership Fees 277,033 235,794
All Other 127,242 79,583
$ 713,480 $ 573,312

Mooring permits and golf course membership fees are collected primarily during the months of
January through March and amortized ratably over the corresponding seasons.

Revolving Line of Credit Facility

PDA currently has a $15,000,000 unsecured Revolving Line of Credit Facility ("RLOC") secured
through The Provident Bank, which matures December 31, 2022, The terms of the RLOC provide
that a) the loan shall bear interest at @ per annum rate equal to the thirty (30) day Federal
Home Loan Bank rate plus 250 basis points; and b) PDA shall maintain various covenants that
are to be reported on an annual basis. The proceeds of any draw on the RLOC are to be used
for general working capital purposes of PDA and cash flow needs for capital projects. There were
no amounts outstanding on this RLOC as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Due to City of Portsmouth — Waste Water Treatment Facility

In December 2000, the State Water Poliution Control Revolving Fund program’s debt outstanding
of $6,586,836 was assigned to COP. A supplemental loan agreement was entered into between
the State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund program and COP in order to finance the
construction of the wastewater treatment plant upgrade. In conjunction with the assignment of
the debt to COP, a similar portion of the leasehold improvement for the wastewater treatment
facility was also transferred to COP. PDA agreed to pay an amount totaling $2,457,002 to COP.
Annual payments plus interest at 4.464% are payable through 2020. As of June 30, 2020, the
liability has been paid in full. Amounts totaling $116,290 were outstanding at June 30, 2019.

2% -



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

12. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due in
June 30, June 30, One
2019 Additions Reductions 2020 Year
Other Postemployment $
Benefits $ 7,291,881 $ (1,661,773) $ 5,630,108 $
Net Pension Liability 4,384,392 - (186,588) 4,197,804
Retiree Health Benefit
Program 272,772 - (90,924) 181,848
State of New Hampshire
Account Payable 252,250 - - 252,250
City of Portsmouth -
Waste Water Treatment
Facility 116,290 - (116,290) -
Compensated Absences-
Net
94,843 4,669 - 99,512
$ 12,412,428 $ 4,669 $ (2,055,575) $ 10,361,522 $ -
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:
Balance Balance Due in
June 30, June 30, One
2018 Additions Reductions 2019 Year
Other Postempleyment
Benefits $ 8,238,717 - $ (946,836) $7,291,881 % -
Net Pension Liability 4,986,400 - (602,008) 4,384,392 S
Retiree Health Benefit
Program 454,619 - (181,847) 272,772 -
State of New Hampshire
Account Payable 252,250 - - 252,250 -
City of Portsmouth -
Waste Water
Treatment Facility 232,580 - (116,290) 116,290 116,290
Compensated Absences-
Net
95,673 - (830) 94,843 -
$ 14,260,239 $ - $(1,847,811) $ 12,412,428 $ 116,290

27 | B# g



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

13. Other Noncurrent Liabilities

Other noncurrent liabilities were represented by the following at June 30:

2020 2019
Retiree Health Benefit Program $ 181,848 $ 272,772
State of New Hampshire — Account Payable 252,250 252,250
Compensated Absences - Net 99,512 94,843

$ 533,610 $ 619,865

14. Rental of Facilities

PDA has leasing arrangements with various parties for the rental of land, buildings, and airplane
hangars. Rentals are generally based upon set rental fees with additional payments based upon
gallons of fuel sold or dispensed, ramp parking fees per aircraft, and concession fees based upon
a stated percentage of car rentals. Lease arrangements are primarily for periods ranging from
one to forty-two years. These leases meet the criteria for classification as operating leases. PDA-
DPH has leases, licenses, and other arrangements with various parties for the use of land,
warehouse, and storage facilities.

At June 30, 2020, the projected minimum future revenue from noncancelable rental agreements
is approximately:

Year Amount
2021 $ 10,257,000
2022 9,141,000
2023 8,199,000
2024 7,695,000
2025 7,122,000
Thereafter 77,877,000
$ 120,291,000

15. Municipal Service Fees

Effective July 1, 1998, PDA entered into an amended municipal services agreement with COP
and the Town of Newington to provide various municipal services, including police, fire, and
public works at the Tradeport. This agreement specifies that PDA, through its tenant’s payments,
shall pay COP a fee for the cost of services equal to the amount that would have been paid
annually as ad valorem taxes excluding any school tax component in respect to such property
within the Airport District. COP is responsible for service costs owed to the Town of Newington.
This agreement excludes, as part of the allocated area, the space occupied by PDA and any
space for public use in the PSM Terminal. The agreement includes completed facilities other than
PDA’s golf course or airport terminals within the Airport District operated by PDA for public or
other use. This agreement shall continue to be in force until one of the parties terminates the
agreement in writing.

Any tenant located outside the Airport District, unless otherwise exempt from taxation, shall pay
to COP a payment in lieu of taxes in accordance with the provisions of the New Hampshire law.

28 e e



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

16.

Airport Joint Use Agreement

The Department of the Air Force and PDA are parties to an Airport Joint Use Agreement
("Agreement”) regarding the required use of the airport facilities at the Tradeport by the New
Hampshire Air National Guard as well as for other occasional government aircraft. Subject to
the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the federal government has the use of the airport
facilities in common with other users of the airport together with all necessary and conventional
rights of ingress and egress to and from the related facilities located at the airport.

The federal government is responsible for the functions detailed in the Agreement, including,
but not limited to, the following: air traffic control services, aircraft fire protection and crash
rescue. PDA is responsible for certain services and functions, including, but not limited to, the
following: maintenance of certain facilities, utilities, and ether related services in connection
with maintaining an airport facility in accordance with Federal Aviation Administration
requirements. The current Agreement, which expired on September 30, 2018, is eurrently under
review by both parties.

17. Risk Management

18.

PDA is exposed to various risks of loss at the Tradeport and DAW related to torts; theft of,
damage to and destruction of assets; and natural disaster for which the PDA carries insurance.

PDA has a comprehensive airport liability insurance pelicy.that will provide coverage generally
up to $50,000,000 for each occurrence and im the aggregate in any one annual period of
insurance. Other insurance coverage includes automotive, crime, employment practices, fire,
general liability, pollution, theft, and workers’ compensation. Settlements did not exceed
coverage amounts during fiscal years 2020 and 2019.

In addition to purchasing insurance coverages, PDA maintains a risk transfer program. The PDA’s
agreements and leases Include requirements to provide insurance coverage and coverage
provisions, which.include: 1) naming PDA as an additional insured; 2) naming PDA as loss payee
on property coverage; 3) a waiver of subrogation; and 4) providing that such coverages be
primary and non-contributing with respect to coverage PDA maintains.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

PDA participates In the NHRS, which, as governed by RSA 100-A, is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer contributery public employee defined benefit pension plan qualified under section
401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (“Code”) and funded through a trust, which is exempt from
tax under Code section 501(a). NHRS is a contributory, defined benefit plan providing service,
disability, death and vested retirement benefits to members and their beneficiaries. NHRS retired
members receive a lifetime pension. Substantially all full-time state employees, public school
teachers and administrators, permanent firefighters and permanent police officers within the
State are eligible to participate in NHRS. RSA 100-A specifies the benefit terms provided to the
members of NHRS.

Aithough benefits are funded by member contributions, employer contributions and trust fund
assets, NHRS computes benefits on the basis of members’ Average Final Compensation (“"AFC")
and years of creditable service. Unlike a defined contribution plan, NHRS benefits provided to
members are not dependent upon the amount of contributions paid into NHRS or the investment
return on trust assets.

29 | Puale



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

18. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

To qualify for a normal service retirement, members must have attained the age of 60 years
old. However, a member who commenced service on or after July 1, 2011 shall not receive a
service retirement allowance until attaining the age of 65. The member may receive a reduced
allowance after age 60 if the member has at least 30 years of creditable service. The allowance
shall be reduced based on a formula, for each month by which the date on which benefits
commence precedes the month after which the member attains 65 years of age, by ¥ of one
percent.

For members retiring prior to the age of 65, the yearly pension amount is 1.67% of AFC,
multiplied by years of creditable service. For members retiring at 65 or older, the yearly pension
amount is 1.52% of AFC, multiplied by years of creditable service. For members vested prior to
January 1, 2012, AFC is based on the highest three years of creditable service. For members
not vested prior to January 1, 2012, or hired on or after July 1, 2011, AFC is based on a member’'s
highest five years of creditable service. At age 65, the yearly pension amount is recalculated
with an appropriate graduated reduction based on years and months of creditable service that
the member has at the time of retirement.

Contributions Reguired and Made

The Retirement Plan is financed by contributions from the members, PDA, and investment
earnings. Contributions required to cover that amount of cost not met by the members’
contributions are determined by a biennial actuarial valuation by the Retirement Plan’s actuary.
By statute, the Board of Trustees of NHRS administers the plan and is responsible for the
certification of employer and member contribution rates.

Commencing July 1, 2011, all Group I employees are responsible to accrue contributions at
7.00% while Group II (Pelice) employees accrue contributions at a rate of 11.55%. In terms of
the employer share of contributions made to the Retirement Plan, the pension contribution rate
for Group I employees was 11.08% for the two-year period ending June 30, 2019. Effective July
1, 2019, the employer share was decreased to 10.88% and will remain fixed through June 30,
2021. For Group II employees, effective July 1, 2017, the contribution rate was 25.33% and
remained fixed through June 30, 2019. Effective July 1, 2019, the contribution rate decreased
to 24.77% and will remain fixed though June 30, 2021.

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, contributions to NHRS were $489,081 and
$439,882, respectively.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, PDA reported a liability of $4,197,804 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June
30, 2018 and a measurement date of June 30, 2019. The net pension liability was rolled forward
from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019. PDA’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on
a projection of PDA's long-term share of contributions to NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, PDA’s
proportion of the net pension liability was 0.0872%.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

18. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported a liability of $4,384,392 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June
30, 2017 and a measurement date of June 30, 2018. The net pension liability was rolled forward
from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018. PDA's proportion of the net pension liability was based on
a projection of the PDA’s long-term share of contributions to NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, PDA’s
proportion of the net pension liability was 0.0911%.

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, PDA recognized pension expense of $474,250 and
$437,862, respectively.

At June 30, 2020, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred Inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Net differences between projected and actual

investment earnings on pension plan

investments $ - $ 90,265
Changes in assumptions 150,616 -
Differences between expected and actual
experience 23,210 34,290
Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and share of

contributions 28,468 480,159
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 489,081 -

$ 691,375 $ 604,714

31| Fage



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

18. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Net differences between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan
investments $ - $ 101,459
Changes in assumptions 303,422 -
Differences between expected and actual
experience 34,995 35,501
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and share of
contributions 107,614 490,535
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date
439,882 -
$ 885,913 $ 627,495

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (concluded)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows related to pensions resulting from PDA contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability
in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Year Ended Amount
June 30

2021 $ (27,206)
2022 (232,744)
2023 (122,682)
2024 (19,788)

$ (402,420)

32 FE o



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

18. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Actuarial Assumbptions

The collective total pension liability at June 30, 2020 was determined by a roll forward of the
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, using the following actuarial assumptions, which apply
to 2018 measurements:

Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal

Amortization method Level Percentage-of-Payroll, Closed

Remaining amortization period 21 years beginning July 1, 2018 (30 years beginning
July 1, 2009)

Asset Valuation Method 5 Year smoothed market for funding purposes;
20% corridor

Investment Rate of Return 7.25% netof iInvestment expenses, including inflation

Salary Rate Increase 5.60% awverage, including inflation

Price Inflation 2.50%

Wage Inflation 3.25%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 employee generational mortality tables for males
and females, adjusted for mortality improvements using Seale MP-2015, based on the last
experience study.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the resuits of the
most recent actuarial experience study, which was for the period of July 1, 2010 - June 30,
2015. The actuarial assumptions for contributions made in the year ending June 30, 2019 can
be found in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation report.

Long-Term Rates of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was selected from a best
estimate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected
future real return range is calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation.

33|



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

18. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Following is a table presenting target allocations and the geometric real rates of return for each

asset class:
Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return
Target Target
Asset Class Allocation Allocation 2018 2019
2018 2019
Large Cap Equities 22.50% 22.50% 4.25% 4.25%
Small/Mid Cap Equities 7.50 7.50 4.50 4.50
Total Domestic Equity 30.00 30.00
International Equities (Unhedged) 13.00 13.00 4.50 4.50
Emerging International Equities 7.00 7.00 6.00 6.00
Total International Equity 20.00 20.00
Core Bonds 4.50 9.00 0.50 1.12
Short Duration 2.50 - (0.25) -
Global Multi-Sector Fixed Income 11.00 10.00 1.80 2.46
Absolute Return Fixed Income 7.00 6.00 1.14 1.50
Total Fixed Income 25.0 25.00
Private Equity 5.00 10.00 6.25 7.90
Private Debt 5.00 5.00 4.25 4.86
Opportunistic 5.00 - 2.15 -
15.00 15.00
Real Estate 10.00 10.00 3.25% 3.00%
100.00% 100.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made
at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. For
purposes of the projection, member contributions and employer service cost contributions are
projected based on the expected payroll of current members only. Employer contributions are
determined based on the pension plan’s actuarial funding policy and as required by RSA 100-
A:16. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

34 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

18. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (concluded)

Sensitivity Analvsis

The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what PDA'’s proportionate share of the pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
PDA’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability $ 5,621,033 $ 4,197,804 $ 3,021,517

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued NHRS annual report available from NHRS’ website at Ritps://www. nhrs.org.

The pension plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis used by NHRS.
NHRS’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Both plan
member and employer contributions are reécognized in the period in which contributions are
legally due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value. Investments in both domestic and
non-U.S. securities are valued at eurrent market prices and expressed in U.S. dollars. NHRS
uses a trade-date aeeounting basis for these investments. Investments in non-registered
commingled funds are valued at net asset value as a practical expedient to estimate fair value.

Changes in Assumption for Purposes of Contribution Rates

On July 1, 2016, the Beard of Trustees of NHRS announced a change to adopt revised actuarial
assumptions based on the results of a five-year experience study conducted by the retirement
systems consulting actuary. Included in these changes was the lowering of the assumed rate of
return from 7.75% to 7.25%. This rate was used to set employer contribution rates for fiscal
years 2019, 2020 and 2021. On June 9, 2020, the Board of Trustees voted to reduce the
retirement system’s investment assumptions, lowering the assumed rate of return from 7.25%
to 6.75%. By statute, this valuation will determine employer contribution rates for fiscal years
2022 and 2023.

35 7z iz



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

19. Other Postemployment Benefits - New Hampshire Retirement System

Plan Description

In addition to providing pension benefits, NHRS administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined postemployment medical subsidy healthcare plan designated in statute (RSA 100-A:52,
RSA 100-A:52a and RSA 100-A:52-b) by membership type. The membership types are Group
IT Police Officer and Firefighters, Group I Teachers, Group I Political Subdivision Employees and
Group I State Employees. The NHRS OPEB Plan provides a medical insurance subsidy to qualified
retired members, The medical subsidy is a payment made by NHRS to the former employer or
their insurance administrator toward the cost of health insurance for a qualified retiree, his/her
qualified spouse, and his/her certifiably dependent children with a disability who are living in the
household and being cared for by the retiree. Under specific conditions, the qualified
beneficiaries of members who die while in service may also be eligible for the medical subsidy.
For qualified retirees not eligible for Medicare the subsidy amounts were $375.56 for a single-
person plan and $751.12 for a two-person plan. For those qualified retirees eligible for Medicare,
the amounts were $236.84 for a single-person plan and $473.68 for a two-person plan. There
have been no increases in the monthly maximum subsidy amounts since July 1, 2007. The plan
is closed to new entrants.

Substantially all of the State's employees who were hired on or before June 30, 2003 and have
10 years of service may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age
while working for the State and receive their pensions on a periodic basis rather than a lump
sum. During fiscal year 2004, |legislation was passed that requires State Group I employees
hired on or after July 1, 2003 to have 20 years of State service in order to qualify for health
coverage benefits. These and similar benefits for active employees are authorized by RSA 21-1:
30 and provided through the Employee and Retiree Benefit Risk Management Fund (the “Fund”),
which is the State’s self-insurance fund implemented in October 2003 for active State employees
and retirees.

Contributions Reauired and Made

The State Legislature has indicated it plans to only partially fund (on a pay-as-you-go basis) the
annual required contribution ("ARC”), an actuarially determined rate.

Plan members are not required to contribute to the OPEB Plans. PDA makes annual contributions
to the OPEB Plans equal to the amount required by RSA 100-a: 52. For all Group I employees,
effective July 1, 2017 the annual contribution rate was decreased from 1.64% to 1.07% and
remained fixed through June 30, 2019. Effective July 1, 2019, the contribution rate decreased
to 1.05% and will remain fixed through June 30, 2021. For Group II employees, effective July
1, 2017 the annual contribution rate was increased from 3.84% to 4.10% and remained fixed
through June 30, 2019. Effective July 1, 2019, the contribution rate decreased to 3.66% and
will remain fixed through June 30, 2021.

PDA’s contributions to NHRS for the OPEB Plans for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
were $50,499 and $45,758, respectively, which were equal to its ARC.

36 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

19. Other Postemployment Benefits - New Hampshire Retirement System (continued)

OPEB Liabilities. OPEB Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred

Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2020, PDA reported a liability of $352,220 for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30,
2018 and a measurement date of June 30, 2019. The net OPEB liability was rolled forward from
June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019. PDA’s proportion of the net QPEB liability was based on a
projection of the PDA's long-term share of contributions to NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially detérmined. At June 30, 2019 PDA’s
proportion of the net OPEB liability was 0.0803%.

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported a liability of $384,676 for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30,
2017 and a measurement date of June 30, 2018. The net OPEB liability was rolled forward from
June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018. PDA’s proportion ef the net OPEB liability was based on a
projection of the PDA’s long-term share of contributions to NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018 PDA’s
proportion of the net OPEB liability was 0.0840%.

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, PDA recognized OPEB expense of $6,802 and a
credit of ($870), respectively.

At June 30, 2020, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net differences between projected and actual
investment earnings on OPEB plan investments $ - $ 396
Changes in proportion and differences between
emplayer contributions and share of contributions - 1,790
Differences between expected and actual experience - 613
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 50,499 -
$ 50,499 $ 2,799

37 | P rgs



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2020 and 2019

19. Other Postemployment Benefits - New Hampshire Retirement System (continued)

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference between Projected and actual
investment earnings on OPEB plan investments $ = $ 1,222
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and share of contributions = 10,334
Differences between expected and actual experience 2,258 $ -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 45,758 -
$ 48,016 $ 11,556

Amounts reported as deferred outflows related to pensions resulting from PDA contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability
in the year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended Amount
June 30
2020 $ (2,665)
2021 (263)
2022 27
2023 102
$ (2,799)

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total OPEB liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as
of June 30, 2019, using the following actuarial assumptions, which apply to 2018 measurements:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Investment Rate of Return
Salary Rate Increase

Price Inflation

Wage Inflation

Healthcare cost trend rates
Aging factors

Entry-Age Normal
Level Percentage-of-Payroll, Closed

Not applicable, under satisfactory funding
7.25% net of investment expenses, including inflation
5.60% average, including inflation

2.50% per year
3.25% per year
Not applicable, given the benefits are fixed stipends
Not applicable, given the benefits are fixed stipends

38 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

19. Other Postemployment Benefits ~ New Hampshire Retirement System (continued)

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 healthy annuitant and employee generational
mortality tables for males and females, adjusted for mortality improvements using Scale MP-
2015, based on the last experience study.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of the
most recent actuarial experience study, which was for the period of July 1, 2010 - June 30,
2015. The actuarial assumptions for contributions made in the year ending June 30, 2019 can
be found in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation report.

Lona-Term Rates of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was selected from a best
estimate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected
future real return range is calculated separately for@ach asset glass. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation.

Following is a table presenting target allocations.and the geometric real rates of return for each

asset class:
Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return
Target Target
Allocation Allocation
Asset Class 2018 2019 2018 2019
Large Cap Equities 22.50% 22.50% 4.25% 4.25%
Smali/Mid Cap Equities 7.50 7.50 4.50 4.50
Total Demestic Equity 30.00 30.00
International Equities (Unhedged) 13.00 13.00 4.50 4.50
Emerging International Equities 7.00 7.00 6.00 6.00
Total International Equity 20.00 20.00
Core Bonds 4.50 9.00 0.50 1.12
Short Duration 2.50 - (0.25) =
Global Multi-Sector Fixed Income 11.00 10.00 1.80 2.46
Absolute Return Fixed Income 7.00 6.00 1.14 1.50
Total Fixed Income 25.00 25.00
Private Equity 5.00 10.00 6.25 7.90
Private Debt 5.00 5.00 4.25 4.86
Opportunistic 5.00 - 2.15 -
15.00 15.00
Real Estate 10.00 10.00 3.25% 3.00%
100.00% 100.00%




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

19. Other Postemployment Benefits — New Hampshire Retirement System (concluded)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made
at the current contribution rate and that empioyer contributions will be made under the current
statute by RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the collective total OPEB
liability.

Sensitivity Analvsis

The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what PDA'’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
PDA’s Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability
$ 382,036 $ 352,220 $ 326,312

OPEB Plan Fiduciarv Net Position

Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued NHRS annual report available from NHRS’ website at hitps: /owvww. nhis. org.

The OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis used by NHRS.
NHRS'’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Both plan
member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which contributions are
legally due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value. Investments in both domestic and
non-U.S. securities are valued at current market prices and expressed in U.S. dollars. NHRS
uses a trade-date accounting basis for these investments. Investments in non-registered
commingled funds are valued at net asset value as a practical expedient to estimate fair value.

40| - =



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

20. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire

Plan Description

RSA 21-1:30 specifies that the State provide certain health care benefits for retired employees
and their spouses through a single-employer (primary government and component units)
defined benefit plan. These benefits include group hospitalization, hospital medical care, surgical
care, and other medical care. Substantially all of the State’s employees who were hired on or
before June 30, 2003 and have 10 years of service may become eligible for these benefits if they
reach normal retirement age while working for the State and receive their pensions on a periodic
basis rather than in a lump sum. During fiscal year 2004, legislation was passed that requires
State Group I employees hired on or after July 1, 2003 to have 20 years of state service in order
to qualify for retiree health benefits. During fiscal year 2011, legislation was passed that requires
Group II employees to have 20 years of State servige to qualify for retiree health benefits.
Additionally, during fiscal year 2012, legislation was passed requiring Group I @mployees hired
after July 1, 2011 to have 25 years of State seryice and increasing Group I and II employees
hired after July 1, 2011. These and similar benefits for active employees and retirees are
authorized by RSA 21-1:30 and provided through the:Employee and Retiree Benefit Risk
Management Fund which is the State’s self-insurance internal service fund. The state OPEB Plan
funds the cost of medical and prescription drug claims by charging actuarially developed working
rates to State agencies for participating employees, retirees, and eligible spouses. An additional
major source of funding for retiree benefits is from the.NHRS medical subsidy payment described
in Note 19. No assets are accumulated in @ trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. The State administers the plan. It does not issue a separate stand-alone financial
report.

ntributions Reaul and

The State Legislature has indicated it currently plans to only fund the plan to cover benefit
payments (on a pay-as-you-go basis). PDA’s contributions to the State for the OPEB Plans for
the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 were $111,919 and $115,910, respectively, which
were equal to PDA's share of benefit payments.

OPEB iliti OPEB se, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2020, PDA reported a liability of $5,277,888 for its proportionate share of the State
OPEB Plan liability. The OPEB liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of
December 31, 2018 (adjusted forward using standard actuarial techniques), and a measurement
date of June 30, 2019. The OPEB liability was rolled forward from December 31, 2018 to June
30, 2019. PDA’s proportion of the OPEB liability was based on a projection of the PDA’s long-
term share of contributions to the State relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, PDA’s proportion of the State OPEB
Plan’s liability was 0.2940%.

41 v n



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2020 and 2019

20. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire (continued)

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported a liability of $6,907,205 for its proportionate share of the State
OPEB Plan liability. The OPEB liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of
December 31, 2016 and a measurement date of June 30, 2018. The OPEB liability was rolled
forward from December 31, 2016 to June 30, 2018. PDA’s proportion of the OPEB liability was
based on a projection of the PDA's long-term share of contributions to the State relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30,
2018, PDA’s proportion of the State OPEB Plan’s liability was 0.3616%.

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, PDA recognized OPEB credits of $(495,801) and

$(585,837), respectively.

At June 30, 2020, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outfiows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Changes in assumptions $ - $ 2,357,669
Differences between expected and actual experience - 89,948

Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and share of contributions 396,183 1,034,130
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 111,919 -
$ 508,102 $ 3,481,747

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Changes in assumptions $ - $ 2,540,487
Differences between expected and actual experience - 41,471

Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and share of contributions 514,000 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 115,910 -
$ 629,910 $ 2,581,958

42| -



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

20. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire (continued)

OPEB Liabilities. OPEB Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred

Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (concluded)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows related to OPEB resulting from PDA contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in
the year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended Amount
June 30
2021 $ (868,189)
2022 (868,189)
2023 (868,190)
2024 (480,996)
$ (3,085,564)

Actuarial Assumbptions

The collective total OPEB liability was det@rmined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as
of December 31, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, which apply to 2019

measurements:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method Level percent of payroll, open

Remaining amortization period 30 years

Investment Rate of Return Not applicable as there are no invested assets

Salary Rate Increase = Group I 13.25% decreasing over 9 years to an ultimate level of
3.75%

Salary Rate Increase - Group II 25.5% decreasing over 8 years to an ultimate level of
4.25%

Discount rate 3.50% as of June 30, 2019 and 3.87% as of June 30,
2018

Price Inflation 3.25% per year

Wage Inflation 3.25% per year

Heath care trend rates are based on the following:

o Medical

o Non-Medicare: 6.0% decreasing by 0.25% each year to an ultimate level of 4.5%
per year.

o Medicare- (12.2%) for one year then 4.5% per year.

e Prescription Drugs
o Non-Medicare: 8.0% decreasing by 0.25% each year to an ultimate level of 4.5%
per year.

o Medicare: 7.0% decreasing by 0.25% each year to an ultimate level of 4.5% per
year.

43| o - -



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

20. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (continued):

e Contributions
o Contributions are expected to increase with a blended medical and prescription
drug trend. Because the January 1, 2019 Non-Medicare working rates were
temporarily reduced to spend down reserves, an additional adjustment was
applied in the first year to bring the rates back to the unsubsidized level.

Mortality rates were based on the following:

e Pre-retirement ~ Healthy: RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table projected generationally for
males and females with Scale MP-2015

e Postretirement:
o Healthy: RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected generationally for
males and females with Scale MP-2015
o Disabled: RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table projected generationally for
males and females with Scale MP-2015

e The following scale factors for each member classification are applied to all mortality

tables:
Group I Group II - Police Group II - Fire
Scale — Male 116% 99% 100%
Scale - Female 124% 106% 101%

Effective January 1, 2019, the State implemented a Medicare Advantage plan which contributed
to the reduction in the overall plan liability in the year of implementation.

Discount Rate

Because the State OPEB Plan is not funded, the discount rate is based on the yield or index rate
for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rate of AA/Aa or
higher as shown in the Bond Buyer 20-Bond General Obligation Index (3.87% as of June 30,
2018 and 3.50% as of June 30, 2019). This determination is in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 75.

Chanaes in Assumbptions

Per capita health costs and administrative expenses were recalculated based on more recent
data. The health cost trends were updated to better reflect experience and future expectations.
The projection of the excise tax on high cost health plans beginning in 2022 was revised. The
discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was decreased from 3.87% as of June 30,
2018 to 3.50% as of June 30, 2019. The marriage assumption for future retirees was fowered
from 75% to 70%.

44| = o



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

20.

21,

Other Postemployment Benefits ~ The State of New Hampshire (concluded)

Sensitivitv Analvsis

The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability at June 30, 2020
calculated using the discount rate of 3.50%, as well as what PDA’s proportionate share of the
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point
lower or one-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)
PDA’s Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability
$ 6,065,134 $ 5,277,888 $ 4,585,980

The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the
current trend rates, as well as what PDA’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability would be if
it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rates;

Current Trend
1% Decrease Rates 1% Increase
PDA’s Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability
$ 4,245,806 $ 5,277,888 $ 6,645,241

Commitments and Contingencies

Subsurface Investigation

During site subsurface investigations conducted at the Market Street Terminal (performed, in
part, to support storm water system improvements), the PDA-DPH’s environmental consultant
found several areas of subsurface soils contaminated with significant levels of the heavy metal
mercury. Initial investigations reveal that this contamination is most likely associated with a
commercial wood preservation process that was located on a portion of the site and probably
operated on the site sometime after 1875 and terminated operations before the State acquired
title to the property In the 1960’s and prior to July 1, 2001 when PDA-DPH operations were
transferred from the State to the PDA. The completed study has been submitted to the New
Hampshire Department of Environmental Services and management is awaiting its review and
comment. As of June 30, 2020, no liability has been recorded for future pollution remediation
obligations, as the amount of any such liability is not reasonably determinable.

Grant Administration

PDA receives federal grants, which are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies.
Although these audits could result in expenditure disallowances under the terms of the grants,
it is believed that any required reimbursements would not have a material effect on the financial
statements.

45[?3:



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

21. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
Construction Contracts

PDA had commitments under construction contracts associated with federal grants totaling
approximately $23,666,000 and $32,803,000 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The
more significant commitments under construction contracts at June 30, 2020 included
$16,991,000 for the PSM Runway Reconstruction project, $3,733,000 for the DPH Functional
Replacement of the Barge Dock and $2,108,000 for the PSM Terminal Expansion.

Litigation

From time to time, PDA is involved in pending or threatened lawsuits encountered in the normal
course of business. Management of PDA believes that the ultimate outcome of these matters, to
the extent not covered by insurance, will not have a material impact on PDA’s financial position
or operations.

Settlement Aareement- Conservation Law Foundation

On November 10, 2016, in an action brought under the Citizen Suit provision of the Clean Water
Act ("CWA"), the Conservation Law Foundation (“"CLF") filed a complaint in the United States
District Court for the District of New Hampshire (the “court”) against PDA, its Executive Director,
and Board Members, alleging certain violations of the CWA's permitting requirements. The
matter is captioned Conservation Law Foundation, Inc. v. Pease Development Authority, et al.,
Civil Action No. 1:16-cv-00493-SM. In particular, the Complaint alleged PDA failed to obtain and
comply with a Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (Small MS4) permit and the
associated permit requirements. CLF's Compliant sought injunctive relief and civil penalties.

On January 11, 2019, the Court issued a Joint Notice of Settlement. Elements of the Settlement,
which became effective March 9, 2019 (the “Effective Date”), require that the PDA shall:

1. Design and implement various measures concerning the PDA small MS4 including:

e Submit an application for and supplementary information related to a NPDES
Permit, renewal, or modification, for coverage of discharges subject to the Small
MS4 permitting program;,

e Design and implement:
» A public education and outreach program;
» An illicit discharge detection and elimination system;
» A construction and post-construction runoff and control programs;
> A pollution prevention and good housekeeping program; and

e Provide annual reporting to the CLF.

As of June 30, 2020, the application and supplementary information noted above has been
submitted to the EPA for review. The Authority has completed the public outreach program
and all of the other systems and programs are in process at June 30, 2020.

2. Within five years of the Effective Date, remove a minimum of five acres of Impervious
Surface, as defined. As of June 30, 2020, the five acres has been removed. They continue
to monitor to ensure that adequate treatment has been provided and that the total area
did not increase.

46 | -



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

3. Pay to CLF $800,000 as full and complete satisfaction of CLF’s claim for attorneys’ fees
and costs incurred or to be incurred, including any future attorneys’ fees and costs related
to the implementation or monitoring of compliance with the Settlement. As of June 30,
2020, the full $800,000 had been paid.

22. COVID-19 Considerations

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared coronavirus disease (COVID-19) a
global pandemic. Local, U.S., and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the
spread of COVID-19 by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and
imposing limitations on travel and the size and duration of group gatherings. Most sectors are
experiencing disruption to business operations and may feel further impacts related to delayed
government reimbursement. There is unprecedented uneertainty surrounding the duration of
the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and additional government actions to
mitigate them. Accordingly, while management expeets this matter to impact operating results,
the related financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated.

In April 2020, PDA was awarded $1,637,474 of CARES Act funding through the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA). Under the terms of the FAA grant agreement, only expenses incurred or
debt service payments made on or afterdanuary 20, 2020 are eligible for reimbursement. The
CARES Act grant assurances for eligible expenses will remain in effect through May 25, 2024.
At June 30, 2020, PDA had expended $1,514,684 of the FAA CARES Act funding and this amount
is in accounts and grants receivable at year end.

47| Fuge



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



| 6p

'spojiad buiyrodas oA1dadsel ay3 104 31ep JUBWSINSEIW 9Y3 JO S pajussald S/ sA0qGe UOeLIIOJUT

'S/qEjieA. BLI003q ABY) Se pappe 84 [[im SIESA [BUONIPPY "S1e3A 0T MOYS 01 Papuslul S SjNpPayss

% T8°6S % ZE'99 % Lb'S9 % 0£'8S % 99229 % ELP9 % 65°G9
Aljgen
uoisuad [ejof aya
JO o4 & se uonIsod
39N Adepnpiy uejd
%ST 9P %€EL 12T %80 ¥CT %9 ChT %ZLTET  9%SHOTT  9%GcerT T e
jlodAed
99A0|dWwIz-palano)
s,49A0)dwg
3Yyr4o 9 &

se Aljjiger uoisuad
19N dA03j0D =3y3 Jo
aJeys ajeuoipodold
sd9A0|dwg

000°€08’c$  000'69/°€$  000'SEL’E$

000'c¥8'¢Z$  000°620°c$  000'0ER’'EE  000°8¥8°€S
JjodAed

99A0|dw3-patano)d

s, JoAojdwg

878'€9T'v$  HST'£89't$ 166'SS

v L/6'68Y'S$  00v'986'v$  C6EWBE'PS  HO8'LETbE
Aiger uoisuag
12N 2A1123]]0D dY3 Jo
aJeys ajeuoiododd
s,d9Aojdwig

%ZE0T 0 %¥T0T"0 %TT60°0  %ZL80°0

%Z960°0°  %7860°0 .
Hjigel] uoisusd
19N 2A1309||0D BY3 Jo
uolyiodoud JaAojdwg

otoz 70T 8T0T 610T _ozoz

proz

_Stoz

:0€ Sun( Jo se S| uonewlojul Buimojjoy ayL

I[Iqer] uoisusd JON 9AII09]]0) JO I|npayos

(aairanvNn) (GINNILNOD) NOILVWYOINI AMVINIWITddNS aNFINOIY

(s41ysdwey man jo 33e31S 92Y3 Jo Jun jJusuodwo) y)
ALTYOHLNY LINIWdOT3IAIQ ISVYad



1 08

‘Spoliad bujIo0dad aaj30adsad ay3 10) 18aA (8ISl S,A3I0YINY BYT JO Se Pajuasaid S| SA0GE UOBLUIOU]

"8/qejieae a0 A3y} Se pappe 8q [IIM S1eaA [BUORIPPY "Sie2A 0T MOYS 0) papusiul Si ainpayds

% ¢S0T

% TS°0T

% 98°0T  %9B0OL %207l %8LTT % bl

JlodAed 20Aojdwig

-paJdn0) s, JoAojdwg

Y3 jJo 9% e se

uoiInqifuo) JsAojdwig
000°620'c$ 000°0ch'cs$ 0008¥8'E$S 000°€08°€S 000°69/'€$ 000°SE/'€$ CTo'6ge’ss ™~ — 7 ¢

JlolAed 9aA0|dwi]
paJBA0) S, 19Ao|dwig

suoiNgIIuo)D
19Aojdwig jo
(Aouapyaq) / sseodxg
e
1sAoldw3 jenjoy

T89'8T€ $  STH09€$  B06'ZIV$  £00ETr $  OTS'CGv $  ¢88'65b §  180'68V §

TBO'STE §  Gzp'09€$  806°LIv$  €00'CTy $  9TG'2Sh $  ¢88'6Ev § 180680 §

uoNgIu0D
J9Ao|dw3 padinbay

9T0T L30T 8TOCT 610Z  0zot

__bT0T_ ST0Z

!0€ SuUn[ papud sieaA ayj 104 S| uolzeuriojul BuiMo||0) ayL

SuonNqILIIuo) JoAO[AWIg JO S[NPoyoS

(aarranvNn) (QINNILNOD) NOILVWAOANI AMV.LNIWITddNS AIUINOIY
(enysdwieH MaN j0 93els ayj Jo Jun Jusuodwo) v)

ALTHYOHLNV LNIWdOT13A3A ISVId



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) (UNAUDITED)

Notes to the Reauired Supplementarv Information

Notes:

The roll-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2018 to June
30, 2019 reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual
benefit payments.

The roll-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2017 to June
30, 2018 reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual
benefit payments.

The roll-forward of the total pension liability from Jume 30, 2016 to June
30, 2017 reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual
benefit payments, refunds, and administrative expenses for the plan
year.

The roll-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2015 to June
30, 2016 reflects expected service cost and interest reduced by actual
benefit payments.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2012-2013 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2014-2015 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2016-2017 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2018-2019 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2019-2020 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation.

51|



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) (UNAUDITED)

Schedule of Collective Net Other Postemplovment Benefits (OPEB) Liability

(NHRS OPEB PLAN)
The following information is as of June 30:
Employer Proportion of the
_Collective Net OPEB Liability 0.0803%

2019

2018 2017

0.0840%

.0.0946%  0.0961%

Employer’s Proportionate Share
of the Collective Net OPEB

Liability - $ 352,220 ¢ 384,676
Employer’s Covered-Employee
_Payroll _$2,369,549 $2,311,755

Employer’s Proportionate Share
of the Collective Net OPEB
Liability as a % of the Employer’s

$ 432,717 $ 465,117

$2,523,561  $2,499,949

Covered-Employee Payroll =~~~ 14.86%  16.64%  17,15%  18.61 %
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
% of the Total OPEB Liability 7.75% 7.53 % 7.91%  5.21%
Schedule is intended to show 10 years. Additional years will be added as they become available.
Information above is presented as of the measurement date for the respective reporting periods.
Schedule of Employer Contributions
The following information is for the years ended June 30:
. 2020 2019 2018 2017
Required Employer
Contribution $ 50499 $ 45,758 ¢ 45,795 $ 56,092
Actual Employer
Contributions % 50499 $ 45758 $ 45795 $ 56,092
Excess / (Deficiency) of
_Employer Contributions 3 -3 - $ - % -

Employer’s Covered
Employee Payroll
Employer Contribution as
a % of the Employer’s
Covered-Employee Payroll

2.02%

$2,498,980  $2,369,549  $2,311,755

2 193%

$ 2,523,561

L1.98% 2.22%.

Schedule is intended to show 10 years. Additional years will be added as they become available.

Information above is presented as of the Authority’s fiscal year for the respective reporting periods.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) (UNAUDITED)

Notes to the Required Supplementarv Information

Notes:  The roll-forward of the total OPEB liability from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019 reflects
expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments, refunds, and
administrative expenses for the plan year.

The roll-forward of the total OPEB liability from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018 reflects
expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments, refunds, and
administrative expenses for the plan year.

The roli-forward of the total OPEB liability from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017 reflects

expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments, refunds, and
administrative expenses for the plan year.

53] -



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) (UNAUDITED)

Schedule of Collective Net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liabilitv
(STATE OPEB PLAN)

The following information is as of June 30:

Employer Proportion of the Collective
Net OPEB Liability  0.2940%  0.3616%  0.3501% _  0.3345%_
Employer’s Proportionate Share of the
Collective Net OPEB Liability ~  $5,277,888 $6,907,205 $7,806,000 _ $9,618,388
_Employer’s Covered-Employee Payroll _ $3,735,000 $3,765,000 = $3,803,000 $3,848,000
Employer’s Proportionate Share of the
Collective Net OPEB Liability as a % of
the Employer’s Covered-Employee
Payroll 14131 % 183.46% _ 20526 %  249.96 %
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a % of
the Total OPEB Liability B 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %

Schedule is intended to show 10 years. Additional years will be added as they become available.

Information above is presented as of the measurement date for the respective reporting periods.

Notes to the Reauired Supplementary Information

There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB 75 paragraph 4 to
pay related benefits.

Changes of assumptions: Changes in assumptions reflect trend assumption revisions to
reflect current experience and future expectations. The discount rate decreased from 3.87%
as of June 30, 2018 to 3.50% as of June 30, 2019. The discount rate increased from 2.85%
as of June 30, 2017 to 3.87% as of June 30, 2018.

Notes: The roll-forward of the total OPEB liability from December 31, 2018 to June 30, 2019
reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments,
refunds, and administrative expenses for the plan year.

ok kK ok



“ Berry
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of Pease
Development Authority (PDA), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise PDA’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated REPORT DATE.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered PDA’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an @pinion on the effectiveness of PDA’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion.on the effectiveness of PDA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in intérnal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal contrel that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether PDA's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

55|



Board of Directors of
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
PDA’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering PDA’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bangor, Maine
REPORT DATE

56 |



EEASE

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION - VII.B.2.

Director Fournier:

The Pease Development Authority (“PDA") Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Deputy General Counsel, Anthony I. Blenkinsop, to endorse
all checks, drafts, depository agreements and/or other related bank
documents in accordance with the powers previously granted by this Board
to the Treasurer, Executive Director, General Counsel, and Manager of
Engineering of the PDA concerning PDA bank accounts, and consistent with
bank resolutions previously adopted. The authority hereby conferred shall
be and remain in full force and effect until written notice of the revocation
is presented.

The following appointed official and employees are authorized to
endorse all checks, drafts, depository agreements and/or other related
bank documents in accordance with the powers so granted:

Robert Allard Treasurer

Paul E. Brean Executive Director

Lynn Marie Hinchee General Counsel
Anthony I. Blenkinsop Deputy General Counsel
Maria Stowell Manager of Engineering

The authority hereby conferred upon the above named Agents shall be and
remain in full force and effect until written notice of the revocation is
presented; all in accordance with a memorandum from Irv Canner, Finance
Director, dated October 8, 2020.

NARESOLVES\2020\Deputy General Counsel signatory on checks 10-15-2020.docx

P TAKING YOU THERE






» -
PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

Date: October 8, 2020

To: Paul Brean, Executive Director

From: Irving Canner, Director of Finance

Subject: Additional Signatory- Bank Relationships

With the impending retirement of General Counsel Lynn Hinchee later this year, along with the current
work environment specific to the Covid-19 pandemic, where personnel are working remotely in certain
circumstances, | think it prudent to request that our Deputy General Counsel, Anthony Blenkinsop, be
added as an authorized signatory to our banking relationships. This would be all inclusive specific to the
Provident Bank, Cambridge Bank and Trust and Partners Bank and in doing so provide us an additional
employee to endorse all checks, drafts, depository agreements and or other related bank documents.

Accordingly, in order to authorize this change, | ask that we obtain the approval from the Pease
Development Authority Board of Directors during the October 15, 2020 meeting.

As always, please let me know if you have any questions or the need for supplemental information.

TAKING YOU THERE







—
PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 3o inernedone Doive Ta0 oz 0000 oo 0230
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

Date: October 6, 2020

To: Paul Brean, Executive Director
From:  Irv Canner, Director of Finance \‘ﬁ///”d/ ’

Subject: Executive Summary- Financial Reports

In anticipation of the upcoming October 15t Pease Development Authority Board meeting, the following is
an Executive Summary of the two financial reports for your review and comment:

Report #1- Financial Report for the Two-Month Period Ending August 31, 2020

As is the case in the first quarter of the new fiscal year, budget variances typically underrun primarily due to
the extensive cut-off procedures associated with the prior year audit engagement. At this time, there are no
meaningful trends that have been identified that would challenge the FY 2021 operating budget.

Actual operating revenues of $3.5 million are above budget primarily due to the increase in fee revenues
associated with wharfage and dockage, golf course related public play revenues and Grill 28 concession fees.
Slightly offsetting these revenue gains were the decreased fuel revenues associated with the reconstruction
of the Portsmouth Fish Pier wall as well as pay for parking revenues at PSM.

Actual operating expenses of $2.1 million are below budget primarily due to expense under runs in
marketing, utilities and the cost of fuel at the Portsmouth Fish Pier, Offsetting these underruns, budget
overruns have been in employee benefits associated with the New Hampshire Retirement System.

The resulting Operating Income of $1.4 million is $896,000 greater than expected which directly contributed
to our ability to address internal working capital requirements and somewhat minimize the the need to draw-
down from the $15,000,000 Revolving Line of Credit (RLOC) with the Provident Bank.

A

Business Unit Performance

Portsmouth Airport

Operating revenues total $215,000 which is below budget by $92,000. The primary reason is the budget
under-run in pay for parking revenues and fuel flowage fees. Current enplanements are less than the prior
year due, in part, to the Covid 19 pandemic.

Skyhaven Airport

Operating revenues total $ 48,000 which is above budget by $7,000. The primary reason for the favorable
variance was primarily due to higher fuel sales of 5,098 gallons versus 4,169 gallons on a fiscal year to date
basis. Cumulative net cash flow losses, since accepting the operational responsibilities for Skyhaven Airport
during FY 2009, now total approximately $1.7 million.




Report #1- Financial Report for the Two-Month Period Ending August 31, 2020 (continued)

Business Unit Performance (continued)

Tradeport

Operating revenues total $1,701,000 which is above budget. The primary reason for the favorable variance is
associated with rental of facilities.

Golf Course

Operating revenues total $1,054,000 which is above budget. The primary reasons are associated with public
play at the golf course. A total of 12,437 rounds were played this August versus 10,514 rounds the prior
August. Gross revenues at the Grill 28 $429,513 are somewhat less (8.9%) than the prior two-month period
ending August 31.

Division of Ports and Harbors

Unrestricted operating revenues total $441,000 which is slightly less than budgeted revenues of $501,000.
The lost fuel sales at the Portsmouth Fish Pier have been offset by incremental wharfage and dockage fee
revenue.

Balance Sheet (Page #8)

Total current assets are $13.1 million consisting primarily of $4.4 million in unrestricted cash and $8.3 million
in accounts receivables. Net cash balances (PDA $2.5 million and DPH $1.9 million) have decreased by
$861,000 since June 30, 2020 due to the following activities:

Operating Income S 1,437,000
RLOC Line of Credit Draw Down 4,500,000
Grant Funding 2,581,000
Accounts Payable (3,726,000)
Capital Expenditures (4,209,000}
Accounts Receivables 768,000
All Other- Net {490,000)

Total . S 861,000

2| s



Report #1- Financial Report for the Two-Month Period Ending August 31, 2020 (continued)

Balance Sheet (Page #8)

The majority of the accounts receivable balances can be attributable to federal or state construction
activities. Also included in the accounts receivable balance is $1.6 million awarded to the PDA specificto the
CARES Act funding through the Federal Aviation Administration.

Restricted assets total approximately $1.5 million and consist primarily of the Revolving Loan Fund which has
total assets of $S1.2 million. At present, there are 22 participant loans outstanding.

Capital assets have increased approximately $3.3 million to $78.9 million primarily due to the extensive
capital improvements at PSM including the terminal expansion and runway reconstruction project. During
the two-month period ending August 31, the more significant capital expenditures included:

* PSM Runway Reconstruction Project S 2,835,000
¢ PSM Terminal Expansion 1,271,000
® PSM Eldorado Bus 72,000
e All Other 31,000

Total $ 4,209,000

Total current assets are approximately $9.1 million, representing a $1.6 million decrease from June 30, 2020.
Accounts payables represent $6.2 million, reflecting a $3.7 million decrease from June 30, 2020. In addition,
during August we requested a $2.5 million draw down from our RLOC at the Provident Bank to help offset the
cash needs in supporting of the two primary capital projects at PSM.

Updated net pension and OPEB liability for the PDA at June 30, 2020 total $9.8 million which is a $1.9 million
decrease from the prior year. The 16.2% reduction was associated with the investment returns of plan assets
being in excess of targeted benchmarks and changes in assumptions.

As noted on page #5, the current PDA Organization Chart reflects 64 filled benefited positions and 2 open
benefited positions.

3|¥s3



Report #2- Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending June 30, 2021

During the next nine-month period internal cash flow projections are dominated by approximately $23.5
million in capital expenditures primarily in support of the PSM Runway Reconstruction Project and the PSM
Terminal Expansion. Of these monies, $15.1 million will be grant funded requiring the PDA to draw upwards
of $10.0 million through our $15.0 million RLOC with the Provident Bank. Based on current expectations of
actual grant reimbursements during this period, the net debt outstanding is projected at $6.5 million at June

30, 2021.

Revenue projections have been modified due to the coronavirus environment as associated with the
reopening of the golf course and Grill 28 operations. To a lesser extent PSM Pay for Parking revenues and fuel

flowage fees are also anticipated to be less than budgeted.

Page # 3 provides the detailed monthly cash flow projections noting the minimum cash balances remain at
approximately $1.0 million to allow the PDA to address its ongoing working capital requirements. Again, a
critical component in developing these cash flow projections is the timely reimbursement process associated
with grant funded capital projects in the total amount of $20.2 million. Included in these projections are $1.6
million in monies allocated to PSM under the CARES Act Grant.

PROJECTED CASH AND DEBT BALANCES

(3 000's)
)

h

'
)

PROJECTED
- s CASH % 1,308

|
)
i
1)
¢
3
)

Through September 30, 2020 the PDA has accessed $4.5 million from the $15.0 million RLOC with the
Provident Bank at a rate of approximately 2.9%. Current available funds under the RLOC are $10.5 million.

At your-convenience, | would be pleased to address any questions or supplemental information

you may need.

417 zz



00T ‘ST ¥3490100
ONILI3FW SHOLOIUIA 40 Qiuvod

020 ‘TE€ 1SNDNV DNIAN3I
doId3d HLNOW OML 3H1 JO4
130d3Y TVIDNVYNIL TZ20C Ad

.




£6TY 8ETT (GZ5) €9

il

SAHOA I A0 117
P oA AATSNS GO0 1

FWOINE ONLLVHIHO 1IN

7871 G978 NOTLVIDINZO ‘ _ ONIDIOAN
HAGONTA 1208 A4 OMNIATADS Y NI LY =
e
. ISHIAKEI GuV (FRCONT)
=Y LA ONTLVEIAONON
»
70S°T o68 I+5 P O FWOSNT ONLLYHIHO
G6LET (Z9%) TeE ¢ ¥S0C .

fox Fave) HIHLO TiY

% SIT A8 ¥IMOT
NOLLOW S He S1S0D ONILVHEG0 =
GNY ONLEDINYW

‘@ ‘ S507 AdIATIIC 13104 ddd A8 135440

i8S SATS TN NOLdisvH *
i it

13

Y 1

o ¥

SASKIAKI DNILYHILO SISYIHINT AS 135440
HAIM O3 LIVIDOSSY 5

(e 2yt

679 T98'C T6F'E SINNIAIY DNLLYHIAO

-l
2
M
‘d‘

|

Y% 0T A8 HIHOTH
-SIMINIAIY ONILYYHIdO .-

izoang FINVIUYA 139anyg WNLOV
AYIA ¥YIA 3ivy Jiva SISATVNY IDNVINVA LIOANY
LRINAEND LAY END 0L W¥IA 01 UY¥IA

0C0C ‘TE 1SNONV
ONIAN3I AdOIddd HINOW OML IHL 304
. SASNIAX3 ANV SINNIATY 40 INIWILVIS dILVaI1oSNOD



(66)

&
LM,
-

ANRATY OGO 1 TN L SNNTANY BTN WSo s
AEHI L fals el
; - ) {6E)
I oy 8 9

5 DNVIEVA  L3900NE YLDV ~SATVS T
i3sang

195078 WAV 3ivo OTSVIAWSd
TOEST 829 7997 Ve

IO tEG e SHEE AT edid NI e

13N -UAHLO TV

SEUIE WM 0 FINDDOE] (ki T S “E Hioe

ASTANYHOUIW

b &5 [t 4709
ANNIATE

o8 NOISS3DNOO

T

SANNIATY 334

SALLITIOVS
40 TY1NITY

SEVG 0L BV AA SR IATY T4

G4 dvEi

0202 ‘T€ 1SNONVY
ONIAN3 AOI¥3d HLNOW OML IH1 304
SINNIATY ONILVYIdO AILVAITOSNOD



x
Lo
r~

=+
3
|
3|

09Z°1T {921
Wl = Hod e = —
CEE GLE

v i g5 SUANIET = G I BNy 435 TR |

‘ NHTEN
SNOILISOd Q3LI43IN38 a311d
ui 9

651 09 &7 9% BT ap1" g1 561

SiI43NTT
FONIEA

7t
A 8t SIDUNEIS
- . TINNOSYId
MO o 85
il . e 13sang  IoNyrwya  1390N8 WLV

GZO0T "TE€ 1SNODAV 40 SV HYIA HYIA uygol ool
Am}_ﬁuwnlw.mo.u Dm.—.:”u: SISALTYNY 44VLS ANF™END AINZHEND MYAA HVAA

020C ‘1€ 1SNONV
ONIAN3 AOId3d HLINOW OML IH1 304
SLI4IN3IE ANV SIDIAYUIAS TINNOSHId dILVAITOSNOD



w . 1SISSV NINGY __ LSISSY NIWQY __ dO dInoa
. £ HSTYM I9vd SYNSNYINYF
YEPTs) LSHIVIOadS = saLMOVE | dOdInd3
bEETT AOOMMMI HLYOMAaoOM
SSHvIoads o wago) L dodinoa
TSRS 40 dIN03 XX0
SIIDHS d0 dino3 dO dind3
o -
LLYEN T3¥NNa SNIT10D
SHyRIEs ¥34NS NVI10 40 dinD3
— E =
HONONGGOM NIREL SYLSYNY
1SISSV NINQY _ S | sosmusissy | doainos
3T13Ho0NY P ANYTIANIN MO1SYvs
uaLsvn ASyiaSds e NVIORILO3 1T d0 dino3
gYVH -
doHSIg 1avuo
NOTNVH NOLLng
1SIvI93ds
1SISSV LOOV _ OINVHOIW _ ALRINO3S SdO Qv31 = SINNAAYL L~ 4O dIND3
VAVOVT GIONYY EEERTES NYHIFW NOLYON NNNQ
(NFI0) UIOVNYW
LINVLNNODOV NVWINOL avan 1SISSV
TI0YAVd 4 SONNOYUD w ALINNO3S NINAY o INADY M JONVNILNIVI
NVWI102 ETIVEL HIONITIOd NIVIWIQ $do ava SNV
¥adns 1618V OYd ST FINVITdWOD IN3DV JINVHIIW
.Fzmw_ﬂ@wg iU mpmmy__%%% il (5o ——— . 43IHO ALNd3A | WNOYIANT «f Q3lSnuL LSISSV
A Ay T~ l— o N .._ STOHOIN NVH3IIHS N3QAOS ATTMVYION
S e UIDYNVIW
(L) 3DNVYNIH H3dns 1SISSVY NIwav HOW SdO VOAVH YIAOVYNYIN NIWGY
40 Loz _| 253N02 RRdvod NINTHL NOSYHIANV 431HD 103C0Ud ALNNOIS o  HIOUNVW
1sissv vauo as3iy &1 = MONLLYHS SALVKW 94341104 dino3 WALSAS 11
43d00D AZINOD NOS¥ILLVd
— SNOILIVIZY _ HIOVNYI .r
39NVNIA UIOYNVI 33A071403 oId3uId ONINNV1d YIDVYNVK For YOLOIUIA HI3L
40 ¥OL103NIa A ENED) HIOVNYIN 1¥0d NOILVIAV UIINIONT 40 HIASYNYH NOIYVWYOINI
HIANNYD oL ¥13dd0D INOJUVK
b n3a 2 AOHINOJ 113MmoLs SIATHONOD ¥3VHINOAIS
TESNNOD LNVLSISSY
IvHaNas oI
ALNG3a N0
JOSNDINTE |
LYVHD
Ivuanae
IIHONIH P
v NOILVZINVOYO LNIHAND
IALLNDAX3 e

NV3I¥d Invd



2
R
Bl
Lanang
BY3A

LMAHUND

vis

Foo

HMVIA
ANTHHD

ADINYIHVA
EETS
ANIWEND

Z€)

FINFIEYA
UYIA
AINSHHND

[
!

~i
0
~

132ang
ALvQa

Ol 8V3A

138409
FEiVa
O.i BY3IA

TVNLOV

3iva
OL ¥¥3A

0s

it
TYNLDV
ALVG

Qi Wyda

HIHLT
17

L

R

SITIAYNTS

T¥NOISSIH0¥d

1H490ny
WAL
ANIYUHND

"

ONIAN3 AOodad

4

i

FINVIHVA
¥YIA
ANAHEND
T
Tl_
FINKIUVA
UVIA
LNFHETD

135404
AL940
OL ¥¥3A

Li90Ng
2L¥a
C1 dv3a

£

My

F1¥C

IVALDY
31va
L dvai

TNV

SILLITLLN

JAILVHISINIWGY

O1 ¥VaX

anv

0¢0Z ‘1€ LSNONV
HLINOW OM1 FHL Y04

SASN3IdX3 DNILVIIdO ¥43H1LO A3LVAITOSNOD



08e

JETY HNYY

h.wﬂﬁ_.‘mw ,...,”._wﬁ_
T 1 WA

ISNIdXT LISTHITINT

Z.000 %3

HAHLO
ANV IWODNIT
AS5HYAINT

ASN3IdX3
LEIYALN]

13sang FDNVIHYA
HEEDS ELER ig2ang WILLDY
ANIRAND ANAWHNS HiVO 04 J1V0 OL
dviaA ¥vaA

020Z ‘1€ 1SNDNV

- DNIAN3 aOoIy3d HLINOW OML 3H1 ¥O4
ASN3IdX3 (IWODINI) ONILVIIdONON AILVAITOSNOD




LGNV

L TVNLE O 103rEns (1 671 £6T’T
S1ON TED'89 NOILLISOd 13N V104

5
— i e SMOTALNO OIHYI4FA

- _ , HETT) (4LORUSTING . )

923 TF 104 = iy 86716  VvOV'EG SLASSY WI0L

WA

923 OTE’T AN i Z€SSZ 58787
UG O3NS
) SHANG LN o
NOLLISOd 1IN _
) FROF 680V
SAUNOSH
40 SMOTINT G5
9T 8P'T i
SHOBUYH 3 et
ANV SLUOG
40 NOISTAIU
97T
ZT9°0T ZT%
. STTET
ALRIOHINY - 0057
INFWAOTIAIG
3Is¥ad LIl
TADTISTd  OaIoTIGaaNn 589°L
_020c T< ISNoNv 1v STALLTTGYIT ANIHEND SLISSY INAHUND
SINTTWAINDI GRY NS5V
(1ioz0T 0ToT SILLIVEEVIT (1) oz0E 0zouT S1ISSY

0€ NNC SNy 0EWAL  TEONY

NOILISOd 13N 40 SINIWILVLS A3LVAITOSNOD



g2 = NOLL T LSNOD GRY HIVdT Y d-dd Hdd
M NOLAWY - e

NOLIVATIAYEY Hild NIv 1

HIO0 ADUYE - INIWEOV I TYNOTIONSS Hat

985 e DINTENIHE HO8VH 34d Hd

B - 85 85 : AUYMLH0S ONY ALl

< AAVHSd

PE-GT AVMMNOE LNTHLISNC 3 1isd

X3 ONICITING NI

0057

¥ 91Q ALY 04 AUVHS FLVE OL QAYYMY 1D3coud Hiva JWVN 0
AINVIVE  A3IAIFOIY VG GIONAdXT INVHD IVIOL TWASAddY

020Z 'T€ 1SNODNV 40 SV
SIATIVAIIDIY TVINIWNUYIAODYILNI 40 AUVIWWANS



oL

0TO'ST

Q-1E-80
iv
JINYIVY

2
=)
-
=

ZTI0v 8TT) BEGET

9 £ 0887

o8’y

2602 {b% div)

LHOdAIV HINDKSL1HOd

[ X
WYL I LINVId WYEA i FWVYN ID3f0dd
AMIBAND 13N O YFASNVHL ANIFAIND FONWIYE

SSFUD0Ud NI XYOM NOILONYLSNOD 40 AUVIWWNS



L

(8,000

ASNVYNILINIVW

NOLLYVYISINIWQY

LHOdHIV NIAVHANS

JWVN ID3roud

GC-1E-80 HENYHO IOTIAYAS STUNLIANTS NI DZ-0g~94
LY HVE A MI LN I Yy iy
ADNVIVE INFUUND L3N 01 YIASNVHIL LHAMUN JONVIVE

)

SSIUD0Ud NI XHOM NOILONALSNOD

HO3CRNLLNOD)

40 AYVIWWNS



0S5°6T £80%

ove’T Tt
7
GL-1E-80 ADNVHD

v
ONYVIVE

HVEA

ANZHAOD 13N

s.000 %)

SSTUDOUd NI YYOM NOLLINYLSNOD 40 AUVWWNS

42

SIUNLIANIIRNT
HYHA
ENGHAND

9%'ST

6ZST

™~

TL0CL

NOLLDMHEASHO ONY ¢

A0 A3DWYE - INJNADY 5 d TYNOE LN

(HdA) SYOHUVH ONY SiHOd 40 NOISIAL

FWVN 153r0d




el

F ST LA B THEININY 0

J

[4:3

TEDE A
NI GV

vl
AEN 40 AIVLS TWOS-

INTFWAVITYE ALTTIGVIT
W¥3L ONOT 40 FTINAIHIS

FLON

L
wn
)|
m
n

G 8t

Efgtel MOLL 0 NO1LMO0d
INNOWY wadlL INE¥HND
TYLOL ONOT

ALTIT9YY
MDIS A3INYLOV

JYIHSdWVH
M3N 40 J1VIS

{1) WydOOoud
AUVD HLTVIH
3391138 1S0d
JUIHSdWY i
MiIN 40 JLVLSE

020Z ‘I€ 1SNDNV 40 SY

SALLITIGVIT W33l OSNOT



147

WO

(86%'7) F & 4 4 1087] €E9 ONTLIVETJO LIN

NOILYIDIHda3a

§45°8¢

{g5) (z2) FWOOWT BHILYSA40

EER'LB

MAHLO T Ve

LTI comanm— W1 {I{ e AT mem—

Viva INIWINVIdNT

I 8 BELT Z6) 708 T4
78S ) B 15

N

iFes {1z} g e, AR T4

d {04

IV iINTH

SANMAAAY
BE [y, 5Tz BHNILVHIAO

SANMIATY
SMILYH30

_‘ LIdOdAIIV HLNOWS140d
0Z0C 'TE€ 1SNDNV DNIANI AOId3d
HLINOW OM.L FHL 404 SNOILVY3IdO 40 INJWILVLS



(8Z%)

188

JWOONI
{6z ONLLVYIHO 13N

NOLLVIDFHAHI
FSNHGXT

NV (IWOONI)
ONLLVHIdONON

£3 AWOONT ONLLVHEIJO

SLHINTE Oy
5 SADANIS TENNOSYHd

53SN3IdX3
ONLLVHIdO

SANNIATH
DNILVHEIJO

[CI44 9 I 2] ot) Wil Gt

A = e LR 10T A

(&1 a5 . (20 o 0755 A4

oy L0 Avd3y  anddx3 LEEET MO

993G WD HEYD jaN

6. LR 601’y

A JL¥a
WAL G4 Hv3a

GI0s
N4 40
SNOTIVD

110 SINNIATY
OL ¥vas ONLLYHIHO

LY0dAIV NIAVHANS

0Z0T 'T€ 1SNODNV DSNIAN3I dOIy3d

HLNOW OMI FHL ¥Od SNOILVY3dO 40 LNFWILVLS



9l

6958

@

SHTTANIS

NOZIVIDIYESIG

| SENHAXT
ANy (3HOINTD

SHILYHIAONON

FWODNI
SNILVEIZD

IALLYHLST ¥
CINY TYINGS

SASNFdXT
DOMELIVEAGO
SANNAAIY
ONLLYHAdO

RS [ R

.5 Y

§ SE HAH T¥L0

[ 52! b Y e

CEl e bl 3
9 26 LAY W E

MR QL Ad

BT

q:'
b
™~
=2
P
—
<
-
-t

SININIAIH

] HYEA DNILYHE40

130d3avydl

0202 ‘I€ 1SNODNV DONIAN3I AOo1y3d
HLNOW OML FHL ¥04 SNOILYY3IdO 40 INIWILVIS



FWOINI
961 ONLIVHIALO i3k

758 [¢3) s 06F (4

L8F

5 NOLLVIDANAAG
HSHAdRT

ANy {IW0INT)

ONLLYVYIdONON

£SS FHODINT ONLLYHILO0

NOTLOWOH -
&b {4} z / TN OINLLTAYIN

IO TN

1y 061 (21)
NYHIMA R

65 16T G8H §77 8E

@
-
v
-]
i

2 3 1Y L/
SASNIAXI
ONLLVHIO
1 6 v £ SINNAATY
% s o ONLLYHIO
M4 SITMIADH uﬁ”ﬂ%ﬂ(b w_mFHﬁ__H_m
1L SHILVEIMO s WG :

e Cil. HVEA

| 3SWNOD 4109
0Z0Z ‘T€ 1SNONV HNIANI AOIY3d
. HLNOW OML JHL ¥Od4 SNOLLVY3dO 40 INIWILVLS



230 L} L Erk L g M BWw Wy Wi
S S 2o =
QLA nonve
0ZOT Ad ——
ZEGEE LIGACF S D96 HIT i
(MOSVIS) SANNOE HIFWIWHNON [ 239WIW 0202
“8 =13 O SAY KIVY
NOSYIS LA Qi
5107 6107 0z0¢
; i o't (L8N GO0 0
L I

81

Ri0Y -

(NOSVES) GIAVId 410D 40 SANNOQH

VLIVA ONINHYVIWHONEEG 3SUNO0D 4709 A



(£73]

MEH

VNV

OB

3

PMERLS

ATAYY N

(6T)

L

HAId M0
HLNOWS [d0d

HOTYVH
HOLSWWYH

¥ ST V0

825 ONLLYHIH0
SINNANTE
o6 SNLLVYHIA0

SISATYNY
HOSHY LING
AAd SSANISNH

61

T0S

o™~

SNGLLVEISIDTY

SNEAUYd

i BHTHO0W
ANNAASY 334

AR AT
NOISSIINOD

SANNIATYH
DNTIVYIdO

1

%7

.,\..“.dqln_ A

R

ol

hET

8g

£1

AWGINT 40 L3N

NOIIVIDHE GG
FSNIdX3

ANV {FHOINT
ONLLYHIJONON

HHOTNT DONLLVHAGC

IALLVHLSINING Y
TNY VAN

TONVNIINIVIN iy
4 ONY SDRICING

\NOS3

SASHALAXE

ONILVY3dO

SANNIAI
DNILVAHSO

(GFLOIYLSTUNN) FHYIHSAWVYH M3IN 40 ALTHOHLNY L3Od
00T ‘T€ 1SNODNY DNIANI dOIy3d

HLNOW OM1 FHL Y04 SNOILVYIdO 40 INIFWILVIS



0¢

[E))]

(4]

&
gt

69

91

a2l

IWODNT
IMAG0 L3N

£3 NOIIVIDIANGTT

ASMISNI

DNIIYHIdONON

AWOONI
34 SNILVESGO

MOSYHEd
SASNAIXT

DNIAVHIJC

SANNAATY

Ee BNILYH¥IdO

ONIDHAas¥a
H4O09dYH

a1

]

goans DONVIIVA  amang
v Hv a1va
WIS LNZWAND L ¥v3A

i

WNLDY
A1
O.L HYHA

FWOINT
OMILY N340 13N
NOIL¥IDAdGI0

FENHdXT
ANV (FWOINT)
HONLIVEIdONON

FHOZNI
DNILLVYHILD

SAENIAXI
ONLEVYHIHO

SAINNIATH
SNLLTE340

IANOZ 3aViL
NDI

(A31014153¥) JUIHSdWVYH M3N 40 ALTIYOHLINY L30d
0Z0Z ‘1€ 1SNDNV DNIAN3I AOIy3d
HINOW OML JHL 404 SNOILVY3IdO 40 LNIWILVLS




FWOIN]

ORI L STIOTE FIOTTNT () £T @ E ONLLY 30 LN
NOLLYISIYdIU
4SNTd X
any (AWOINI)
o DML LY AIFONON
e - () %o ~31VY
e NOLIVZTILIN £1 {z} 4 : AWOINT ONILYHIHO
TWildvd
87

<y
a4 &
DNIAGNYISLINO
SNVYGT
(¥4

a3dALS

SN TVEENED

SIONVIVE HSVD SASHAIXH

INILVHI40
£-80

1% IONYIVE SANNIATY
DONILVYHIdO

HOLLVITIDONODIY ONNd NVGT ONIATOAIY ——
WY GZH>JO>WI

N

1L WV,

{aanNNILNOD)

(G31014153) JYIHSAWVYH M3N 40 ALTHOHLNY L30d
0207 ‘T€ LSNODNV DSNIANI AdOIy3d
2 HLNOW OMIL JHL 404 SNOILVY3dO 40 INIWILVIS






ELQNLIY 11013430 ISV

0Z0Z'ST ¥3F01D0 N
ONILIIW SHYOLIIUIA 40 QYOS |

TZ0T ‘0€ ANNC
ONIAN3 dOI¥3d HLNOW 3ININ
JHL J40d4 SNOILD3IL0OUd MOTd HSYD




Sob'E 6cC’T IYLOL
$T HT a3LVYNDISIa R
80C'T JONVIVE ANNd DNISOTD
1SH'E T4 ¥ AILOTYLISTAUNN
0202-05-90 0Z0Z-05-60 AL MO HSVD 1IN
1V IDNVIVE LV IDNVIvVE SADNVIVE ANNd TY1OL TTE
1830 XNVYE =B
89 INIWINILTY 1SOd -HN 40 J1VLS
HSYD GILORILSTUNN ~orboence
A AWW WY WWW 83 W 53d  AoN 10 . QL L3N ~(d0D) 334 FDIAYAS TVDIDINNAN
— m G/S'/ SASNIdXT ONLLVYIO
OA1I3C0Hd e ,
: 114'8 (L#-5# 539Vd 335) INVUD-NON -STUNLIANIAXT TVLIdYD
S — 0€T'ST (p# 39Vd 335) INVID -STINLIANIAXT TVLIdVD
005’0 $ 40 : SANN4d 40 s3sn
4834 GALIIC0Ud 4
: 0006 -
2 THTTE
— 12T SANNIATY 13N ANV YYONVH LHOJYIV NIAYHANS
SADNVIVE 193d ANV HSVYD G31DIAC0oud 098 ONDIdVd ANV 334 3DYMOT 13N 'SISVIT -L¥0OdNIV WSd
4709 ANV 140d43avu L OZH%m_\W_RM_VN_ MWM%MN_\M\MWW@WM_@AOUW 002'1 SINNIATY NOISSIONOD ANV 334 3SUNO0D 470D
INIFWIASANGWITY ANV TANLIANIAXT VLIdYD FHL 40 .
AQVANIOV (2 NOISNVdX3 TYNIWYIL WSd FHI 40 JAISNTONI 000°c (OINVE INJAIAOUd) LIGHD 40 INITONIATOAY
SQUVMY INVHD J1V1S / 1v¥3a3d 40 LdIF3DF (T IANTONI s
SNOILLDACOYUd FANLNI AYVMOL SATLIALLISNIS INTHHND 0vL9 SLNVNIL 140d3avdL
"SINIWIIINOTY WLIdYD DNDIFYOM YO ANV STUNLIANIAXT Tze'oe (8# 39vd 335) STUVMY LNVID
IWVLIdYD d31Lv13d INVYD-NON a3 1D3(0ud IDONYNIA OL MNvE
INIAINOYd IHL HLIM S3TLTTIDVL 11a34D S,LT37ZTT1LN OL SANN4d 40 S3ADUNOS
d33N FHL 31VdIDIINY S30A vad IHL FWIL SIHL 1V
- GCET JONVIVE ANNd SNIN3JO
NOISSNOSIa (5,000 $)
INNOWVY

(5,000 $)

TZ0Z ‘0€ ANNC OL 020C ‘T ¥390.100
(SHOGHIVH ANV SL1M¥Od F0 NOISINIA ONIANTIXI) ;mH >¢m >o >¢<zz:m BOJH— —..—m<u
ALTYOHLNV LNIWdO13IAIA ISV



80C'T 80T'T LEET €IS'T 8SET 660°T L66 6v6 16 TL0T FONVIVA ANNd ONISOTD

(£171) (621) (9/71) ST 65¢ zot 8t L€ (091) (€52) MO1d HSYD 13N
v8Rce £€6¢¢C 0111 GGT'E SPET G8ET 5287 SIV'9 86775 1056
INIWIATLTY
89 39 - - - - - - - - 1S0d -HN 40 31VLS
00£'C 0S€'T - - - - - 05e'T 3 - T34 FDIAYES WAIDINNI
VAW 528 518 008 Gz8 008 0S8 000'T Ge8 G€8 SASNIdXT ONILYYIdO
1T+'8 0§ S6¢ 1 0zs 658 S88'T 5981 0Lb'T 9TH'T Fzéu«ﬂm&m@mwﬁ
P , , s , (b# 39Vd 335)
0£T'ST - - 000'T - o€ 06 097t 00S’€ 0S¢t QALVIRE INVAD -TVLIdVD
SaNnd 30 Isn
[97'EE ¥oT'C 76 0TEE P09'T Z8v'T €/87C z1979 GE9S 8vC6
000'¢ (0o0'e)  (00%) 000C (oos't) - - 00S - 00S'p L3N -ONIONYNIH TYNY3LX3
TZT vl v1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €l qT LAOdUIV NIAVHANS
502 T4 14 (114 0¢ 5¢ T4 SC 0 0¢ 5334 A9YMOTH WSd
S€C S¢ ¢ 0g 0€ S¢ S¢ 0z 0T qT ONDRIVd Y04 AVd WSd
(1747 Sb 0s Sb Sb 0s Sb b 0s S (IWSd) -14OdHIV HLNOWSLIOd
002’1 0S¢ 081 St 08 0§ 59 002 Sz1 YA 35UN0D 4109
529t 052 S/€ 0SZ 0S¢ S/€ 0S¢ 0S¢ VA3 0S¢ 334 3DIAYIS WdIDINNW
0bL'9 174 14 14 05 174 0S/ obL 74 okt SINVNAL 130d3aviL
Tee'oe 06L'E = wt 916’1 v6T 00L'T 61L'v 6P 88b’c (8% 39¥4 335) SAYYMY INVYO
SaNnd 30 S3oUN0OS
STET ZEET €1S°T T

8Se°'T 660'T 66 616 c16 Lo’ SCET FONVIVEa dNNd ONINIdO

|

violL NNC dv Y 3d NVL E[¢] AON

>
<
=
=
Ol

— (SANT AIIOTIISTIN
(s¥0g¥VH ANV $180d 40 NoISIAIA FHL 9N1anx?) AMOTd HSYD 40 LINIWILVYLS

ALTYOHLNV LNIWdOT3IA3Q 3ASVid



IYAOUddY QdvOd ONIANId +x+
10N

0ET'ST - 000 = 0e 06 09C’¢c 00s't 0sC’L 1violL

LAOJYIV NIAVHMAS

.

0ST'ST - - 000¢ - o< 06 09C¢ 005°¢ 08¢Z
00S - - - = - - 008 - - 1INIWINDI TYAOWTY MONS
09 - - - = 0z 0¢ 0¢ - 5 ANV WNLTYOFYY-QYATINOE ISVYad
Ot - - - - 0T 0T 01 01 00+ (£9 d1v) AVE A1OH HLNOS ¥ ML
. (9 dIv)
0112t - - 000°¢ - - 01 005’1 00" 002’9 NOLLDNYLSNODTY $€-9T AVMNNY
06 = - - = - - = 06 - (8G d1v) NOIS3A #€-9T AVMNNY
(W0'2$ -99 dIV) NOLLDNMYLSNOD
08¢ = - - - - - 0¢ 001 0sZ ANV NOISIA NOISNVAXT TYNIWYIL
, (W9'T$ -29 dIV) NOLLDMYISNOD
088’1 - - - = - 0§ 00¢ 006 00t ANV NOISIA NOISNYAX3 TYNINYIL
1AOdAIV HLNOWSLUOd
S1D3rodd
INFWISYNIWIFT INVUD

V101 NAC AV Udv UV [-EE] NVT 33d AON D0

(5,000 $)

(SYOGYVH ANV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIAQ FHL ONIANTIXH) mmm =|—|Hn z mmxm I—<|—|HQ<U
ALTYOHLNY LNIWdO13A3AQ 3SVad



IYAOUddY QUvOd ONIANId *x
‘310N

0LT - - (174 (114 oV ot - - -
08 E = - - ot )4 - - - SIAVUDIN WOOUH LYE
0C - = = 0¢ - - - 3 2 s S1S0D ALTTLLN
0L - = 0L = - - - - - s+ YIMOW HONOY AVMAIIVA
3S¥N0D 4705
T4 = : g€ - B of S &  of T—_—
St - = - - - St - sor LNIWADVIATY YIAYIS NIV
0§ - - o4 - - - ¥4 - - sox SINAWIDONVHNT ADOTONHIAL
#x SNOLLYDINNWWODI 1AL
0¢ - = ) - - 0T E - 01 / PAYMLI0S / SYTLNIY / SYFLNdWNOD
NOILVYLSININGY
.Qﬂ W.Ne ot - z = z w|.ﬂ E z
SC ST - - - - - = = - s+ ONIGTING TYNIWYAL ONIHOOUTY
ST - 2 = - - - qT - - xx SYO0A FUS
TJ0d4UIV NIAVHAIS
S153foud
INFWISINTWITd INVIONON
IVIOoI NAL AVA ¥dv IVH a3d NVT 33a AON 30
(5,000 $) :(@INNILNOD)

(SYOFGHVH ANV S130d 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIANTIXT) mmz :-—-HQ z mmxm I—<|—|Hm<u
ALTYOHLNY INJIWdOT3AIA 3SVad



TVAOUddY QuvOd ONIANI *x
‘310N

09872 14 0S¢ 0S¢ 00S 00S 0281 00871 007’1 SIET
ST - - - - - - - - q1 5x3AVADAN ALTINDAS VHINWYD
*x VIV WIVID
T4 Y4 - - - - - . - - I9VYOOVE -ONTHOOTH TYNIWHIL
078’ - 062 0S¢ 00§ 00S 078’1 0081 00%'T 00g'T NOISNYdX3 TWNIWYIL
Td0d44dIvV HINOWS1d0d
(@INNLINOD) S IArOdud
INTWISANGWITd INVIONON

V10N NNC AVIA ddv AUV g34 NVL pE[] AON 130
:(aanNILNoD)

(5,000 $)

(SY09YVH ANV SLY¥0d 40 NOISINIA FHL ONIANTIXT) mmﬂ— :-—-HQ z mh—xm I—<|—|H“<U
ALTYOHLINVY LNIWdOT13IA3A 3SVAd



WAOUddY QUVOEd DNIANI ««
410N

T8 0S S6¢ GSE 0Zs SSS G881 S98'T 0LY'T 91T viol
L |
H||.H - Wﬂ = = - - = = .@N
xx INTWIDV 14T
1T - St - = - = = - 9/ 13374 IDIHIA
FONVNILNIVIW
56 - g - : st 5T 4 L4 st
St - - - - ST ST ST ST ST ANFWLVIYL dFLVMIWIOLS
0¢ = = - - = - 01 0T - xx DNTHOLINOW DIV L
140d3avil
(@3INNLNOD)
S10300Ud LINFWISUNGWITY
JINVIONON
IVIOL NNC AV Hdv VA a33 NVC 53a AON 130
(QaNNILNOD)
(s,000 $)

(SYOGYVH ANV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIAGNTIXT) mmm :-—-HQ z m &xm I—<|—IHQ<U
ALTYOHLNY LNINWdOT13AIQ 3ASVad



TCC'0C 06L°€

o
-l
O
i
Ql
-l
<
-l
=
(=
l\‘l
-
9
=l
I\.'
<
ﬁil
3
o~
<
3
<
[}

Ivi0L
- - - - - - - - - - (£-99S) NOISAA NOYdY TYNIWIL
LAOdYUIV NIAVHIIS
S/Y - - - - - e Sip = = LINIWAINOT TYAOWIN MONS
A - - - LS - - - - - JAV WNLTHOTUY -QYVAITNOE 3S¥3d
€61 - - - = - - - 06T 3 AVE AOH HLNOS V ML
£09°T - - - - - - - - £09'T 1OV STYD
969'G 008’1 - - 008'1 - - 960'C = : QUVN9 TYNOLLYN U1V -AVMNNY
) , ) , , (9 dIv)
696°6 066'T = - TT - 0S/ 0€S'T 000'% 8891 NOILDNALSNODTY +E-9T AVMNNY
74 - - 74 - - - - - - (8S dI¥) NDIS3A ¥£-9T AVMNNY
{W0'Z$ -99 dIv)
NOLLDMULSNOD
50§ - = - - 8¢ G6 8€C 9 08 ANV NSISIA NOISNVXT TYNIWYIL
(W9'T$ -79 dIv)
NOLLONYLSNOD
91 = - VA% 8 991 qs8 08¢ 8¢ 01T ANV NOISIA NOISNYdX3 T¥NIWYAL
1HOJdIIV HLINOWSIYJOd

IviolL NNt AV dqdav IR EEE NVC 33d AON 10

(5,000 $)

(S4094VH ANV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIANTIXT) mam<;< |—|Z§ w -—lﬂ HNU“N—
ALTYOHLNY LNIWdO1T3dA3A 3SVad



610 —=— B8I0T -

00T ==

uwo. AON ) .GO mmw B ony . R ) ><Z. & - m«.i. ; a3d . .Z{_”. ", =
Q6T 00'Y
_, 05T JIUINVIVND ILVIS
IHL AYAVYD LON $30d
%t 00T Y3H1O0
. ik 0s°¢ WNWINIW ON NAMOaMvid
e = | 2 40 IZIS WNWINIW
oo
_ SINIOd SISvd
. 5 ' 0sz + (DISSV1D)
gTH4 HLNOW 3NO J1VY LSIYILNI
dN-XAVIW + F1LVY L1STUTINI (DISSVID) G1Hd HLINOW INO IHL ONIGNTIL -
"'SC33aN
TVLIdVD ONIIIOM
ANV SINFWIAOYUAWI
TVLIdYD aNNd OL asodind
_ 220T-1£-21 JLva WyalL
- %S58'C JOVHIANY
J3LHOIIM
g 00s'v 005’01 >._._.zm_mm:m_u._mum_guoﬂ«
(O0TY) YNVE
371avIdVA T20T-1£-21 - 00s't LINIAIAOYUd FHL ALTTIDVA
000°sT 1Ia3UD 40 LNNOWV
% 31V 31Iva 0C0C-0£-90 0Z0Z-0£-60 STSATYNV 193G
1STYILNI ALTYNLVYIW 1V 1V ONIANVYLSLNO
ADONVIVE JONVIVE SINVE (Oomt) 11a3wdD
IN3QIAO¥d FHL 40 HALLIT ONIATOATY
(5,000 $)
SISATVNY 1930 ONIANVLISLNO ANV SAILITIDVH 1L1d3dD
6 ALTNOHILINY LNIWdO13A3A 3SVd



vy €4S
L q INOZ QAL NOIFHOS
L0T X43 aNNd NYOT ONIATOATY
€€e Sk ONIDATYA YOGUVH
ISANNL aILDOTILSTY
(41 €ST SANN4 @3LVONIS3A
129'T €8T SANN4 A3LOTHISTUNN
020Z-0£-90 020C-0£-60
LV 3DNVIVE 1V 3DNVIVE SIONVIVE ANNd TV.LOL

il A¥D ddy VI 934 HY 3a ACN L20

-'ll'l'u

’l’l' s oot ey

; - o
_FIBSHSYD ) nlr-.llll-r-ll.lll.\\.l.llll.l..fl’l szt 3
GIUOTHISIUND — &

SIINVIVE HSVD QILOTULSTUNN A3 LDIAC0Ud

ALTIEYIT WY3L ONOT "AaINIWE313A 39 OL 134 SvH ‘(NISvE
ONINYNL ¥IARY VNOVIVISId) ¥-N4-52 9H HLIM Q3 LYIDOSSY
31Vd 1SFEILINT ANV QOTdad NOLLYZILHOWY NYOT 25¢ $

AWILIINO IFAOTdINT

40 LNJWNIVLNOD QINNILNOD (v ANV ZOH._,N_E‘:mZOU

13N (€ “SWIV1D NOILYSNIJIWOD SyIMYOM (Z ‘sann4
JONVNILNIVIN ¥31d ANV ONIOAIIA JOHVH 40 3SN ANV
1SYOIH0H FUNLIANIAXT TVLIdYD 40 ADVINDDY (T IAMNTIONI
SNOLLDAOHd FANLNS QAYMOL SATLIATLISNIS LNTAIND

NOISSNOSIa

S6H'T

vZ6'T
S6
§9€
SLE
PSS
689

€8t

INNOWV

FONVIVd ANNd DNISOT1D

MOTd HSVD 13N

INIWIEILTY LSOd -HN 40 3LVLS
Y3HLO ANV SFTANLIANIAXT TVLIdYD
SISNIdXT ONILYYILO
INIWIAIND0Yd 13Nd

S1I43N39 ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSHAd

SANNd 40 s3asn

S334 ONDIIVd

5334 ONIHOOW

IOVIYVHM / SNOLLVYLSIOFY
SNOISSIONOD GNV STVLINIY ALTTIOVS
SIVS 13and

SANNd 40 SADUNOS

JONVIVE ANNd DNINIdO

(5,000 $)

TZ0Z ‘0€ INNC OL 0Z0Z ‘T ¥390100
(sannd a3woriiszy oviantxs) AMAITAYIAO AAVIWIWNS MO14d HSYD

0} §

SUYOFAVH ANV SLHO0d 40 NOISIAIA



198 198 96 T80T a8T'T T6C'T 9T1T'T aQ9T'T QLT 0T AONVIVE ANNd DNISOTO

(zz9) (€o1) (811) (oom) (60T) 9T € (€1m) (zem) (94) MO HSVD 13N

965C 10V 97T 752 T9€ T9¢ (314 85t VT4 9TC

8T 8¢ L n = - - - - ] INIWIALLIY 1SOd -HN 40 F1V1S
0octT - (04 - - 014 - - 014 = YIHLO ANV SUNLIANIdXT TV LIdVD
(114 - - 01 = - - 0T - - SADIAYAS TYNOISSIH0Yd
L6 a 0T 01 01 01 0t 0T 6T 0T SALLTTIOVA ANY SONIATING
44" €1 €T €T ! v1 €t bl bl bl JALLVALISININGY GNY Tv¥INID
8ST L1 LT L1 0T 0z 61 LT 91 ST SALLITLLN
9SS V4 V2 29 29 LS LS LS 29 (S INIWTUNDOU 13N
S6Y'T  09C T4 14! ST 0zt 0z1 0S¢ 0z1 0z1 ANV SFDIAYIS ,mzﬂ%w%m

SANN4 40 Isn

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

vZ6'T  86¢C 85T LET 44 /8¢ 44 (74 GET ObT
SLE 6Z1 - - T4 - - T4 - - JOVLIVHM / SNOLLYILSIONY
S6 ¢ 0z 01 - 5 - - 01 0¢C $334 ONDRIVd
S9€ - - - - S9¢ 00T = = - S33d4 DNTMOOW
585 Sz St 59 59 09 09 09 S9 09 STVS 1and
SNOISSIONOD
1451 €9 €9 29 29 29 79 09 09 09 ANY STV.ANTY ALTTIDVS
SANN4 40 S3oUN0S
€'t 796 ?80'T TBTT T6C'T SOTT 0911 SITT L0v'T €8t IONVIVd ANNd DNIN3IdO
IVIOL NNC VN Udv YV a3d NVL J3a AON 130 85/'T
50009 (SanNn4 a3LOTYLSIHNN)

MO1d HSVD 40 INJWILVIS
SYOGUVH ANV SLH0d 40 NOISIAIQ



(4}

06T 06T 3T VA& vee vee §§%4 T9¢C 88¢ 8¥C FDNVIVE ANNd DNISOTD
(ss) € (op) € - €1 (08) € 01 3 MOT4 HSVD LaN
PIT - #S - I4 z 143 - % -
00T - 08 - - - 0S - - - (204D) -¥3aHLO TV
- - u = - - = - - - SADIAYAS TYNOISSIA0Ud
- - = - - - - - - - SALLTILLN
9 - 14 - - 14 - - 14 - IALLVYLSINIWAY ANV TY¥INID
8 = 4 - 4 = < = c - SALLITIOVL ANV SONIQTING
- - = - - = = = = = SLI4ANIF ANY SADIAYIS TINNOSHId
SANNd 4035n
6S € ! £ I4 qT 4 € 4! €
- - - - - - - = - ONIANNH LNVYD
£T 9 14 € 14 € 4 3 z € S334 IDYMO'H 1IN
9 - z - - 4 - - 4 - SNOLLYYLSIOFY
0¢ - 0] - - 01 - - 01 - 5334 39VYSN ¥3ld
SANNd 40 S30UN0S
ShT 38T Jk 44 (244 ¥eT TTC T9¢C 8G¢C 124 (74 IONVIVE ANNL DNINIJO
Tviol NNC AYW udv UVW g34 NVC o3a AON 10
(50009 (Sannd a3Lory.1SIy)

ANNd ONIDAIUA JOIdUVH -MOT14d HSVD 40 LNIW3LVIS
SUYOGUVH ANV S1L30d 40 NOISIAIA



6% 6ZE L9€ 9GE 9%€ SEE €CE vie <0¢C IcE IDNVIVE ANNd DNISOT1D

95 4! 11 o1 1T 4! 6 4! (61) €4 MOTd HSVD 13N

S 4 4 12 4 4 {7 4 € 2

- - - - - = 2 - = = YIHLO TIV

8T [4 14 4 o z 14 z (d z SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIHON

- - - - - - - - - - SALLIILLN

9 - - z - - 14 - - 14 FALLYYISININGY ANV TVHINID

: - - - - - - - - - SILLITIDOVH GNY SONIGTING

- = - - - - - - 2 = S1I43INIF ANV SIOTAUIS TANNOSUIA

o€ s - - - - - - 0¢ - d3.103r0¥Ud SNYOT MaN

Sannd 30 3sn

01T v €T PT €T P €T PT €T [4

8T 4 I4 4 4 C 4 Z 4 4 JONVIVE ANNA -FWODNI LSIYFUNI

[4; @ T [4 ] 4 1 z T - SNYOT-IWODNI LSTAFLNI

08 0T 01 0T 01 01 01 0T 01 = SLINIWAVATY NYO1
SANNd 40 SI0UN0S

(x4 {9¢ 9G¢ 9b€ GEE €€ a3 70T T¢E €T JONVIVE ANNd ONINIJO

IVIOL NAC AV Udv UV a3d NVL J23a AON 130
0009 (Sannd4 aiLory.is3iy)

ANNd NVO1 DSNIATOATY -MOTd HSVD 40 LNIW3LVIS

€T

SYOTGUYVH ANV S140d 40 NOISIAIQ



0t

[Ta]]

TviolL

TT Tt It €T €T €T €T €T 0T JONVIVE ANNd DNISOTD

(® - - - - 3 S MO HSVD L3N

'

'
o

i

1

'
o

- - - - - - - - - AIHLO TV

- = SADIAYIS TYNOISSIH0Ud
- - - - - - - SALLNIEN

- - [4 - - - - [4 - JALLYYLISINIWAY OGNV TVHINID
- - - - - - - - SALLIIDVL ANV SONIATING

- S1I4IN39 ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSHAd

SANNd 40 3Isn

1

!
LN}
)

- - - - - - - B - HIHLO TV

B - i . . . . g g STVANTY ALITIOVA

SANN4 40 S304N0S

FONVIVE ANNd DNINIdO

| A
| A
| 2
I ril
| 2
| A
| !
| Q

|

Z
=
>
<
b
-4
o
<
<4
<
b3
o]
Ll
L
Z|
<
[
O
L
[a]
>
=)
<
=
@)
o

(s,000 $)

¥T

(Sann4 aiLoryLs3¥)
ANN4d ANOZ 3AVIL NOITIO4 -MOTd HSVYD 40 ININWALVIS

SUYOFAUVH ANV SLIOd 10 NOISIAIA



Y

LEASE

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION - VIIILA.

Director Allard:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and to execute
Amendment No. 9 to the Parking License Agreement with Lonza Biologics,
Inc. for parking spaces located at 55 International Drive. The License
Amendment is extended from November 1, 2020 through October 31,
2021; all in accordance with License Agreement Amendment No. 9,
attached hereto.

Note: Roll Call vote required.

N\RESOLVES\2020\Lonza Parking - 55 Intl Dr 10-15-2-20.docx

U TAKING YOU THERE






License Agreement Amendment No. 9
Licensor: . Pease Development Authority (“PDA” or “Licensor”)
Licensee: Lonza Biologics, Inc. (“Lonza” or “Licensee™)
Licensed Premises:  Parking area adjacent to 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH

License Date: October 31, 2011

This License Agreement Amendment No. 9 made effective November 1, 2020, by and
between PDA and Licensee:

WHEREAS, Licensee desires to extend its License, as amended, through October 31, 2021

for the continued use of the parking area adjacent to 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH (the
“Premises™);

WHEREAS, PDA has agreed to extend the term of the License through October 31, 2021

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which s
acknowledged, the Parties agree to amend the License as follows:

l. The term of the License is extended for one (1) year from November 1, 2020
through October 31, 2021.

2. Licensee shall pay a License Fee of Nine Hundred Thirty and no/100 Dollars
($930.00) per month.

3. All other terms and conditions of the License shall remain in full force and effect
and continue to be binding upon the Parties.

Date: , 2020 Date: ,2020
Lonza Biologics, Inc. Pease Development Authority
By:

Duly Authorized Paul E. Brean

Executive Director

(Print Name)
Title:

PALONZAParking\Parking License Amd 9 docx






»
A

V)
m

INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORITY

MEMORANDUM

TO: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors «P <5

FROM: Paul E. Brean, Executive Director

RE: Lease Reports

DATE: October 7, 2020

=l<*>l<*****************>‘<*>k>‘<***>k>’<*ﬂ‘*****‘l‘***‘k*““kﬂ“k*ﬂ’*>l<>)’>i<M*«kﬂ' ¢ ok sk stk st sk sfokosk sk of sk skok ok ok sk sk ok

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Apploval of Sub-Suble ease
Agreements” PDA approved the following lease with:

A. Tenant: Shaughnessy Seagull, Inc. (d/b/a Allegra Marketing Print Mail)
Space: 3,652 square feet
Use: Office and Light Industrial Related Uses
Term: Five Years Commencing November 1, 2020

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements also
requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director Lamson
was consulted and granted her consent.

PABOARDMTG\2020 ease Report 10-15-20.docx

TAKING YOU THERE






PEASE

O INTERNATIONAL

D

E
A

VELOPMENT
UTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: Paul E. Brean, Executive Director ‘
Date: October 7, 2020
Re: Sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership and Shaughnessy Seagull,

Inc. (d/b/a Allegra Marketing Print Mail)

In accordance with the Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-
sublease Agreements adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA
has approved of a sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership (“222ILP”) and
Shaughnessy Seagull, Inc. (d/b/a Allegra Marketing Print Mail) (“Allegra”) for 3,652 square feet
at 222 New Hampshire Avenue for a period of five (5) years, effective November 1, 2020. Allegra
will use the premises for office and light industrial uses which must conform to the light
industrial/manufacturing uses authorized by the Pease Development Authority.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that:

“A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to,
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

l. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted
under the original sublease;

2. The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original
Lease;

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original
Lease; and

4. The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.”

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on 222ILP’s

continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the PDA/200ILP
Sublease.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements
also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director
Lamson was consulted and granted her consent.

PRTWOINTLA2Z InternationaliBoard menosiA legra Marketing Print Mail doex

TAKING YOU THERE






NOTICE OF CONSENT

This NOTICE OF CONSENT (“Notice”)‘ is given by the PEASE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY (“Lessor”) to 222 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (“Lessee™).
Lessor and Lessee may be referred to jointly as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

A. The Parties entered into a Lease for 222 International Drive at Pease International
Tradeport on September 7, 1999 (the “Lease”) and amended by Lease Amendment No. 1 effective

April 1, 2000 to include 195 New Hampshire Avenue, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth,
New Hampshire.

B. Section 19.3 of the Lease states that Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold its consent
to sublease if: ‘

1. the use of the subleased Premises associated with the Lease is permitted under
the original Lease;

2. the sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original Lease;

3. Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to perform all other
obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease; and

4. the proposed sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.

C. Lessee has requested authorization to sublease approximately 3,652 square feet within
the Leased Premises at 222 International Drive to Shaughnessy Seagull, Inc. (d/b/a Allegra
Marketing Print Mail) (“Allegra”), is duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of
New Hampshire, and is qualified to do business in the State of New Hampshire.

D. The proposed sublease to Allegra is for office and light industrial related uses which
must conform to the light industrial/manufacturing uses authorized by the Pease Development
Authority and for no other uses.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Lessor hereby authorizes Lessee to execute the sublease, attached hereto as Exhibit A, with
Allegra for approximately 3,652 square feet within the Leased Premises.

2. Upon execution of the sublease with Allegra, Lessee shall provide Lessor with a copy of the
executed sublease, copies of all required insurance certificates and a certificate of good standing from
the State of New Hampshire for Allegra.

] Lessee hereby agrees that occupancy shall be subject to the issuance of a Certificate of
Occupancy as may be required in accordance with PDA Zoning Regulations, Section 315.03(a).



4, Lessee hereby agrees and affirms that it shall remain primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and
to perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease.

This Notice of Consent is executed, effective this ‘J’ - day of &’ & rims2020 by the
Pease Development Authority.

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
)

B y: i N ,",;/:,v_,..:;'_.
Its: Executive Director

AGREED AND ACCEPTED

222 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

/o-/— 2o By: Mﬁ@w&\

Date Its: Co ~ Wanzgn—"
|

PATWOINTLA222 International\Consent\Shaughnessy Scagull (dba Allegra Marketing Print Mail).doex



P EASE

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION - IX.B.

Director Levesque:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and to execute
Amendment No. 1 to the Lease with Next Level Now, Inc. for the premises
located at 16 Pease Boulevard consistent with the terms and conditions
outlined in the Lease Amendment No. 1: all in accordance with Lease
Amendment No. 1 and the memorandum of Paul E. Brean, Executive
Director, dated October 7, 2020, attached hereto.

Note: Roll Call vote required.

NARESOLVES\2020\Next Level Now Amd 1 10-15-2-20.docx

3O TAKING YOU THERE






INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801
DEVEL PMENT
CAUTH RITY

o}
o

MEMORANDUM

To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors

From: Paul E. Brean, Executive Director

Date: October 7, 2020

Subject:  Next Level Now, Inc. — 16 Pease Boulevard — Lease Amendment No. 1

Next Level Now, Inc. (“Next Level”), a company that provides outsourced accounting services, has
leased the building at 16 Please Boulevard (the small building on the right as you enter the Tradeport
from Pease Boulevard) since August 1, 2016. The original lease was for a three year term, with two
I-year renewal options. Next Level exercised both options and the lease is set to expire on July 31,
2021. Earlier this summer, Next Level approached the PDA about entering a new lease under
essentially the same business terms (3-years, with two 1-year renewal options). In lieu of entering
into a new lease agreement, PDA suggested amending the current lease to add three additional
options to the lease term (one 3-year option and two 1-year options), which would have the potential
of extending the lease through July 31, 2026, if all options are exercised. The lease would also be
amended to permit a small dumpster on the leased premises, which was allowed via a letter
agreement in 2019. Next Level is in agreement with this lease amendment approach,

While the future may hold other possibilities for development of the parcel of land at 16 Pease
Boulevard, PDA staff believes this lease amendment to be in the best interests of the Tradeport at this
time and welcomes Next Level’s continued presence at Pease in this location.

With the foregoing in mind, I ask that at your October 15, 2020, Board meeting you approve Lease
Amendment No. 1 between the PDA and Next Level Now, Inc., in order to grant a potential total of
up five additional years under the lease term.

attachment

PABOARDMTG\2020\Memo to Board re-Next Level - Lease Amd |.docx

(5030 TAKING YOU THERE

Phone 603 433.6088 Fax: 603 4270433 www peasedev.org






LEASE AMENDMENT NO. 1

Lessor: Pease Development Authority ("Lessor" or "PDA")
Lessee: Next Level Now, Inc. ("Lessee")
Premises: 16 Pease Boulevard - Pease International Tradeport Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Lease Date:  August 1,2016

This Lease Amendment No. 1 effective , 2020, by and between the
above referenced Lessor and Lessee:

WHEREAS, Next Level Now, Inc. ("Next Level") as Lessee and Pease Development
Authority, as Lessor entered into a certain Lease dated August [, 2016 (the "Lease") for property
located at 16 Pease Boulevard, Pease International Tradeport, consisting of 1,244 useable square
feet, related parking and contiguous land area of 2.5 acres +/- (the "Property™);

WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee have agreed to modify the Lease to reflect permission to
place a dumpster on the property and to provide additional extension options to the term.

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that the Deeds impose certain requirements on

Lessee with respect to the Lease which are hereby incorporated in the terms and conditions of
this Amendment No. .

NOW, THEREFORE, Lessor and Lessee agree for good and valuable consideration, the

receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, that the Lease be amended as set forth
below:

a.) Article 1, Premises, a new Section 1.4 is added to read as follows:

1.4, Dumpster. Lessee may contract with a waste removal company for
the placement of a 2-Yard dumpster to be located in the parking lot
located at 16 Pease Boulevard. In an effort to minimize the visibility of
the dumpster, it shall be placed in the back left hand corner of the parking
lot as you enter from Pease Boulevard. Consistent with the provisions of
this Agreement, the dumpster must be maintained in a neat and orderly
condition.

b.) Article 3, Term, a new Section 3.2.A is added to read as follows:

Should both Options provided for in Section 3.2 be exercised, Lessee shall be
further granted one (1) 3-year Option to extend the lease, as well as two (2)
additional consecutive one (1) year options, which could extend the lease, if all

1



options are exercised, to July 30, 2026. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee may
not exercise said Options if it is in default under the terms of the Lease at the time
the Options must be exercised.

c.) Section 4.1 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

4.1 Lessee shall pay to Lessor building area rent ("Building Area Rent") at the
following annual rates for the areas of the Leased Premises described in Section
I.1:

Annual Building Area Rent

Year 1: $10.00 per square foot Modified NNN $ 12,440.00

Years 2 & 3: An annual payment equal to the per square foot rate for the
prior year plus an annual CP[ adjustment.

Option Years
4&5,6-8,9 & 10:  An annual payment equal to the per square foot rate for the
prior year plus an annual CPI adjustment.

Building Area

Rent Credit: During the Base Term (Years | through 3) Lessee shall be
entitled to a Building Area Rent Credit of 50% of its then
current rent rate in months 1, 2, 13, 14, 25 and 26. The
Building Area Rent Credit will not be available in any
Option Year or during anytime that Lessee is in default under
the terms of the Lease.

d.) All other terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain in full force and effect
and shall continue to be binding upon Lessor and Lessee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have executed this Lease Amendment No.
| made effective , 2020.

Lessee: NEXT LEVEL NOW, INC.

By:
Name:
Its:




Lessor: PEASE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

By:
Name: Paul E. Brean
Its: Executive Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSH[RE
COUNTY OF , SS
On this day of , 2020, before me, ,a

Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared

, personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of
satisfactory evidence) to be the of Next Level Now, Inc. and on
oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it to be
his/her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes set forth herein.

Notary Public
Printed Name:
My commission expires:

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM, ss.

On this day of , 2020, before me, ,
a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared Paul E. Brean, personally
known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the Executive
Director of the Pease Development Authority and on oath stated that he was authorized to
execute this instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act for the uses and
purposes set forth herein.

Notary Public
Printed Name:
My commission expires:

PANEXT LEVEL NOW\Lease\LEASE AMENDMENT NO 1.docx






Tl

INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION - X A.1.

Director Anderson:

The Pease Development Authority (PDA) Board of Directors
hereby authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract with
SHI International Corp. for the acquisition of the following:

1. Replacement of the Engineering plotter/printer with an HP
Design Jet SD Pro MFP 44” Multifunction Printer - Color, at
a cost not to exceed $15,510.00; and

2 Extended Services Agreement - Advanced Parts
Replacement - 5 years, at a cost not to exceed $2,033.00:

all in accordance with the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell,
Engineering Manager, dated October 7, 2020, attached hereto.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, the Board
justifies the waiver of the RFP requirement as SHI International Corp.
is a State of New Hampshire approved vendor.

Note: Roll Call vote required.

N\RESOLVES\2020\Engineering Plotter Printer 10-15-20.doc

Y TAKING YOU THERE






TERNATIONAL 5= al i - outh 02801
EVELOPMENT

MEMORANDUM

To: Paul E. Brean, Executive Director /@

From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager

Date: October 7, 2020

Subject: Engineering Printer Replacement

The large format printer used by engineering and other departments to print, copy and scan
engineering plans is in need of replacement. The printer is over ten years old and parts are no longer
available. Arecent problem with print quality cannot be repaired, making replacement necessary.

The IT Department has reviewed options for replacement and recommends the purchase of an HP
printer from SHI International Corp. (SHI) for a cost of $17,543.00. (Quotation is attached.) Staff
considered procuring the printer through a lease; however, after reviewing the options, determined
that purchasing the equipment is a better investment.

Because SHI is a State approved vendor, selected through a competitive process, we are requesting
that the Board waive the bid process and approve the purchase of the printer.

At next week’s meeting, please ask the Board to waive bidding for the reason stated and approve the
purchase of a 44-inch multifunction printer from SHI International Corp at a cost of $17,534.00, in
accordance with the attached quote from SHI International Corp.

N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2020\Printer replacement.docx

T TAKING YOU THERE






Pricing Proposal
Quotation #: 19494354
Created On: 10/1/2020
Valid Until:  10/30/2020

NH PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Inside Account Manager
Greg Siegenthaler Josh Donnelly

601 SPAULDING TURNPIKE, STE 1 290 Davidson Ave

ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Somerset, NJ 08873

PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 Phone: 800-527-6389 EXT 555-xxxxx
United States Fax

Phone: 603-380-8330 Email.  josh_donnelly@shi.com

Fax:
Email.  G.Siegenthaler@peasedev.org

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) g
Product Qty  Your Price Total

1 HP DesignJet SD Pro MFP - 44" multifunction printer - color - ink-jet - Roll (111.8 cm) 1 $15,510.00 $15,510.00
(original) - Roll (111.8 cm) (media) - up to 0.47 min/page (printing) - 2 rolls - Gigabit
LAN, USB 3.0, USB 3.0 host
HP, Inc. - Part#: 1GYS4A#B1K
Contract Name: SHI-Customer Contract
Contract #: SHI-Customer Contract
Note: In Stock

2 Electronic HP Care Pack Next Business Day Channel Remote and Parts Exchange 1 $2,033.00 $2,033.00
Service - Extended service agreement - advance parts replacement - 5 years -
shipment - response time: NBD - for DesignJet SD Pro MFP
HP, Inc. - Part#: U7UNGE
Contract Name: SHI-Customer Contract
Contract #: SHI-Customer Contract

Total $17,543.00

Additional Comments

Please Note' HP, Inc. has a zero returns policy on custom build PCs. Ink and toner are also considered non-returnable
Hardware items on this quote may be updated to reflect changes due to industry wide constraints and fluctuations.

Thank you for choosing SHI International Corp! The pricing offered on this quote proposal Is valid through the expiration date listed
above. To ensure the best level of service, please provide End User Name, Phone Number, Email Address and applicable Contract
Number when submitting a Purchase Order. For any additional information including Hardware, Software and Services Contracts,
please contact an SHI Inside Sales Representative at (888) 744-4084. SHI International Corp. is 100% Minority Owned, Woman
Owned Business. TAX [D# 22-3009648; DUNS# 61-1429481: CCR# 61-243957G: CAGE 1HTFO

The products offered under this proposal are Open Market and resold in accordance with the terms and conditions at SHI Online
Customer Resale Terms and Conditions.







»
A

Zm

INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION - X.A.2.

Director Fournier:

The Pease Development Authority (PDA) Board of Directors approves
of and authorizes the Executive Director to amend its existing contract with
the Horsley Witten Group to provide assistance to the PDA with the dry
weather outfall screening component of the Illicit Discharge Detection and
Elimination (IDDE) program in a total amount not to exceed $26,800 for
work connected with the PDA/CLF Settlement Agreement; all in accordance

with the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, dated October 7,2020, attached
hereto.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIIl, the Board
justifies the waiver of any applicable RFP or RFQ requirement based on the
approved litigation settlement and the existing contract with the Horsley
Witten Group.

Note: Roll Call vote required - this motion requires 5
affirmative votes.

NARESOLVES 2020y Horstey Witten (DDE) 10-15-20 docx

O TAKING YOU THERE

q.7% 2






MEMORANDUM
EASE }

INTERNATIONAL i
DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORITY

To: Paul E. Brean, Executive Director /€ N

From: Maria J. Stowell, PE, Engineering Manager

Date: October 7, 2020 \'

Subject: Horsley Witten Group Consulting Services

One of PDA’s efforts toward meeting the commitments of the Settlement Agreement between Pease
Development Authority and the Conservation Law Foundation, Inc. (the “Settlement”) is the design and

implementation of an lllicit Discharge Detection and Elimination (IDDE) program. The program has been
designed and we have begun the implementation phase.

Horsley Witten Group (“HW”), the consultant who the PDA contracted with to assist with the drafting of the
IDDE program documents, has submitted a proposal to amend the contract to assist PDA with the dry weather
outfall screening component of the program. HW is proposing to complete the work on a time and material

basis for an amount not to exceed $26,800. This price includes inspection of 53 outfalls, sampling and testing
of 10 outfalls, and provision of a report on the results.

I recommend seeking Board approval for this work and contract amendment. | understand that in approving
the Settlement, the Board also approved any required work to meet its terms. However, out of an abundance

of transparency and as the timing permits, please ask the Board to approve this contract amendment and
resulting expenditure so the work can proceed this fall.

N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2020\HW IDDE.docx







3

PEASE

AIRPORT ‘ ‘ © 36 Airline Ave. Portsmouth, MH 03801
MANAGEMENT 503.433

2

Memorandum

To:  Paul Brean, Airport Director &
From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Community Liaison
Date: 10/5/2020

Subj: Noise Report for September, 2020

The Portsmouth International Airport at Pease did not receive any noise inquiries in September,

2020. Both the noise phone line and the website noise submission form were tested and found
to be operational.

COOO TAKING YOU THERE






o=
£
A~

MOTION - XI. B.

Director Fournier:

The Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Dlrectors approves

of and authorizes the Executive Director to:

1. Expend funds in the amount of $14,314.00 for legal services

rendered to the Pease Development Authority:

Sheehan Phinney Bass & Green
August 1, 2020 - August 31, 2020
(for General Employment Matters)

August 1, 2020 - August 31, 2020
(in support of MS4 and CLF
settlement implementation)

Total

Note: Roli Call vote required.

N \RESOLVES\2020\Legal Services 10-15 -20.docx

$ 609.00

$13,705.00

$14,314.00

TAKING YOU THERE






Pease Development Authority Sep 11, 2020 PAGE 3

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA
1000 ELM STREET
P.0O. BOX 3701
MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY

RE: Trade Port - General Representation

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-10167
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: $609.00
TOTAL EXPENSES: $0.00

TOTAL THIS BILL: $609.00

BALANCE DUE: $609.00

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the
client/case number on all related correspondence.

AMOUNT PAID.,. $

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www, sheehan. com,
scroll to the bottom and click ClientPay " or contact our office directly.






Pease Development Authority Sep 11, 2020 PAGE 5

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA
1000 ELM STREET
P.O. BOX 3701
MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY

RE: Permit Implementation

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-19658
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: $13,485.00
TOTAL EXPENSES: $220.00

TOTAL THIS BILL: $13,705.00

BALANCE DUE: $13,705.00

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the
client/case number on all related correspondence.

AMOUNT PAID..., $

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www . sheehan. com,
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly.



Pease Development Authority

John Mark Turner
Lynn J Preston

Robert

P Cheney

TIMEKEEPER

TOTALS

RATE

250.00
290.00
2590.00

TIME AND FEE SUMMARY

HOURS
.20

37.
C/l
46.

00
30
50

Sep 11, 2020

58.
10730,
2697.
13485,

PAGE

6



b

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

PORTS AND HARBORS

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

RE:

Paul Brean, Executive Director, PDA — %C*v&

Geno J. Marconi, Director, DPH w
September 14, 2020

Commercial Mooring Transfer

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request
for the transfer of 2 commercial moorings, permit #952 and #6253, from Glenn Miller to
Joseph Kasztejna.

[ have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of
Administrative Rules regarding commercial mooring transfers. Therefore, [ am
requesting approval of the transfer.

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know.

.3 TAKING YOU THERE







Division of Ports & Harbors

Memorandum
To: Capt. Geno J. Marconi
From: Chief H/M Tracy R. Shattuck /77/;
Re: Commercial Transfer

Date: September 14, 2020

Glenn Miller and Joseph Kasztejna are requesting the transfer of 2 Mooring
Permits (#952, #6253) in the Rye Harbor mooring field concurrent with the sale of
Miller’s boat and equipment. Permit #952 has been a commercial use permit and Miller
requested #623, a nearshore mooring, be changed to commercial. Attached is
documentation of Kasztejna’s commercial enterprise in the form of his fishing license.
Also attached is the transfer request and bill of sale from Miller. Joseph Kasztejna has
asserted that he understands that the mooring must remain in commercial use.

[ have reviewed this application and I believe that it is in compliance with the
administrative rules.

I recommend that permits #952 and #6253 be transferred to:

Joseph Wickson
30 Bradley Lane
North Hampton, NH 03862






= 0

—
m

C Y.
- 1

o
> m

c<
M=
.
' |1z
o ks
o~
<
-~

September 25, 2020

Heidi & Elisabeth Fisheries
c/o Heidi Seafood Services
1 Pierce Island Rd.,
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Re:  Heidi & Elisabeth Fisheries, LLC-Exercise of Option to Right-of- Entry

Dear Mr. Bills & Mr. Hayward,

This letter serves to confirm that in accordance with the terms of the Right-of-Entry
agreement for operations at the Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier at Pierce [sland, Heidi &
Elisabeth Fisheries has exercised its last of two options to renew the agreement. The Agreement
is hereby extended to December 31, 2021. This will also serve to confirm that the terms of the
original agreement will remain the same.

Please let me know if you have any questions.
Sincerely,

~—o. €. G

Paul E. Brean
Executive Director

ee: Geno J. Marconi, PDA-DPH Director
[rv Canner, Finance Director

PAPortAuthority\ROE-LON2020\eidi & Flisabelh Fisheries Final Extension of ROE Lir.doex

TAKING YOU THERE






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

PORTS AND HARBORS

Date: October 8, 2020

To: Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors
From: Geno Marconi, Port Director

Subject: Portsmouth Fish Pier, Fuel Pump Dispensers

In accordance with Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier, Bulkhead Rehabilitation (“PFP Project™)
contract documents the Division of Ports and Harbors (the “Division”) is responsible providing
the fuel dispensing equipment. The PFP Project involves the removal of the fuel lines, dispenser
pad, and dispensers so that excavation can occur. The Division had expected to use the existing
fuel dispensers (2) as they have been reliable, however, considering the system will be all new
between the fuel storage tanks and the dispenser, and upon inspection by STANTAC, a sub-
consultant to Appledore Marine Engineering, the engineers for PFP Project, a strong
recommendation was made to replace the two (2) dispensers (gas and diesel) with a single, dual
dispenser.

The existing dispensers are manufactured by Wayne Fueling Systems (“Wayne’) and the existing
credit card pedestal is compatible only with Wayne dispensers, therefore, the replacement
dispenser needs to be a Wayne dispenser. Wildco PES of Manchester NH is the local distributor
of Wayne dispensers.

By delegation of Authority for purchases under $10,000.00, the Division requested and received
approval from Executive Director Paul Brean, and PDA Treasurer, Bob Allard for the expenditure
of $9945.00 from the PFP Project appropriation to purchase the unit,

TAKING YOU THERE




Wildco Petroleum Equip. Sales NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND SALES OFFICE

CONNECTICUT WAREHOUSE David D. Blampied, Territory Manager
155 Highland Park Dr 572 Mt Cleveland rd Bethlehem NH 03574
Bloomfield, Ct. 06002 (603) 868-9993 * Fax (603) 869-9994

860-243-1877* Fax 860-243-1682
QUOTE # 8772

TO NH Port Authority Please indicate the above number when ordering
555 Market st Date: 10/5/2020
Portsmouth NH 03801 Project: Port Authority, Fish Pier

Attn: Captain Geno Marconi
603-365-0503

Estimated Shipping Date Shipped Via F.O.B. Terms
25% Down
bal on del
Quantity Pait # Discription Price Amount
1 3/G7203D/129GHJKU Y/LS3 WAYNE Select Dispenser, 2 Product | $9,175.00 | $9,175.00

Price displays, pulse output, Heater
presets, Istand oriented
SS lower cabinet, Black top, SS doors

incoming freight included

2 Calibrate ea. Dispenser $175.00 $350.00
2 Purging $110.00 $220.00
1 Start up / program dispenser $125.00 $125.00
Note; Time and Material Reconnect Exist. card system
No other accessories quoted
Pilus incoming freight
1 Wildeo delivery $75.00 $75.00

This guote is for the above listed items only
No other accessories quoted
installation by others $9,945.00

We are pleased to submit the above quotation for your consideration. Should you place an order, be assured it will
receive our prompt attention. This quotation is valid for 30 days. Thereafter it is subject to change without notice.
The above prices do not include any federal, state or local taxesj Restocking or canceliation charge - 25%.

By David D. Blampied Accepted W Date /C)/g/o?’? 2D
/ /

THANK YOU



Suls &

I
Gationa I I ‘—1

U Priue Pae Gallan
ey b

T

UNLEADED

EXISTING FUEL DISPENSERS




JVED DIESEL

B 4 79T 405° ]

———————— Toxes Included

e - : 2 Taxes Included

Sale $

Cations
S v | Y
l"-i

DIESEL  GASOLINE

' DUAL FUEL DISPENSER EXAMPLE

; 3
)




I | .

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL , 5 internaiional Delva Porlgmnen, M OLEDY

D

E
A

VELOPMENT
UTHORITY

MOTION -XII.B.

Director Allard:

The Pease Development Authority (PDA) Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to execute a contract with James Jones,
d/b/aJones Snow Plowing Service of North Hampton, New Hampshire, for the
purpose of plowing and salting at the Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier and
the Marine Facilities at Rye and Hampton Harbors for an initial period of three
(3) years commencing on the first plowable event or November 1, 2020,
whichever event occurs first; including three (3) one-year (1) options to renew
exercisable at the sole discretion of the Executive Director, and subject to
Jones Snow Plowing Service providing proof of certification from the New
Hampshire Green SnoPro Certification by no later than November 1 ,2020; all
in accordance with the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director,
dated October 6, 2020 attached hereto.

Note: Roll Call vote required.

NAARESOLVES\20204DPH - Snow Plow Contract 10~15-20.docx

) TAKING YOU THERE

X






n ™
il

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL B5h Markel 8o

PORTS AND HARBORS

Date: October 7, 2020

To: Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors
From: Geno Marconi, Port Directdr /L

Subject; Snow Plow and Salting Bid

The Division of Ports and Harbors (the “Division”) advertised a public bid for Snow Plowing and
Salting at the Division’s facilities at the Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier and the Marine Facilities at
Rye and Hampton Harbor.

Along with posting on the PDA website, an “Advertisement for Bids” was placed in a newspaper of
general state circulation on Friday September 25" and Sunday September 27%. On October 5, 2020
mandatory pre-bid site visits were held at the three (3) facilities. Bids closed at noon on October 6"
below is the results of the bid process.

* Bid packages requested or picked up:
* Attendees at mandatory pre-bid site visit:
* Number of qualified bids received:

Ll N ()

The only qualifying bid was submitted by Mr. James Jones, Jones Snow Plowing Service of North
Hampton, NH. Mr. Jones presented an extensive list of snow handling equipment and spreaders. The
Division reviewed Mr. Jones’s qualification and experience which includes snow plowing for the
Division of Ports and Harbors, and find him to be well qualified. The following are the prices quoted

by Mr. Jones;
* | Ton pickup: $75.00 per vehicle/per hour
s Salt: $225.00 per ton

The Division has reviewed the bid prices and find them fair and consistent with previous snow plowing
costs incurred by the Division.

Therefore, the Division of Ports and Harbors recommends that the PDA Board of Directors authorize
the Executive Director to complete negotiations with Mr. James Jones and enter into a contract with
Jones Snow Plowing Service for services to be performed at the Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier and
the Marine Facilities at Rye and Hampton Harbors.

YOU THERE

Hed 5530780 Waww neasoday org



opew) 2)q/ 2020
/2/0hvs /Z% &

Pease Development Authority-Division of Ports and Harbors
Snow Plowing Services Contract Bid Package

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page -
ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS .......cooiiiiiinioiiei it 2
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMITTING BIDS ... 3
SCOPE OF WORIK ...t S
BID FORM ..ottt 7
BID FORM-RATES ..ot e oo 8
STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS .....oooiiiit oo 9
GENERAL CONDITIONS ...t 11
SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS ..o 15
MINIMUM INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS ........ooiiiiiomiinoee oo 20
SAMPLE CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE FORM ........ooooioomimmiooooo 21



ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

The Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Division of Ports and Harbors (“the Division™) invites sealed bids
for Snow Plowing and Salting Services at the Division’s Marine Facilities in Hampton, Portsmouth, and Rye,
New Hampshire (“marine facilities”). Bids will be received at the offices of the Division, by mail or in person
at 555 Market St., Portsmouth, New Hampshire until 12:00 p.m. local time, October 6, 2020, at which time
they will be opened publicly and read aloud.

The mailing address is:

Pease Development Authority-Division of Ports and Harbors
. Attn: Geno Marconi ‘

555 Market St,

Portsmouth, NH 03801

Bids shall be enclosed in two envelopes (inner and outer), both of which shall be sealed and clearly labeled,
“Bid for Snow Plowing Services Contract, Attn: Geno Marconi.”

In order to receive a bid package, all bidders are required to register with the Division in writing via e-mail to
b.therrien@peasedev.org to express interest in the project and to receive any addendums. Bid documents will
be available at the Market St. Terminal starting on September 29, 2020,

There is a mandatory pre-bid site visit on October 5, 2020, to view the marine facilities, beginning in
Hampton at 1 Ocean Blvd., 10:00 AM; at Rye 1870 Ocean Blvd., 10:30 AM; and the Portsmouth
Commercial Fish Pier, 1 Peirce Island Rd. at 11:00 AM. All potential bidders must attend and remain to
the conclusion of the pre-bid site visits.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this

advertisement. No contractor will be discriminated against on grounds of race, sex, religion, color or national
origin.

DPH Snow Plowing Services Contract Bid Package Page 2



INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMITTING BIDS

1. Receipt and Opening of Bids.

The Pease Development Authority Division of Ports and Harbors (herein called the “Division”) or the
“Owner”), invites bids on the form attached hereto, all blanks of which must be appropriately filled in. The
Owner will receive bids at its offices located at 555 Market St., Portsmouth, New Hampshire, until 12:00 p-m.,
October 6, 2020, at which time they will be opened publicly and read aloud.

The mailing address is:

Pease Development Authority
Attn.: Geno Marconi

555 Market St.

Portsmoutli, New Hampshire 03801

The bid shall be enclosed in two envelopes (inner and outer) to prevent premature opening. Both envelopes
shall be sealed and clearly labeled, “Bid for Snow Plowing Services - Attn: Geno Marconi.”

The Owner may consider informal any bid not prepared and submitted in accordance with the provisions herein
and may waive any informalities or reject any and all bids. Any bid may be withdrawn prior to the above
scheduled time for opening or authorized postponement thereof. Any bid received after the time and date
specified shall not be considered. No Contractor may withdraw a bid within 60 calendar days after the actual
date of the opening thereof.

Bidders must quote on all items appearing on the bid form. All blank spaces must be correctly filled in.
Failure to quote on all items may disqualify the bid.

Bid award will be based on the lowest priced, qualified bidder. Bidder may not submit unbalanced bids.

In order to be eligible to submit a bid, all Contractors must have attended the mandatory pre-bid
mecting October 5, 2020, to view the marine facilities, beginning in Hampton at 1 Ocean Blvd., 10:00
AM; Rye, 1870 Ocean Blvd., 10:30 AM; and the Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier, 1 Peirce Island Rd.
at 11:00 AM. All potential bidders must attend and remain to the conclusion of the pre-bid site visits,
All Contractors shall have examined the premises before submitting their bid for the work and have satisfied
themselves as to the existing conditions under which they will be obligated to operate or that will in any way
affect the work under this Contract. No allowance will be made subsequently in this regard for any error or
negligence of the Contractor.

2. Description of Work

This project consists of providing snow plowing and salting at the Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier and the
Rye and Hampton Harbor Marine Facilities.

3. Qualifications.

Each Contractor shall submit its qualifications to the Owner on the form provided hereinafter entitled
“Statemnent of Qualifications.” The form must be delivered to the Owner with the bid. The Owner reserves
the right to reject the bid of anv Contractor who has failed to submit its qualifications.

DPH Snow Plowing Services Contract Bid Package Page 3



4. Certification.

The lowest qualified bidder will be required to show proof of successfully completing New Hampshire Green
SnoPro Certification, specialized in reduced-salt winter maintenance as educated by the UNH Technology
Transfer Center. Certification can be obtained no later than November 1, 2020.

S Contract Term.

Subject to the approval of the PDA Board of Directors, the Contract will be for three (3) years with three (3)
additional one-year options, each option subject to the approval by the PDA Executive Director. Snow
Plowing Services will commence on the first plowable event or November 1, 2020 whichever occurs first, and

extend through the snow season.

6. Contract Award.

The award will be based on both QLlaliﬁcations and costs. The Owner will award the Contract, at its sole
discretion, to the lowest qualified bidder. Upon approval of the selected Contractor by the PDA Board of
Directors, a Contract will be prepared by PDA and forwarded to the Contractor for execution.

7. Eligibility.
At the sole discretion of PDA or the Division, any Contractor that has previously submitted a bid to the PDA or

Division or entered into an Agreement with the PDA or Division and has not complied with the required terms
of the Agreement may not be eligible to submit a bid.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank. Scope of Work follows]

DPH Snow Plowing Services Contract Bid Package Page 4



SCOPE OF WORK FOR SNOW PLOWING SERVICES

I The successful bidder will provide snow plowing and salting at the Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier, in
Portsmouth, NH, and the Rye and Hampton Harbor Marine Facilities, in Rye and Hampton, NH
respectively.

2. Subject to the approval of the PDA Board of Directors, the Contract will be for three (3) years with
three (3) additional one-year options. Snow Plowing Services will commence when needed for the
snow season. The contract period may be extended at the sole discretion of the PDA Executive
Director for three (3) additional one (1) year options.

3. The Contractor, must provide snow plowing services during snow and ice conditions and must be
available on an emergency call basis. Snow shall be plowed to snow storage areas at each facility as
dictated by the Division.

4. Salting shall be provided wherever icing results in unsafe conditions for vehicular and/or pedestrian
traffic. Apply salt using mechanized equipment specifically designed for the intended use.

5. The Contractor shall keep the boat launch ramps at Rye and Hampton clear for the launching of
emergency response equipment.

6. The Contractor shall keep manholes, drains, etc. free of snow and ice, allowing for sufficient water
runoff at aii times.

7. Snow plowing and other operations shall be conducted in a manner that will not damage pavements,
curbs, hydrants, shoulders, turf or other structures, especially the wooden deck at the Portsmouth
Commercial Fish Pier. The Contractor will be responsible for repairing any damage caused by snow
Plowing operations at no additional cost to the Division.

8. The wooden deck at the Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier shall be “back dragged” so as not to damage
the fastenings on the wooden deck.

9. Snow clearing and salting shall be provided at the Facilities for fishermen and emergency responders
for the duration of any storm. In the event the Division deems it necessary in its sole and reasonable
discretion to plow snow at the Commercial piers due to lack of the contractor response, the contractor
will reimburse the Division for its full cost of the operation, including but may not be limited to,
personnel, material, equipment, or hiring a temporary contractor.

10. The Contractor shall be certified by the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services as a
Commercial Salt Applicator no later than November 1, 2020, and provide the Division with a copy of
the certification. Certification includes successful completion of the Green SnoPro training.  All
personnel employed at the sites shall be familiar with salt reduction measures.

I'. A sufficient number of personnel will be employed and equipment assigned to properly accomplish all
work in accordance with these specifications.

12. The Contractor shall be available on a 24-hour on-call basis to respond to emergencies or to correct
deficiencies in the Work. Operators and equipment will mobilize and be onsite at the facilities within
two hours of notification.

DPH Snow Plowing Services Contract Bid Package Page 5



13. The Contractor will complete any required repairs of damage caused by snow plowing operations
promptly, but in no event later than by April 30" of the contract year.

14. At the option of the Division, the Contractor will be required to make vehicles and equipment available
for inspection.

15. Proposals must be submitted as an hourly cost for labor and equipment and as a price per ton for salt.

16. A mandatory PRE-BID SITE VISIT is scheduled for October 5, 2020, attendance is required at all 3
facilities, as follows:

Hampton, | Ocean Blvd. 10:00 AM
Rye, 1870 Ocean Blvd. 10:30 AM

Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier, 1 Peirce Island Rd. 11:00 AM

DPH Snow Plowing Services Contract Bid Package Page 6



BID FORM

Snow Plowing and Saltin

Bid of Jdones SV PGy S&dvice

(hereinafter called “Bidder) awae{pggadeﬂi,-organized under the [aws of the State of N-(F i

b
l~imi~ted——‘rf‘a'bTIm any* pamnershipt-. . an individua] * ) doin business
p P Qdividual* ) doing

30,{;({23 _j@’g»\,".&aw(’\/(’:. jé’”ul(_’_('
x

*Strike out inapplicable terms.

To the Pease Development Authority-Division of Ports and Harbors (hereinafter called the “Owner”):

The Bidder, having examined the Specifications ang related documents ang being familjar with all of the

conditions Surrounding the Proposed project including the availability of the equipment, hereby proposes to

prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the Contract Documents, of

which this bid s 5 part.

Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addenda:

Addendum No,
_— : e _
Signature Date
Addendum No.
Signature Date
Addendum No.
———— ; \
Signature Date

DPH Snow Plowing Services Contract Bigd Package Page 7



BID FORM - RATES

Snow Plowing and Salting

Description Unit Cost Estimated Total Price
Quantity
o 250 hours ~ b
Plowing & salting s 75 /vehicle/hr. (Labor and AR
i~ TN equipment)
Salt $_A23 /per ton 100 tons $ 22 SCC-
+ S0 e
TOTALBID g t((,25

Bidder understands that the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any informalities in
the bidding.

The Contract will be awarded to the Contractor with the lowest qualified bid for the Total Project Cost. The
Owner reserves the right to delete any item of work in whole or in part, and to award the Contract to the Bidder
deemed by the PDA as most qualified and most capable of completing the work. Equipment will be a
consideration.

Name of Bidder: _ 3843 S oa/¢ § By:
A@g Sighatire
Printed Name/Title: A Bs g JedES
Business Address: FCD ATTAADC AV
Aot T Vol T2 o i, O3iT
Telephone Number: Co3-7¢5-FH%N

(Seal if Bid is submitted by a Corporation)

DPH Snow Plowing Services Contract Bid Package Page 8



STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Attach this statement. fully completed, to the Bid Form and submit to the Owner on the date and time for
opening of bids.

All questions must be answered and the data given must be clear and comprehensive. Where necessar

5 Y)
questions shall be answered on separate attached sheets. The Contractor may submit any additional information
Contractor desires.

1. Name of Contractor: \S A1 é g RYIP VLA DA Jowes Sl Ld—gl"ﬁi ['f
Ly

la Contractor is:

Limited Liability Company )
Corporation )
Partnership 0
Individual {>}Q
2n Permanent main office address: & €7 ATLACVIC A Ug

e T WAz Ao dl

Za Treasury Number (Employer’s Identification No.):

3. When organized: (9fY

4. If a corporation, where incorporated:

4.a If LLC, where formed:

Sk How many years have you been engaged in the business under your present firm or trade name?
79
6. General character of work performed by your company: _ DAicwv R £me/ ML e/ F
Cepel
7. Have you ever failed to complete any work awarded to you? () Yes MNO

If yes, where and why?

8. Have you ever defaulted on a contract? () Yes NNO
If yes, where and why?

DPH Snow Plowing Services Contract Bid Package Page 9



9. List of references (minimum of three).

Name: Tl OF  CAFELLaD

Address: SYY VeV, TV A L C e ard

Contact Number/Email: . .
Relationship/Years Known: 2002~ Vecye A Q\’LL ACAD  ta T vkl
Name: M- W DA

Address:

Contact Number/Email: Ceuc AU e AT

Relationship/Years Known: 2606 ~  Veesend

Name: ‘ SPay] e (¢ o DuyMeT (

Address:

Contact Number/Email: Kex  sticse T A3 226

Relationship/Years Known: (99— Prset

10: Has your organization successfully completed the New Hampshire Green SnoPro Certification?

10.a  If so, when and list names of certified personnel: IAmeS Sew &3

10.b  Ifno, when will you be able to secure New Hampshire Green SnoPro Certification as required?
Lol B DT E4 DAL {Le e s b Covse

Attach proof of licensure and any other information that may assist the Owner in evaluating your bid.

DPH Snow Plowing Services Contract Bid Package Page 10



Jones Snowplowing Service
207 Atlantic Avenue
- North Hampton N.H. 03862

(603) 964 5767 Office
(603) 765-8481 Cell

Winter 2020-2021 Snow Removal Equipment List

Vehicles

(1-Tons)
01. 2015 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
02. 2008 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
03. 2008 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
04. 2008 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
05. 2007 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
06. 2007 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
07. 2007 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
08. 2007 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
09. 2007 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
10. 2007 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
11. 2006 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
12. 2006 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
13. 2006 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
14. 2006 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
15. 2006 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
16. 2004 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft Plow

17. 2004 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow



18. 2004 1-Ton 4x4 w/9 Ft. Plow
19. 2004 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow
20. 2003 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow

21. 2002 1-Ton 4X4 w/9 Ft. Plow

Heavy Trucks

(Six Wheelers)

01. 2017 5-Ton ‘Dump w/ Sander, F ron;t and Wing Plows
02. 2013 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
03. 2012 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
04. 2011 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
05. 2011 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
06. 2010 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
07. 2010 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
08. 2009 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
09. 2007 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
10. 2007 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
1. 2006 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
12. 2006 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander. Front and Wing Plows
13. 2005 5-Ton Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
14. 2004 5-Ton Dump w/Sander, Front and Wing Plows

15. Several 1997-1999 5-Ton Dumps w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows

(Ten Wheelers)



01. 2012 10-Wheel Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
02. 2010 10-Wheel Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
03. 2010 10 Wheel Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
04. 2006 10-Wheel Dump w/ Sander, Front and Wing Plows
05. 1999 10- Wheel Dump w/ sander, Front and Wing Plows
06. 2003 Mack Ten Wheel Dump

07. 1998 Peterbilt Ten Wheel Dump

08. 1998 Peterbilt Ten Wheel Dump

09. 1998 Mack Ten Wheel Dump

10. Peterbilt Tractor w/ Trailer Dump

11. International Tractor w/ Trailer Dump

Loaders
01. 1989 Case 580M 4X4 Backhoe w/ 1 % yd bucket
02. 2004 420D Caterpillar 4X4 Backhoe w/ 1 ¥ yd bucket
03. 1999 980G Caterpillar Loader w/ 7yd Bucket
04. 1989 950E Caterpillar Loader w/ 5 yd Bucket
05. 1998 938G Caterpillar Loader w/4.5 yd Bucket
06. 1994 938F Caterpillar Loader w/4 yd Bucket
07. 1995 936F Caterpillar Loader w/ 3.5 yd Bucket
08. 2006 930G Caterpillar Loader w/ 3 yd Bucket
09. 2006 930G Caterpillar Loader w/ 3 yd Bucket
10. 2005 930G Caterpillar Loader w/ 3 yd Bucket
11. 1992 I'T28B Caterpillar Loader w 3 yd Bucket

12. 2007 924G Caterpillar Loader w/ 3 yd Bucket



13. 2006 924G Caterpillar Loader w/ 3 yd Bucket
14. 2005 924G Caterpillar Loader w/ 3 yd Bucket

15. 2016 907M Caterpillar Loader w 1 % yd Bucket with snowblower
attachment

16. 2013 906 H2 Caterpillar Loader w 1 % yd Bucket
17. 2009 906H Caterpillar Loader w/ 1 % yd Bucket
18. 2001 906G Caterpillar Loader w/ 1 % yd Bucket
19. 2006 L70ZV Kawasaki Loader w/ 3.5 yd Bucket
20. 2011 L60 Kawasaki Loader w/ 3 yd Bucket

21. L70F Volvo Loader w/ 4 yd Bucket

22. L70E Volvo Loader w/ 4 yd Bucket

23. 1995 L70C Volvo Loader w/4 yd Bucket

24. 2005 L60E Volvo Loader w/ 3 yd Bucket

25. 2001 760 Hyundai Loader w/ 5 yd Bucket

26. Bobcat Skidsteer with walkway bucket/Blade

Graders

1. 1984 120G Caterpillar Grader

Sanders
1. All Heavy Trucks with front Blades and wings Are equipped with Sanders
2. (17) All Season Spreader Bodies
3. (9) 7 yd spreaders for 5-Ton Trucks (Hopper Style) (Spares)
4. (3) 4 yd Hi-Way spreader-(Hopper style)
5. 3.5 yd Fontaine Spreader (Hopper Style)

6. (6) Tailgate Spreaders for 5-Ton Dump Trucks



Yo,
ACORD
N

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DDIYYYY}
01/08/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER HANEACT  John Flynn
FAX
John J. Flynn Ins Agy Inc mg“ﬁo_ £xy. (603) 740-0140 | b:IC. Noj:  (803) 743-3370
818 Central Avenue ohREgg. Jahn Flynn@Flynninsurance.net
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Dover NH 03820 SURERA:  O&H Underwriters
INSURED INSURER 8- Hanover Insurance 22292
James Jones, DBA: Jones Show Plowing Nsurer ¢ . Phoenix Ins
207 Atlantic Ave INSURER D :
INSURER E :
N. Hampton NH 03862 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL18121349752 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS
TNSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | wvD POLICY NUMBER (MWDDIYYYY) | (MRDDIYYYY) LIMITS
3</| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY e — s 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
I CLAMSMABE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurence) | 5 100,000
MED EXP (Any one person} S 5,000
A Y | Y | USA4238376-19 12/06/2019 | 12/06/2020 [ ocpcona s novivaury | s 1,000,000
EN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER GENERALAGGREGATE s 2,000,000
| 1
| <] rovicy 5 Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | s 2,000,000
OTHER. s
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY N s 1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
T owNED SCHEDULED ; -
B | AUTosonwy Tt AHV5731948 11/21/2019 | 11/21/2020 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
S| HiRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE .
2| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)
Medical payments s 5,000
UMBRECENLAE QCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE s
EXCESS LIAB B TS AGGREGATE
pep | | ReTention s $
WORKERS COMPENSATION l PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN X stawre || e
C L R X CUTIVEL NIA UB0K294074 01/25/2019 | 01/25/2020 |-E:L- EACH AGCIDENT s 7o
{Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - £a EMPLOYEE | 5 500,000
If yes, describe undor 500.000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | 5 .

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Pease Dev Authority & State of NH are named as additional insured as required by written contract. A thirty (30) day notice of cancellation (with the

exceplion of a ten (10) day notice for non-payrment of premium)
Liability coverage shall be primary and
noncontributing with respect to any insurance carried by the PDA

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Pease Development Authonty Division of Ports & harbors & State of NH
555 Market St

Partsmouth NH 03801

!

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

fEf Do

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




